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Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MRRBRERBREZBEER

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBRE

Fifteen Year
months ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
Bz HE
—E-KR¥ —E-MF
=A +=A
=+—H =+—H
Lt+H@EA IEFE
HK$million HK$million
BEBET BEBET
Gross revenue " 5,523.5 5,035.5
wizs O
Revenue 1,975.8 1,722.4
Wz
EBITDA 499.0 365.3
BT E KR A E
EBIT (Profit from operations) 299.5 226.0
MERFE (L& HEHM)
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 27.2 120.1
ZAN/NEIE X E il
Basic earnings per share 1.2 cents 1l 5.2 cents {lll
FREREF
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
—E-XHF —F-MF
=A=t+-B +=A=t+—8
HK$million HK$million
BEAR BEATT
Net assets of the Group 5,439.6 5,561.9
AEBEEFEY
NAV per ordinary’share 4.63 dollars Tt 4.82 dollars 7t
BREBREEFE

Note: Ftat

(1) Gross revenue represents the gross amount arising from the (1) RBRFIEHERR TAZERRPZE
sales of goods, concession sales charged to retail customers, HEIBHE KEHEZHBESWAUE
rental income from operating leases and management and AAPWER Z BB RITHRGEWA Z
administrative service fee income charged to tenants, net of @R (GRS EN K EMEER NS
value added tax or other sales tax and sales discounts. PreE) o

(2) NAV per ordinary share represents the total equity (2) TREBIREEFEENARIIREEMN
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company per G T mAR S 4B RE o
ordinary share.

(3) As announced by the Company on 10 December 2015 3) WMARRR-T—RFEL_ATHMA
and further update on 30 December 2015, the Company’s EEMN_F-—RFE+_A=TRE—-F
financial year end date has been changed from 31 December B ARRZHMBEERAEHRT A
to 31 March. Accordingly, the current financial period will —t+-ABEXE=A=+—H -Hit"
cover a period of fifteen months from 1 January 2015 to 31 ARG R ER —F—RF—A—
March 2016 with comparative figures for the year ended 31 HE-_Z—A"F=A=1+—H IE+H
December 2014. ERAHE kBB FTAHBE_ZT—NF

+ZA=+—HIEFE-




Financial Highlights and Key Performance Index

MBERERBRERELEER

KEY PERFORMANCE INDEX RAEEKRIEE

Fifteen Year

months ended ended

31 March 31 December

2016 2014

HK$ HKS$

BZE HE

—E-REF —E-MF

=A +=—A

=t-—H =t+—H

IE+H@EA IFFE

BT BT

Sales per ticket @ 1,339 1,382

RHEE

Annualized area efficiency (per m?)@ 36,300 39,500

FEATER (BFEFK) @

Notes: ff et -
(1) Sales per ticket represents gross revenue per total number of () XHEBEAEEBEKNRBIUNERTS
transactions of department stores. B

(2)  Annualized area efficiency represents annualized gross (2) FEAFBIEFELANRZGABTER
revenue per department store average operating area. B K S o
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Five Years Summary Financial Information

IENBERRBE
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &% — &
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L E T 2%1)

—NF=A=+—HI-TaEA

RESULTS
Year ended 31 December
BE+ZB=t-HLEE
fifteen months
ended
31 March
2016 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE
—ZE-RE
=+-H
ttE@ER —F-EF —F_-f%f ZF--f ZF_—F
FTET FET FET FET FET
Turnover HER
- Continuing operations —FERLEK 1,975,806 1,722,418 1,871,577 1,740,483 1,298,932
- Discontinued operations —RIFREXK - - - - -
1,975,806 1,722,418 1,871,577 1,740,483 1,298,932
Profit attributable IR E R R
to equity shareholders
- Continuing operations —FELEEE 27,160 120,149 443,641 422,802 215,150
- Discontinued operations —RIPEEER - - - - -
27,160 120,149 443,641 422,802 215,150
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
HEREME
As at 31 December
R+=-B=+-8H
As at
31 March
2016 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®
—E-RE
=A={-B -¥_MF -F_SF -F__F -F_F
FET FET FET FET TET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE 8,572,16_'_5 8,398,12__2 6,954,88_5_9 6,349,00__7 4,041,40_?_3___
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE 1,905,022 1,876,152 2,014,172 2,124,613 1,083,542
DEDUCT: i
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE 3,161,364 3,089,997 2,029,683 2,410,872 1,910,105
NET CURRENT mEEEFE
LIABILITIES (1,256,34_?) (1 ,213,84__5) (1 5,51_]) (286,25_9) (826,56_3_)__
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRDAEE
CURRENT LIABILITIES 7,315,823 7,184,277 6,939,378 6,062,748 3,214,846
DEDUCT: b
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE 1,876,241 1,622,343 1,866,341 1,615,967 1,756,600
NET ASSETS EEFH 5,439,582 5,561,934 5,073,037 4,446,781 1,458,246




CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Century
Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present the audited results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016 (“the period”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading operator of middle to high end
shopping malls, department stores and supermarkets in
northwest China. As at 31 March 2016, the Group owns and
operates eight department stores and seven supermarkets
in Shaanxi province and Urumgi. It also owns several prime
commercial properties strategically located within premium
central business districts. The Group’s store GFA covers
approximately 300,000 square meters (approximately
3,200,000 square feet), of which approximately 160,000
square meters (approximately 1,700,000 square feet) are self-
owned properties.

In accordance with the data announced by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, China’s GDP in 2015 grew by 6.9%,
and the growth rate was decreased by 0.4% when compared
to the preceding year, hitting a 25-year low. Gross retail sales
amount of social consumer goods grew by 10.6%, and the
growth rate was decreased by 0.3% when compared to the
preceding year. The downward pressure on domestic economy
still persisted.

In the aspect of offline retail industry, in accordance with
the statistics of China National Commercial Information
Center, there were only 40% out of 50 key large-scale retail
enterprises achieving sales growth in 2015, while the results of
relatively large number of enterprises showed their downturn
business scale and profit in 2015. Thus, the domestic offline
retail industry is still facing a harsh reality. In accordance with
statistics, besides, the department store industry of China has
experienced extensive store closing in 2015, which was the
five years’ high. The offline department store industry has
commenced its horizontal integration, and large department
store groups acquired single department stores with declining
performance in order to seize core business districts within
the first and second-tier cities. Meanwhile, online retail
sales of China still maintained a high growth rate in 2015.
In accordance with the data announced by the National
Bureau of Statistics of China, the number of online shopping
population has exceeded 330 million people, while the amount
of online shopping sales was increased from RMBO.5 trillion
in 2010 to RMB3.5 trillion. The proportion of gross social
consumption retail sales was increased from 3.5% in 2010 to
12.3%.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

With the effect of various factors, the result of the Group
declined in the current period. To cope with the changing
trend of consumption and demand, the Company adjusted and
shifted its positioning, product mix and 197 brand counters
of each boutique department store. In addition, the Company
consolidated marketing resources of all of its stores, improved
its membership management system, 020 project planning
and measures, so as to solidify the management base and
prepare for long-term development of the Company. Moreover,
in the aspect of store management method, the purposes of
communication cost reduction, efficiency improvement, rapid
integration of resources in a timely manner can be achieved
by adjusting the performance evaluation method, optimizing
workflow and implementing high degree of autonomy in
stores and other measures.

G98 Omni-channel Intelligence Service Platform Project

As an important strategic initiative of transition and upgrade,
the Group first introduced 020 omni-channel service concept,
establishing an omni-channel operation model with unique
characteristics of Century Ginwa. The platform applies
e-commerce, mobile Internet, big data and other digital
innovative technologies, which consolidates physical stores,
mobile business, cross-industry unions and other brands and
supplier resources, in order to provide customers with a full
range of service experience.

Since the launching of Century Ginwa G98 omni-channel
intelligence service platform, successful upgrades and
switching of SAP CRM membership management systems
have been achieved. By linking the online/offline membership
management structure, and the indifference of member service
experience on chain retail department stores through cross-
channel, as well as the successful online of mobile client
APP, we have achieved online/offline marketing business
model integration of chain retail department stores, and with
coordination of bidirectional browsing between WEB and WAP
online store, we have established an intelligent order and
commodity management system. 150,000 members have been
recruited during the public beta period in 2015.

XEZERAENTE AHHAAREES
TE-HBEARSHEERKECEY
HERBmAEEEL  mBEAEER197EmR
PEHERL 1T B MBAL - BN RAREB
HERSRFMELZHER WEGEER
BX O208XMEHEERZTFER -FER
AIEREE RARKKNRUERFHEE
BB EFIENER A L BBHR
BEmErL A BEIERE BREE
BEBTEFEG FEBBRAN 5K
KEINERMGREBRAHNBEH

GISEEEEERBEFAER
ERERAFTIMNETBIRER AEEX
BB A0202 EEIRGIE S BB At
LEtHENEEBEELEREA -ZTEME
BETEE BHEBMERERNSLEN
A LA R BRABEME BHER
MEXBBERELAMERER BER
EEESEBREEZFUNRIEES -

AL SIEGISEERBEERBFamBE
SO EBEERLSER TSAP CRMEEEE R
GRRIN AR R - BRITEREETS
EEEBER UEARBREEZREEMR
BRRrEHTEaE UEABHAP K
APPRXIN E4R - BIREHERAR E BT —
BErEHETETE i A WEBEHWAPE
MREREEEOKN R TESER]
FHYRERRER AT —RAF QM
MEERTISEEENHE-



FUTURE PLAN AND OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, despite the adverse effects brought by various
domestic and foreign unfavorable economic factors, the
situation may not have significant difference in the short
run. However, regarding the acceleration of the pace of
reform and further adjustment of economic structure, China’s
economy is in progress while maintaining stability. The “To
increase guarantees and to expand domestic demand” policy
was announced on the Third Plenary Session of the 18th
Central Committee, pursuant to which, it will be beneficial
to retail industry in the long run. It is foreseen that the rapid
urbanization will lead to the change of consumption ratios
and structure, which further stimulates the potential demand
under consumption upgrade. The Group will timely adjust its
strategies and develop future-proof policies for the updated
situation.

As for the G98 Project, the Company will carry out various
online businesses with innovative Internet thinking, enhance
customer retention, and integrate online/offline resources
in order to achieve mutual multi-channel diversion. In 2016,
the cross-border ecommerce acts as a breakthrough to carry
out related business by phases. First of all, the initial phase
is the optimization of project system process, which mainly
focuses on building capabilities, including operation capability,
supply chain capability, IT capability etc., and the planning of
the business model to adopt future development; Secondly,
operation trial phase is to expand online business categories
and brands actively, explore the establishment of supply
chain with overseas direct mail model and the development
of franchise expansion model; Finally, the comprehensive
promotion expansion phase is the improvement of global pure
online shopping model and the promotion and enhancement
of customer experience on the basis of online/offline resources
integration and omni-channel circle interaction.

Chairman’s Statement
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mizEITRNERAT BREREKRE

HEREE ) ITREN T MEBRAKER
SR R SR BRRERRR A
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Chairman’s Statement

ETEHE

Taking into account the in-depth analysis for the current
situation and the objective assessment of the future trends,
coupled with the vision rooted in its retail business, the
Group will continue to note the key factors affecting retail
industry and accelerate the formation of the customer-oriented
business model and capability. Through data exploration and
analysis, management technique utilization and meticulous
analysis on consumer behavior, the Group has enhanced its
management level on targeted marketing. By leveraging the
continuing innovation on marketing techniques, enhancement
of scientific analysis, enforcement of control measures and
increase of efficiency which leads from inputs to outputs,
the product and operation management capabilities and
marketing capabilities will be strengthened. The Group
will also dedicate its effort to guiding and stimulating the
customers’ consumption, which may lead to higher efficiency
in output. Equipped with the SAP-based enterprise resource
planning system and unified management platform, the Group
gradually established its online/offline integrated capabilities
via the implementation of 020 strategic project. It provides
the customers a more convenient shopping experience. The
Group will continuously provide the customers great shopping
experiences by understanding and determining the customers’
real needs. Meanwhile, sales area, customer base and
commodity resource coverage have been gradually increased
in order to optimize business structure of the Company and
become the source of future growth for continued expansion.
In the aspect of existing business expansion, based on the
successful practice and experience of the trendy department
store and supermarket business of the Company, the existing
business will be integrated and optimized, while increasing the
coverage of second-tier cities in Shaanxi to achieve healthy
growth of scale.

In the aspect of business diversification which increases profit
sources, we will further develop brand agency business and
introduce well-known domestic and foreign brands to enter
the northwest market, so as to provide consumers with more
quality choices and provide operational management services
to the franchise stores. By reducing channels to directly provide
goods to consumers, the pattern of profit distribution will thus
be changed.

HNY BT RORAD TR KBS
O AREBREREORELTE
REMBE  REEEEROBRER T
RIBELRP B PL 0E IR

RBAR I B RERRAH0ER R
AR BT RO  LUEF
e R AT - RUFAIBEHT R MARF
85 TERNITEH - RFHRAE N - 3
HRABRERERENFHELS R
REEHE MEEBHENES - 2
LRHSAPE R AR ERA G B R
F AR b BIB020E — BB B A 1
B EHRIE LR TRA LN B
B & B Y 1E AL 0 Y2 TN AR % 0
KEEFHAERL HERATF2HE
BER - ARG S NANERSE TP
KEERERNES A2 T EBEED
B BRI R RBRAR - ERA
EBARS T BRARRRTE KA
TEBLORNEENERAL BHR
BETETEABIL FI ALRE =
RETHNEE ERAREHRIERE-

EHRZ TR FIE & F IR 5 E - I
PInsE — P RREMBAERS SIEBRRA
SN R EATRIE T S RIEEE RM
FLEERE URMAMEBEERHEES
BRG - BAEGERELHME BRMMH
GEHEE NEMENEORENRER-



Besides, the Company will insist its principle of prudent
financial management and strive to control costs. On the basis
of original effective implementation of optimization measures,
the effectiveness of management optimization and capability
building is further enhanced, making it the largest extent
released and reflected on the operation results in 2016. With
our strong brand strength, outstanding operating efficiency,
good financial performance and loyal customer base, the
Company is confident in maintaining its leading position in the
marketplace among the industry and generating better returns
for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to our shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
bankers and business associates for their continued strong
support.

Wu Yijian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEEENWR DM

FINANCIAL RESULTS

Global economy was full of uncertainties, while the economic
environment in China remained complicated. Although the
“stabilising growth” stimulus policies by PRC government
have gradually improved the retail industry, the retail industry
was still under severe hardship due to the short-term sluggish
economic growth and various Macroeconomic factors, such as
weak consumer confidence. During the period under review,
the performance of the Group was inevitably affected by the
aforesaid negative factors.

(i)

(ii)

(ii)

(iv)

Gross revenue of the Group for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016 increased to HK$5,523.5 million
as compared to HK$5,035.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The growth was primarily
contributed from additional three-month gross revenue
during the period.

Annualized area efficiency (annualized gross revenue per
department store average operating area) for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016 was HK$36,300 per
square meter, as compared to HK$39,500 for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Revenue of the Group for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2016 increased to HK$1,975.8 million as
compared to HK$1,722.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2014. The growth was primarily contributed
from additional three-month revenue during the period.

The rental income and management and administrative
service fees of the Group for the fifteen months ended
31 March 2016 reached HK$255.1 million, as compared
to HK$214.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2014. The growth was primarily contributed from
additional three-month revenue during the period.

The Group’s operating profit (EBIT) for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016 was HK$299.5 million
as compared to HK$226.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2014. The operating profit margin (profit
from operation over gross revenue) remained at 5%.

ECE

W REEIRBRMEE - M H B EHER
SRR ASEERAERE o BN - BEE T BIBUT HETT
[RIERIBROBEZRTHNETER B
RERESIREHADATE  MLES
BRBKEERNR HEELRE TEED
RERP - NEBEHAN AEEHRBETA
BRWZE LR REAZNRZE -

(i) rEBEE-ZT—XR"F=ZA=1+—
BitE+hRA@EAzBKEEZEMNE
5,523,500,0008 ;0 ma & - &
—UE+-_A=Z=+—HLEFEAE
5,035,500,000/8 7L ¥ pIE Z R
HINFEIN =B R B s B/ -

(i) BE_F-—R"F=ZA=t+—HL
THEAZF R (FELE
Wambr A B EmE FIEEER)
REFJ7K36,3008 T MEZE =
E-MET_A=+—HLEFER
39,500/ 7T °

iy XEBH=E_ZT—NF=A
=Z=+—BiI+REBEAZKkEHE M
%1,975,800,000/8 70 ME & =%
—NF+_A=Z+—HIEFEAE
1,722,400,000/ 70 12 NE ZH N
HABEIIN=EAkEZER

vy HE-_Z—XEF=ZA=+—HI
THEAR AEEZHSWARER
N ATE AR 7% B UL A #£255,100,00078
T mMEE-_E—WNFE+_A=+—
B IFF € &214,500,00058 7T < 3840
FEARBREI=ZEAREZE
,’%ﬁo

v) AKEBHEE-_ZT-—A~F=A=+—
Bit+REA Z&L%F (FBRH
#) /299,500,000 7T & = —
E-NFE+_A=1+—BILEEA
226,000,000/ JT © 4 & i Fl) & (4
5 I BR LA BN 25 ) M FE RS % o



Management Discussion and Analysis

(vi) Due to the increase in market value of the Saigo
Property, the Group recorded a pre-tax gain of HK$42.9
million for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
(year ended 31 December 2014: HK$166.6 million) for
appreciation in the value of the investment property.

(vii)  Net finance costs for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016 were HK$258.1 million (year ended 31
December 2014: HK$146.2 million). The change in net
finance cost was mainly due to increase in balances of
bank loans and the additional three-month net finance
cost during the period.

(viii)  The Group's profit for the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016 and profit attributable to shareholders of
the Company were HK$36.6 million (year ended 31
December 2014: HK$142.2 million) and HK$27.2 million
(year ended 31 December 2014: HK$120.1 million)
respectively.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2016, the Group’s consolidated net asset value
was HK$5,439.6 million (31 December 2014: HK$5,561.9
million). As at 31 March 2016, the Group had cash at bank
and on hand amounting to HK$473.6 million (31 December
2014: HK$357.7 million). The current ratio of the Group as
at 31 March 2016 was 0.60 (31 December 2014: 0.61). The
gearing ratio, being bank loans less cash at bank and on hand
and short-term investments divided by the total equity, as at
31 March 2016, was 0.30 (31 December 2014: 0.26).

The capital raising activities during the period are disclosed in
note 27 to the financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Looking back to the period, the PRC retail industry will
continue to face challenges and be subject to internal
and external factors including macroeconomic fluctuation,
government policy guidance, rapid growth of other retail
channels such as e-commerce and rising costs.

By adhering to the principle of managing its financial
resources in a prudent manner, the Group will optimize its cost
structure, improve its management efficiency and strengthen
its capability. It will strive to make progress in the PRC market
which is full of opportunities and challenges, in order to
create values for its customers and maximize the returns to its
shareholders.

Cooperation with Investment Fund

After successful introduction of Hony Capital, a leading
private-equity firm in China sponsored by Legend Holdings,
in late 2010 to acquire the Company's convertible bonds
amounting to HK$1,330.5 million, the cooperation between
Hony Capital and the Group has become closer. In December
2012, Hony Capital had not only made additional capital
contribution to the Group of US$60 million (approximately
HK$470 million) for business expansion and as working capital,
but also used all of its existing convertible bonds to subscribe
for non-redeemable convertible preferred shares which
reduced the debt burden of the Group, substantially increased
shareholders’ capital and strengthened the financial position.
As at the date of this report, Hony Capital held 28.34% of
the Company’s ordinary share capital in issue and was the
Company’s second largest shareholder.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Launch G98 omni-channel platform to facilitate
information management

As a traditional business form that once was designed to meet
pure shopping needs of consumers, department stores face
challenges brought by goods homogenization, same marketing
model, regular price competition and rising operating cost in
recent years. On the other hand, the rise of Post-80s and 90s
consumers who have grown in the Internet era and whose
consumption habits and behaviours are substantially different
from that of their parents has hit department stores and
shopping malls in the online shopping era. Facing intense
competition, all retail business forms attempt to expand their
presence into the areas of other forms, and omni-channel
competition has become an irreversible trend.

During the period, the Group successfully launched and
upgraded its dedicated Online-to-Offline (020) team in order
to facilitate the integration of its online and offline operations,
whereby its online sales will boost its offline sales which will
enable the Group to achieve omni-channel marketing and
comprehensive customer services. In the long term, the Group
expects to analyze its customers’ consumption behaviours
through data mining, in order to promote accurate marketing
and guide consumption.

In addition to placing great efforts in marketing strategy, the
implementation of information management also marks an
important step for the Group to improve its management.
The Group has been running SAP ERP, the world’s leading
enterprise resources and information management system,
since August 2013, with the aim of optimizing management
process, improving operational efficiency, and achieving
synergies across channels and interaction across business
forms. SAP ERP has covered the majority of the Group’s
department stores.

Optimize business structure and expand into second-
and third-tier cities

While making innovations in marketing, the Group also
strengthened its core competitiveness of retail commerce by
providing outstanding shopping experiences and services,
improving tenant mix and gradually expanding the coverage of
its sale region, customer base and brand resources.
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Most of the Group’s department stores are mixes of
department stores and shopping malls. Saigo Store joined
the department store as an anchor store, providing food and
beverage, recreational and entertainment elements to reinforce
its ability to attract customers and promoting experience-based
consumption to withstand online shopping while meeting
consumers’ purchasing demand.

The Group aims to finish adjusting the positioning and brand
mix of its boutique department stores in the coming year to
reinforce its operational strengths. During the adjustment
period, its results of operation will be negatively affected
to a certain extent. The Group will expand its mid-end
department store and supermarket business at the same time
into second and third-tier cities in northwest China. In respect
of supermarkets, it will give high priority to building its chain
operation and management system, optimizing its supply chain
system this year. It may expand its scale in Xi"an and second-
tier cities in Shaanxi Province in the future. In the future, the
Group will continue to identify potential business opportunities
to achieve benign growth.

Merger & Acquisition

On 4 December 2014, Century Ginwa Company Limited
("Ginwa Bell Tower"”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the agreement with Shanghai
Huade Investment Company Limited (“Shanghai Huade")
pursuant to which Shanghai Huade agreed to procure Xi'an
Yigao Property Development Company Limited (the “Project
Company”) to develop the property as commercial part of
project known as “Xi‘an Centre” in Xi‘an Hi-tech Industries
Development Zone of Xi'an, the PRC, comprising the
commercial part of a gross floor area of approximately 69,061
square meters and 457 car parking spaces (the “Property”) in
accordance with the requirements of Ginwa Bell Tower, and
Ginwa Bell Tower agreed that upon the completion of the
development of the Property, it will purchase the Property for
an aggregate consideration of RMB1,651,112,750 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,981,335,300). In this regard, the
Company had obtained the approval from the shareholders at
the special general meeting on 6 February 2015.

Blasting demolition of existing buildings of the project took
place on 15 November 2015. Relevant project construction
is expected to commence in mid-2016 and is expected to be
completed in 2018. Since the project is located in the central
business district of Xi‘an, it allows the Group to establish its
presence in such premium location and enhance the market
share and market influence.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continues to explore merger and acquisition
opportunities and quality commercial properties across
northwest China to further increase its market share.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group’s contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 30 to
the financial statements.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, the
Group's operation of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets earned revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi.
Except for the exchange differences in translation of Renminbi
into Hong Kong dollar for the purpose of presentation of
the consolidated financial statements and certain bank loans
which are denominated in United States dollar and Hong Kong
dollar, the Directors believe that the Group was not subject
to other significant exposure to foreign exchange risk as most
of the transactions, assets and liabilities of the Group were
denominated in Renminbi.

SEASONAL OR CYCLICAL FACTORS
During the period, the Group’s business operations were not
significantly affected by any seasonal and cyclical factors.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2016, the number of the Group’s staff was
approximately 9,700 (31 December 2014: approximately
10,200), including directly employed approximately 2,300 (31
December 2014: approximately 2,400) full time employees,
and the remaining were concession sales staff managed on
behalf of the suppliers. Most of the employees are employed
in Mainland China. The directly employed employees’
remuneration, promotion and salary increments are assessed
based on both individual's and the Group's performance,
professional and working experience and by reference to
prevailing market practice and standards. Apart from the
general remuneration package, the Group also granted share
options and discretionary bonus to the eligible staff based on
their performance and contribution to the Group. The Group
regards quality staff as one of the key factors to corporate
success.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian ("Mr. Wu")

Mr. Wu, aged 55, was appointed as Chairman of the Company
on 7 January 2011 and re-designated to an Executive Director
of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr. Wu currently holds
the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the Company, and he
was the executive director from January 2001 to May 2008,
the chairman from May 2003 to May 2008 and the non-
executive director of the Company from January 2011 to 18
February 2013 respectively.

Mr. Wu graduated in Huazhong Normal University with
a Master degree in Economic Management (Political
Economy). He was granted the national titles of “Ten Most
Outstanding Youth of China” in 1996, “Contribution
Award of International Excellent Entrepreneur” in 1997,
"Chinese Excellent Youth Entrepreneur” in 2002 and
“National Outstanding Builders of Socialism with Chinese
Characteristics” in 2004. Mr. Wu is chairman of Ginwa
Enterprise (Group) Inc. (a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange) and the chairman of the board and the
president of Ginwa Investments Holding Group Ltd. (“Ginwa
Investments”). He is also the vice-chairman of the China Civil
Chamber of Commerce, chairman of the Chairmen Board
of China Federation of Industrial Economics, vice-president
of the China Association of Small and Medium Enterprises,
vice-chairman of the China Red Ribbon Foundation, standing
committee member of Shaanxi Province People’s Congress,
expert committee member of The People’s Government of
Shaanxi Province Consult Committee, president of Shaanxi
Business Promotion Association, vice-president of Shaanxi
General Chamber of Commerce, honorable president of
Shaanxi Chamber of Commerce of Shanxi Merchant, honorable
president of Hong Kong Xi'an Trade Association Limited
and vice-president of Shaanxi Pharmaceutical Profession
Association.

Mr. Wu is also the sole director of Maritime Century Limited
("MCL"), the substantial shareholder of the Company. MCL
is wholly and beneficially owned by Ginwa Investments.
Ginwa Investments is held as to 92% beneficially by Mr. Wu.
Therefore, Mr. Wu thru MCL was beneficially interested in
336,166,156 Shares within the meaning of Part XV of SFO.
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Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (“Mr. Chan")

Mr. Chan, aged 63, was re-designated to an Executive Director
and the Vice-chairman of the Company on 7 August 2015.
Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor degree in Social Science
(Economics) from The University of Western Ontario, Canada,
in 1978. He has over 20 years’ experience in marketing and
business development. He was an executive director of Zhi
Cheng Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) with Stock Code: 8130) from
8 April 2014 to 1 April 2015 and Gold Tat Group International
Limited (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
with Stock Code: 8266) from 27 March 2003 to 13 October
2014,

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (“Mr. Choon")

Mr. Choon, aged 48, was appointed as the Executive Director
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 8 March
2010. He holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Choon has over 20 years of experience in
finance, mergers & acquisitions, and corporate restructuring
and held management positions in various listed companies.
Mr. Choon had worked for one of the Big Four international
accountancy firms and another prestigious CPA firm and
had also been engaged in various mergers and acquisitions
exercises. Mr. Choon was the general manager of Finance
Department of Guangnan Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 1203) during its
restructuring exercise from 1999 to 2001. Mr. Choon also
has experience in department store business in the PRC and
held the position of deputy chief operating officer from 2003
to 2007 of Junefield Department Store Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 758)
and was also the director of the jointly controlled entity Wuhan
Plaza. Mr. Choon was appointed as the Chairman Assistant of
the Company since year 2007.
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Mr. Sha Yingjie (“Mr. Sha")

Mr. Sha, aged 59, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 1 July 2007 and holds the directorship of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Sha is currently the
deputy financial controller of Ginwa Investments. He once
worked as the financial controller of Xi’an Supply Station of
XiBei Electrical Engineering Company Limited and the financial
controller of Xi‘an Taiwan Hotel.

Mr. Sha has over 20 years of working experience in commerce
and finance. Mr. Sha received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also holds a master degree in
business administration from The Open University of Hong
Kong. He was awarded China career manager in June 2003
and was appointed taxation practice review inspector by
Xi'an Tax Bureau in the PRC since 2014. He obtained a chief
financial officer qualification certificate in respect of business
administration position in 2007. In 2012, he was admitted
as an affiliate member of The Association of International
Accountants.

Mr. Chen Shuai (“Mr. Chen”)

Mr. Chen, aged 42, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 3 December 2010. He also was appointed
as a member of each of the audit committee and remuneration
committee of the Company on 7 January 2011 and the
nomination committee of the Company on 7 March 2012. He
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Chen joined Hony Capital in 2003. As at the date of this
annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272 ordinary
shares of the Company, representing approximately 28.34% of
the number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue, (ii) the
security interest over 336,166,156 ordinary shares held by MCL
under a share charge created in favour of Glory Keen Holdings
Limited, and (iii) 1,177,068,181 convertible preferred shares
of the Company. Mr. Chen directs investments in financial
services, culture and media, consumer goods and retail and
construction material sectors of Hony Capital. Mr. Chen has
extensive experience in investment management, supplier
management and retail business.

Prior to joining Hony Capital in 2003, Mr. Chen had worked
in an investment company, a PRC retail chain and department
store and a PRC domestic comprehensive supermarket
company. Mr. Chen holds an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from The China Europe International
Business School. He received his bachelor degree in economics
from Beijing Forestry University. Currently, Mr. Chen acts as a
director of Shanghai SMI Holding Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 600649).
He was a non-executive director of China Glass Holdings
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange with Stock
Code: 3300) for the period from 2 January 2009 to 6 March
2014.
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Mr. Cao Yonggang (“Mr. Cao")

Mr. Cao, aged 44, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company on 17 May 2015. He also was appointed as a
member of each of the audit committee and the nomination
committee of the Company on 17 May 2015.

Mr. Cao joined Hony Capital in 2004 and is currently its
managing director. He is responsible for the management of
the risk management and compliance department, human
resources department, department of Hony Capital. As at the
date of this annual report, Hony Capital, through Glory Keen
Holdings Limited, was beneficially interested in (i) 322,727,272
ordinary shares of the Company, representing approximately
28.34% of the number of ordinary shares of the Company in
issue, (ii) the security interest over 336,166,156 ordinary shares
held by MCL under a share charge created in favour of Glory
Keen Holdings Limited, and (iii) 1,177,068,181 convertible
preferred shares of the Company.

Prior to joining Hony Capital, Mr. Cao was an attorney at the
Jingtian & Gongcheng Law Firm. He is currently a supervisor
of Happigo Home Shopping Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 300413).
He was the chairman of supervisory board of Changsha
Zoomlion Heavy Industry Science & Technology Development
Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
with Stock Code: 157) for the period from 22 July 2010 to
29 June 2015. He received a bachelor of arts degree in civil
and commercial law from Tianjin Nankai University, a master
degree in international law from Peking University, a master of
laws degree in international law from the Erasmus University
in Rotterdam and a master of business administration degree
from the China Europe International Business School.
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Mr. Qu Jiagi (“Mr. Qu")

Mr. Qu, aged 57, was re-designated to a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 19 February 2013. Mr. Qu
currently holds the directorship of certain subsidiaries of the
Company and was an Executive Director from 11 August 2007
to 18 February 2013. He is currently executive vice president
of Ginwa Investments. Mr. Qu worked with several other large
department stores and shopping malls in Xi’an, China.

Mr. Qu has over 30 years of working experience in department
store business. Mr. Qu received management education and
training in Mainland China. He also received training in High
Level Business Administration from The Open University
of Hong Kong. He was awarded the “Shaanxi Province
Outstanding Young Entrepreneur” in October 2000 and
“China Professional Operational Management Master” in
2005. Mr. Qu is also a representative of the 13th and 14th
Xi'an City People’s Assembly.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai (“Mr. Tsang”)

Mr. Tsang, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 25 September 2008.
Mr. Tsang is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. Mr. Tsang has over 10 years of experience in accounting
and finance. At present, he practices public accounting.

Mr. Tsang was an independent non-executive director of China
Financial Services Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 605) from 28 May 2007 to
27 May 2016.
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Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (“Mr. Ruan”)

Mr. Ruan, aged 45, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Mr. Ruan
is currently a partner and investment director of Guizhou De
Tian Jin Xin Investment Management Limited, a non-executive
director of Guizhou Hao Yi Duo Dairy Stock Company Limited,
a non-executive director of Food Safety & Nutrition (Guizhou)
Information Technology Limited Company and the chairman of
the supervisory board of New Star Energy Stock Company.

Mr. Ruan was the senior investment manager of Hony Capital
from 2003 to 2009. He previously worked in ZTE Capital
and TCL Ventures as vice president and executive director
respectively and served as a law lecturer mainly for corporate
law, tax law and securities law in the arts and law faculty in
Beijing University of Chemical Technology. During that period,
he was a part-time lawyer in a number of law firms. He has
solid legal practice experience and is familiar with corporate
governance, corporate finance and investment, mergers
and acquisition, business restructuring. He holds a master
of business administration degree from the China Europe
International Business School and a bachelor degree and a
master of economic law degree from the Law School of lJilin
University.

Ms. Sun Zhili (“Ms. Sun”)

Ms. Sun, aged 48, was appointed as an independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 May 2015. Ms. Sun
holds a bachelor’s degree from Nanjing Normal University and
a master’s degree from the University of Houston. She has
over 20 years of working experience in corporate finance and
investment banking field.

Ms. Sun is currently a director of Convoy Capital Hong Kong
Limited. Prior to that she worked as a vice president of
Bosideng International Holdings Limited (a company listed
on the Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 3998) focusing
on mergers and acquisitions and investor relationship
management, an executive director and chief financial officer
of China Mass Media Corporation (a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange), and in different positions in
investment banking in several banks in Hong Kong.
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Dr. Cao Guoqi (“Dr. Cao")

Dr. Cao, aged 52, was appointed as an independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 5 November 2015.
Dr. Cao graduated from the Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics, the University of Hong Kong, and the
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences and holds a Ph.D.
degree in Economics. He has over 20 years of experience in
project financing and investment, finance, fund investment
and management, mergers and acquisitions, and corporate
advisory.

Dr. Cao is the executive director and general manager
of Probest Limited and Master Energy Inc. He is also the
deputy president of the Asian Economics Research Institute
at the Shanghai University of Finance and Economics, an
EMBA professor of Hunan University, a MBA supervisor at
the Advanced Institute of Finance of the Shanghai Jiaotong
University, and a research fellow at the Shanghai Institute of
Development Strategy. From April 2014, he takes the position
as the chairman of SBI China Capital Group. Currently, Dr.
Cao acts as an executive director of China Smartpay Group
Holdings Limited (a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange with Stock Code: 8325), an independent director
of Inner Mongolia Jinyu Group Co., Ltd. (a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange with Stock Code: 600201) and
an independent non-executive director of Dongwu Cement
International Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock Exchange
with Stock Code: 695).

Dr. Cao was an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai Jiaoda Withub Information Industrial Co Ltd. (a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange with
Stock Code: 8205). He was a probationary economist in the
International Currency Department of the Economic and
Financial Affairs Councils, European Communities, as well
as a project coordinator of the World Bank. He co-founded
Shanghai Jingcheng Internet Consulting Co. Ltd. with
Shanghai Jiaotong University, and was elected as Chairman
and CEO.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together
with the audited financial statements for the period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and those of the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Environmental Protection

In order to drive environmental protection proactively, the
management will establish an Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Task Force ("ESG Task Force”) in the
second half year of 2016 to set targets, policies, procedures
and guidelines for ESG matters. Seminars will be held to
enhance the awareness of environmental protection. The ESG
Task Force is responsible to report to the board of directors
periodically the status of execution and recommendations of
improvements.

The Group has implemented energy saving measures in offices
and shopping malls to reduce electricity consumption. In order
to reduce natural resources consumed in our operations, the
Group will continue to monitor and compile statistics on the
actual requisitions and usages of consumables (including tones
and papers).

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group has ensured and will continue to ensure full
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
significant impact on its operations, including but not
limited to laws and regulations in relation to product safety
and liabilities, customer rights protection, employment and
occupational safety and laws and regulations relating to
property leasing and property management.

The management will monitor the impact for any changes in
the relevant laws and regulations from time to time and seek
external advice if considered necessary.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal business activities of the Group are the retail services
at its shopping malls. The risks associated include burglary, fire,
significant incidents, cash storage and in transit. The Group
has followed relevant laws and regulations to set up security
measures to lower the chance of these risks, to protect the
security of human lives and inventories and to minimize any
loss.

For other risks, such as credit risks, interest rate risks, liquidity
risks, currency risks and equity price risks, and risk reduction
measures, please refer to “Financial Risks Management and
Fair Values” in note 28 to the financial statements.

Relationships with key stakeholders

The Group firmly believes that maintaining good relationship
with key stakeholders (including employees, customers,
vendors, governing bodies and shareholders) is the key
element to ensure long-term success and continual profit
growth.

a) Employees

Employees are the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group has established comprehensive
talent recruitment and sound performance appraisal
polices to reward and recognize performing employees
with competitive remuneration package, and to
promote them with career development and progression
by appropriate training and providing them with
opportunities within the Group for career development.

b) Customers

Our customers come from buyers of department stores
and shopping malls. Through good standards of the look,
appearance and actions of employees, the Group creates
a good service model to customers. The Group not only
devotes to set up a consistent labelling system and clear
pricing system, but also endeavors to eradicate the selling
of fake and inferior quality products. The Group treasures
complaints and comments from customers. In order
to provide excellent customer services and to increase
market share and business expansion, the Group has set
up various channels to strengthen the communication
with customers, including customer satisfactory surveys,
customer opinion cards and website of the Company.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Relationships with key stakeholders (continued)

)

d)

e)

Goods and Services Vendors

The Group adheres to open, fair and transparent criteria
in choosing goods suppliers and services providers and
has set up a vendor evaluation system. The evaluation
will base on prices, quality, costs, delivery and after-sales
services after strict execution of purchase procedures and
goods/services inspection standards. In order to ensure
sustainable quality of goods and services supply, the
Group will carry out continual monitoring and periodic
examination of all vendors.

Regulators

The Group operates in the retail business through
different shopping malls which are subject to the
jurisdictions of the national and local regulators.
Along with compliance with applicable laws, rules and
regulations, each shopping mall has taken steps to ensure
that relevant local concerns, customers and changes of
laws or regulations have been accounted for.

Shareholders

For communication, shareholders may contact the
Group via “contact us” section of the website of the
Company. Besides, the Group will also communicate with
shareholders through printed or online version of notices,
announcements, annual and interim reports. Annual
general meeting provides a forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board of the Group.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit and cash flows of the Group for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016 and the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2016 are set out in the
financial statements on pages 65 to 72.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends
in respect of the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 and the four years
ended 31 December 2014 and the assets and liabilities of the
Group as at 31 December 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014 and as at
31 March 2016 are set out on page 6.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 are set out in note
27 to the financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 17 October 2014, the Company adopted the Share
Award Scheme under which the shares of the Company
(the “Awarded Shares”) may be awarded to any member of
management and employee (either full time or part time)
of any member of the Group, Directors (including executive
Directors, non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors), any suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers (professional or otherwise), joint venture and service
providers to any member of the Group from time to time (the
“Selected Participants”) pursuant to the terms of the Scheme
Rules and the Trust Deed of the Share Award Scheme. The
Share Award Scheme became effective on the adoption date
and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 16 October 2024.

The maximum aggregate nominal value of the Awarded Shares
which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1 per cent. of the issued
Share capital of the Company at the date of such award.

When a Selected Participant has satisfied all vesting conditions
specified by the Board of the Company at the time of making
the award and become entitled to the shares of the Company
forming the subject of the award, the trustee shall transfer
the relevant Awarded Shares to that participant. The Selected
Participant however is not entitled to receive any income
or distribution such as dividend derived from the unvested
Awarded Shares allocated to him/her.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company has
purchased 3,070,000 shares of the Company through the
trustee in the open market on the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of Share Award Scheme and no share was granted by
the Company under Share Award Scheme.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the
Company during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s reserves (including
retained profits, if any, and contributed surplus,
subject to equity shareholders’ approval) amounting to
HK$1,214,364,000 (31 December 2014: HK$1,231,279,000)
were available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.
In addition, the share premium of the Company in the amount
of approximately HK$1,366,585,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$1,343,548,000) may be distributed in form of fully paid
bonus shares.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of
the Group and its employees make monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the employer’s
and the employee’s contributions are subject to a cap of
monthly earnings of HK$30,000 and thereafter contributions
are voluntary. As stipulated by the rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement
plans for its employees in the PRC. The Group contributes to
retirement plans at specified percentages of the basic salaries
of its employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 are
set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group and the Company during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 are set out in note
24 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements, no
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 or at any time during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company who held office during the

fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of
this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (redesignated on 7 August 2015)
(Vice Chairman)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sha Yingjie

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (resigned on 17 May 2015)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Shuai (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Cao Yonggang
Mr. Qu Jiaqi

(appointed on 17 May 2015)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (appointed on 17 May 2015)
Ms. Sun Zhili (appointed on 17 May 2015)
Dr. Cao Guoqi (appointed on 5 November 2015)
Ms. Li Ling (resigned on 17 May 2015)

In accordance with Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company, Mr. Chen
Shuai, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter and Mr. Tsang Kwok
Wai will retire from the office of directorship by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Cao Yonggang, Mr.
Ruan Xiaofeng, Ms. Sun Zhili and Dr. Cao Guoqi, the newly
appointed Directors, will be subject to re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with Bye-
Law 86(2) of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from the Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, Ms. Sun Zhili and
Dr. Cao Guogqi, and considers them to be independent for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016. The Company considers
that each of such Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent from the Group based on the Guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 20 to 24.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS (continued)

None of the directors had entered into any service contract
with any member of the Group which is not terminable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND TOP FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the directors and top five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, the
following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered
into and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements
and independent shareholders’ approval, if necessary, had
been made and obtained by the Company in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Continuing connected transactions

On 13 February 2015, the Company’s three subsidiaries,
as lessors, entered into tenancy agreements with Xi'an
Century Ginwa Epin Life Supermarket Company Limited
("Xi'an Epin”), as tenant, in respect of renting at Bell Tower
Store, Hi-Tech Store and Nandajie Store for operations of
supermarket business for a period of three years commencing
from 16 February 2015, at annual rental of RMB5.6 million
(approximately HK$6.7 million), RMBO0.8 million (approximately
HK$1.0 million) and RMBO0.3 million (approximately HK$0.4
million) respectively. Xi'an Epin terminated the tenancy
agreement for Nandajie Store in December 2015. Renting
to Xi‘an Epin for operation of supermarket business in the
Group’s department stores can enhance the product mix.
Xi‘an Epin is wholly-owned by Ginwa Investments, which is
beneficially owned as to 92% by Mr. Wu Yijian, an Executive
Director and Chairman of the Company, and is therefore a
connected person of the Company. The transactions under
the tenancy agreements constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Further details of the significant related party transactions
undertaken in the normal course of business of the Group
are provided under note 31 to the financial statements. None
of these related party transactions constitutes a connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction as defined
under the Listing Rules that is required to be disclosed,
except for those described above in the paragraphs headed
“Continuing connected transactions”, in respect of which the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules have been complied with.

All the continuing connected transactions above have been
reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company who have confirmed that for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016 the continuing connected transactions
have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (i) either on normal commercial terms or
on terms no less favorable to the Group than terms available to
(or from) independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditor to
report on the Group’s continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor's Letter on
continuing connected transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing their conclusions in respect of the non-
exempted continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of
the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to the
Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (the “SFO")) which were required to be entered
into the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or otherwise were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) and/or the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers in the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"), were as follows:

(@) Long positions in the shares of the Company
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issued ordinary capital of the

Name of director Nature of interests shares held Company
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Mr. Wu Yijian Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 29.52%
R—BE4 REZEHEB A

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin  Personal interests 355,000 0.03%

BRNELE (EPN-E
Mr. Sha Yingjie Personal interests 1,105,500 0.10%

DEARFE 1 A 2

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests or short positions in the shares of HK$0.10 each
of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) or any interests which are required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code or any interests which are required to be
entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company

In accordance with the terms of the share option
scheme adopted by the Company pursuant to an
ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 15
February 2011 (the “Share Option Scheme”), the
Company may grant options to the eligible person of
the Company to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the issued ordinary
share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose shares issued in the exercise
of options for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible person for their contribution
to the Group. The Share Option Scheme became
effective on 15 February 2011 and unless otherwise
cancelled or amended according to the Share Option
Scheme, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date. Eligible person under the Share Option Scheme
includes the followings:—

(i) any director, employee or consultant of the
Company, a subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(ii) any discretionary trust whose discretionary
objects include any director, employee or
consultant of the Company, a subsidiary or an
affiliate; or

(i) a company beneficially owned by any director,
employee or consultant of the Company, a
subsidiary or an affiliate; or

(iv) any person or entity whose service to the
Group or business with the Group contributes
or is expected to contribute to the business or
operation of the Group as may be determined by
the directors from time to time.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, (i) the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme of the Company must not exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company as at the date of the
shareholders’ approval of the option limit; and (ii) the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible
person under the Share Option Scheme (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period shall not (when aggregated with any shares of
the Company subject to options granted during such
period under any other share option scheme of the
Company) exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue for any time being.

Any grant of options to any directors, chief executive
or substantive shareholders (as such terms as defined
in the Listing Rules) of the Company, or any of their
respective associates under the Share Option Scheme
or any other share option scheme of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries shall be subject to the prior
approval of the independent non-executive directors
or shareholders of the Company as the case may be.
Without prior separate approval from the Company’s
shareholders, the maximum number of shares issued
and to be issued in respect of which options granted
and may be granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant shall not (i) exceed 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on the date of such grant; and
(i) have an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, in excess of HK$5 million.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

The exercise price of the share options shall be the
higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant; and (iii) the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant (subject to
Scheme adjustments).

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 152,150,000 representing 13.36% of the issued share
capital of the Company. For the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016, 77,000,000 options were granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme. Set out below
are the details of movements in the outstanding options
granted under the Share Option Scheme for the fifteen
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months ended 31 March 2016: FHERRENE S TS
Number of share options
BREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 January during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HK§) exercise period 2015 theperiod  theperiod the period 2016
RZB-RF
R=%-1% B
%@ -A-# BRER/ =t-H
ARALS RILEH (B1) BRRTEH HALTE ArRA AT P31 HATE
Mr. Wu Yijian 200ct 2010 1.26 20 0ct 2010 to 4,375,000 - - 4,375,000 -
19 0ct 2015
R-BEk Z3-%F ZE-ZETAZTRE
+A=1H ZE-RETATAR
200ct 2011 1.96 20 0ct 2011 1o 3,750,000 - - - 3,750,000
19 Oct 2017
“EF ZE--FTAZTAE
TA-+H “E-tETATAE
30 May 2013 1.76 30 May 2013 to 1,150,000 - - - 1,150,000
29 May 2019
23 ZE--ERACTHE
AA=TH ZE-MERAZTAR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' EERTETHRAERERAR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN 7 -HEHERORESZERRERS
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND (#&)
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
(b) Long position in the share options of the (b) ALTEREZRER (&)
Company (continued)
Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Exercised Expired asat
price Vesting and 1 January during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HKS) exercise period 2015 theperiod  theperiod the period 2016
RZB-RE
RZB-1E =h
k& -R-H Angl/ =t-8
ARALA REAH (B1) BRRTEH HATE BARA B X% HATE
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, 20 0ct2010  1.26 20 0ct 2010 to 625,000 - - 625,000 -
Edwin 19 0ct 2015
BRALE —%-%f% “E-FETACTRE
TAZ+H “E5-RETATAR
20 Oct 2011 1.9 20 0ct 2011 to 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
19 0ct 2017
I ZE-—E+AZTRE
tA-1R “E-tETATAR
28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
27 May 2019
ZE--F ZE-CERAZTN\RE
RAZT/\B ZE-hERRZTtR
Mr. Qu Jiagi 200ct 2010 126 20 0ct 2010 to 625,000 - - 625,000 -
19 0ct 2015
BRHLE —%-%% “E-FETACTRE
TAZ+H ZE5-RETATAR
200ct 2011 1.9 20 0ct 2011 to 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
19 Oct 2017
_E-F “E—EtA-TRE
tA=tH “E-tETATAE
28May 2013 173 28 May 2013 to 4,000,000 - - - 4,000,000
27 May 2019
_3-zf ZF-ZFRACTNRE
EAZTNH ZE-NERAZTtA
Mr. Sha Yingjie 200ct 2011 196 20 0ct 2011 to 1,875,000 - - - 1,875,000
19 Oct 2017
DEAEE 3% “E--E1AZTRE
tA-tR “E—tEtATAR
28 May 2013 1.73 28 May 2013 to 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
27 May 2019
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the
Company (continued)

EERFETBRAEREAQFR
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(%)

(b) ZFLATRBREZRAE (&)

Number of share options
EREHR
Outstanding Forfeited/  Outstanding
Exercise as at Granted Exercised Expired as at
price Vesting and 1 January during during during 31 March
Name of grantee  Date of grant  (HK§) exercise period 2015 theperiod  theperiod the period 2016
RZ8-XE
R=%-1F B
%8 -A-A BRER/ =t-8
RRALA RiAH (B1) BRRGES WA AR B P31 BATE
Ms. Li Ling 30May2013 176 30 May 2013 to 29 May 2019 1,150,000 - - 1,150,000 -
Ergt it S Z3-ZFIA=THE
(Note 1) IA=+H “T-AFRAZTAR
(Hit1)
Other employees of the20 Oct 2010 1.26 20 0ct 2010 to 19 Oct 2015 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 -
Group
(in aggregate)
rEEEfEE  CF-3F Z2-EETACTHE
(54) +h-+E “2-RETATAA
200c2011 19 200ct 20111019 Oct 2017 29,550,000 - - 3,400,000 26,150,000
It S E I
+AZ1H “EtETATAR
8 May2013 173 28 May 2013 t0 27 May 2019 49,355,000 - - 5100,000 44,255,000
ZE-cE ZE-ZERAZTNRE
RA-TI\E ZE-NERAZTLA
Other eligible 29 Jan 2015 124 29 Jan 201510 28 Jan 2017 - 77,000,000 17,530,000 - 59,470,000
ersons
EadBAL  -3-3f ZE-LE-AZTNRE
—AZtNhA “I-t5-A-T)\A
Total 111,555,000 77,000,000 17,530,000 18,875,000 152,150,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

(b) Long position in the share options of the Company
(continued)

a.

The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 20 October 2010 was
HK$1.26 (Adjusted).

The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 20 October 2011 was
HK$1.84 (Adjusted).

The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 28 May 2013 was HK$1.78.

The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 30 May 2013 was HK$1.73.

The closing price per share immediately before
the date of grant of 29 January 2015 was
HK$1.24.

(Adjusted) Price is adjusted due to the 4 to 1 share

Note:

consolidation with effect from 13 December
2012.

Ms. Li Ling resigned as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 17 May
2015.

All the interests stated above represents long positions.
Neither long nor short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO as
at 31 March 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN

THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the
directors or chief executives of the Company had, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of the SFO, nor were they taken to or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO, any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) or
any interests which are required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange or any interests which are required to
be entered into the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or are required pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Interests of shareholders discloseable pursuant to the SFO

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 March 2016,
the Company had been notified of the following substantial
shareholders’ interests and short positions, being interests of
5% or more of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital.
These interests are in addition to those disclosed above
in respect of the directors or chief executive officer of the
Company.
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EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) TERR (&)
Long position/short position in the shares of the (a) ZAATRGBZRAE EA&
Company

Approximate

percentage

of the issued

Number of ordinary share

Long positions/ issued ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder short positions  Nature of interests shares held the Company

BADE

FrsE BT BRATEER

RR&% RE/ER REtE LERYA REzZBHBA L

Maritime Century Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.52%
RkE nEER (Hizt1)

Ginwa Investments Holding Group ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 336,166,156 (Note 1) 29.52%

Ltd.

SREREBREEERAT K& RGN BN AER (Hit1)

Glory Keen Holdings Limited Long positions  Corporate interests 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
REARERAT kB NAER (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P. Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
K& REAFEERAER (Hit2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
ke RREHZERAER (Hiet2)

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited  Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
K& RGN EERAER (Hit2)

Hony Group Management Limited ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
kB RREHZERARER (Hiet2)

Hony Managing Partners Limited Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
K& REAFEERAER (Hit2)

Exponential Fortune Group Limited ~ Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
ke RREHZERAER (Hit2)

Mr. Zhao John Huan Long positions  Interest in a controlled corporation 658,893,428 (Note 2) 57.86%
BeRE K& REAFEERAER (Hit2)

ETHENHRRUATHR
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EEEHE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b) Long position/short position in the underlying (b)
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as

defined in Part XV of the SFO)

BR#B

Name of shareholder

Long positions/

short positions

RE/HE

FERR (&)
RAEDFAREITETRET 24
BROCRA ER (ERRES

REIERBIEXVER)

Nature of interests

REEME

Number of

issued ordinary

shares held

&
EERHE

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
ordinary share
capital of

the Company
BALT
BRTEER
REzBHBA L
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Hony Managing Partners Limited

Exponential Fortune Group Limited

Mr. Zhao John Huan

o

Glory Keen Holdings Limited
RERRERAT

Hony Capital Fund 2008 L.P.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P

Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP Limited

Hony Group Management Limited

Long positions
KR

Long positions
KR
Long positions
KR
Long positions
KR
Long positions
KR
Long positions
KR
Long positions

KR

Long positions
RkE

Corporate interests
NAER

Interest in a controlled corporation

REEHEBRERL

Interest in a controlled corporation

REBHEBRERL

Interest in a controlled corporation

REBHEBRERL

Interest in a controlled corporation

REEHEBRERL

Interest in a controlled corporation

REEHEBRERL

Interest in a controlled corporation

REBHEERERL

Interest in a controlled corporation

REBHEBRERLS

1,294,774,999 (Note 3)
(Hii3)

1,294,774,999 (Note 3)
(Hii3)

1,294,774,999 (Note 3)
(Hii3)

1,294,774,999 (Note 3)
(Hii3)

1,294,774,999 (Note 3)
(Hii3)

1,294,774,999 (Note 3)
(Hii3)

1,294,774,999 (Note 3)
(Hii3)

1,294,774,999 (Note 3)
(Hii3)

113.71%

113.71%

113.71%

113.71%

113.71%

113.71%

113.71%

113.71%



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

(b)

Long position/short position in the underlying
shares equity derivatives of the Company (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (continued)

Notes:

(1

MCL held 336,166,156 Shares. Ginwa Investments
holds the entire issued share capital of MCL. Mr. Wu
Yijian beneficially owns 92% equity interests in Ginwa
Investments. As such, Mr. Wu Yijian was deemed to
be interested in 336,166,156 Shares by virtue of his
shareholding in MCL.

The long position of 658,893,428 Shares represents (i)
the 322,727,272 Shares held by Glory Keen Holdings
Limited (“Glory Keen”); and (ii) the security interest
held by Glory Keen over the 336,166,156 Shares held
by MCL under share charge. Hony Capital Fund 2008,
L.P. holds the entire issued share capital of Glory Keen.
Hony Capital Fund 2008 GP, L.P. is the sole general
partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, L.P.. Hony Capital
Fund 2008 GP Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Hony Group Management Limited, is the sole general
partner of Hony Capital Fund 2008, GP, L.P.. Hony
Managing Partners Limited owns 80% equity interests
in Hony Group Management Limited. Hony Managing
Partners Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Mr. Zhao John
Huan held 100% of the issued share capital of
Exponential Fortune Group Limited. Each of the above-
mentioned parties is therefore deemed to be interested
in the interest held by Glory Keen.

The long position of 1,294,774,999 underlying
Shares represents the interest in the 1,294,774,999
conversion shares which may be issued under the
Hony Convertible preferred shares. The exercise of the
conversion rights attaching to the Hony Convertible
preferred shares are subject to the restrictions as stated
in the paragraph headed “Other terms of the Preferred
Shares” under the section headed “Subscription
Agreement” in the circular dated 19 November 2012.
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TERR (&)

(b) RAQDREFTETAET 24
ERBZRAEER (ERREH
REEEHIEXVER) (48)

Fit -

(1) MCL¥E%E336,166, 1564 % (7 - &
EREFBEMCLZ 2B TR
R R—BELEERFESTER
BR%ZEm AL R —B 5%
A EAEMCLZ B w4 4R 1E+5
336,166, 156F% f& 7 -

(2) & A658,893,428R K% (i)
LEmEiRER AR ([&8E])
FT#5H5322,727,272B B 1%
RODEMCLIREE R D W2 5 A
336,166,156/ R PARFA 2
K # #E 25 ° Hony Capital Fund
2008 LPEASZZZHME
1T A > Hony Capital Fund
2008 GP, L.P.&Hony Capital
Fund 2008 L.P.Z I — @
4 % A ° Hony Capital Fund
2008 GP Limited/&Hony Group
Management LimitedZ & & M
B /A7 B AHony Capital Fund
2008, GP, LPzM—EmE R
A ¢ Hony Managing Partners
Limited# 580% Hony Group
Management Limited 2 % 7 #
# ° Hony Managing Partners
Limited ZExponential Fortune
Group LimitedZz & W B R
&) ot < BUSE A 35 B Exponential
Fortune Group Limited 100% &
BATIRAR . Bt T RA MR A
REEMFEE 2 ERRHEARE

o

BX

(3) KA&1,294,774,999 /% #H

f& 12 8 7 9 B AR ¥ 54 % AT ]
B & S AR M oAl g T A B 1T 2
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, the directors and chief executives of
the Company are not aware that there is any person who, as at
31 March 2016, had an interest or short position in the Shares
and underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or who is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or
more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meeting of any
other member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2016, director of the Company had the
following interests in business which competed or were likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Group’s
business:

Name of director Name of company

Nature of business

FERR(4E)

R EXHBEEIN R_F—XRNFEF=A
=t+—B BARAEZFNEIBTRAE
PATAN - M0 A A ] A £ PEAR] AR £ 3R 4B B AR
PR EAERNERARER S M
BIRBIEXVERF2 K% 530 88 2 #E m [ A
NAIWE  HEERIBEERTEWSENA]
EEABE TRAEBEFEMKE QT
ZBRAGRE 2 EAERIRAEEZ5%
SA ERERR o

EENGBEK ER
RZE—RE=A=+—0 XAQTES

B’E T BN RE XS E KB EEXE
FHA BB FHN RGO

Nature of interests

EsnE ACIEE FBMHE EEMEE

Mr. Wu Yijian Ginwa Investments Project investment, entity 92% of the equity
investment, real estate interest in Ginwa
development, property sales, Investments
leasing and agency services,
department store and
supermarket operations

R—BELE TERE EERE CERE % - RESEREZ292%K#E
EHE HERRERS &2
BEEGRBRTS

Note: K&t -

Although Mr. Wu Yijian has competing interests in Ginwa Investments
by virtue of his common directorship, the Directors consider that such
competition, if any, is neither significant nor material to the Group as
a whole. Furthermore Mr. Wu will fulfill his fiduciary duties in order
to ensure that he will act in the best interest of the Shareholders and
the Company as a whole at all times. Hence, the Group is capable of
carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length from,
the businesses of such companies.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
respective associates had any interest which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

BEERNR - BALZAREZTSFNHERNETE
RERABRTF RS ETR/ZREHRT (WH)
HAEBEEBERBME L TE2HEKR IS R
AR ETEBEE AR R EARR KA
RAZBEHENRTE - FEt - NEBEBEHE
SMRATLA R 2 F G BAR AT EELEHE
e

R EXFBEEEN REEFIRESE
ZHMBEANFETMEZIREEEREEE

BHF AR F 2 (M-



MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest
customer and five largest customers taken together were less
than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016. The aggregate purchases attributable
to the Group’s largest supplier and five largest suppliers taken
together were less than 30% of the Group's total purchases
for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholders
(which, to the best knowledge of the directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest major customers
and suppliers during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Save as disclosed in the note 27 to the financial statements,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the laws in Bermuda.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no contract concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group was entered into or existed during the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.

MATERIAL LITIGATION

The Group's litigations are disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors as at
the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float
of more than 25% of the Company’s shares in the market as
required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITOR

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 30 June 2016
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance practices and business ethics in the firm
belief that they are essential for maintaining and promoting
investors’ confidence and maximizing shareholders’ returns.

The Board perpetually reviews its corporate governance
practices and internal control policy and procedures from
time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of
stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Board considers that the Company has complied
throughout the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for certain
deviations. The corporate governance of the Company for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 is stated as follows:

CG Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. None of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific term.
However, all the directors (Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Non-executive) are subject to retirement at least
once every three years under Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to ensure that the Company's corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in the CG
Code.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company thus
considers all the Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.

CG Code Provision E.1.2 stipulates that the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. He
should also invite the chairmen of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees to attend. The chairman of the
Board and the chairmen of the audit committee and the
remuneration committee were not able to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 15 May 2015 due
to other important business engagement. They had delegated
the Chief Executive Officer to chair and be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.
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On 7 August 2015, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter was re-
designated from an independent non-executive director to
an executive director and the vice-chairman of the Company.
Following his re-designation, the Board comprised ten
Directors and of which three were Independent Non-executive
Directors. According to Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the
Company must appoint Independent Non-executive Directors
representing at least one-third of the Board. The Company only
had three Independent Non-executive Directors which were
short of Independent Non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board and thus failed such requirements.

Subsequent to the appointment of Dr. Cao Guogi as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 5
November 2015, the Company has then complied with the
requirements of Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry
of all the directors, all the directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model
Code throughout the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board Composition

As at 31 March 2016 and the date of this annual report, the
Board is comprised of four executive Directors, three non-
executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors.

The followings are the members of the Board:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman)

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sha Yingjie

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Shuai (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Cao Yonggang

Mr. Qu Jiaqi
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Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng

Ms. Sun Zhili

Dr. Cao Guoqi

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to
the affairs of the Group. Each executive Director is suitably
qualified for his position, and has sufficient experience to
hold the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and
efficiently. Biographical information of the Directors are set out
in the section headed “Biographies of Directors” of this annual
report.

OPERATIONS OF THE BOARD

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks
in pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. According to
CG Code Provision A.1.1, the Board should meet regularly
and Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
at approximate intervals. During the fifteen months ended
31 March 2016, the Board met regularly and frequently
for the review and approval on the business of department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets. Details of Directors’
attendance of the Board and the shareholders’ meetings held
for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 are set out as
follows:

Name of Director

B

TRERMSE

BYLIFHTER
LEERLE
e B U 5t A4
FER L
EERHEE LT

2REFARAKEEHRAT D EME
EEN - BRTEFTYNEERBETER
7 A B MERBETHRBE BRETR
B BREENEEABTINAFRIES
JBEE] —fi-

EEECER
EXZCREEBETORBEREIERME &
RREZLENMBRR URBIESE
F R E R R - N ERAEB B R B
BoRBEREIBTIREANLURZA
T EFSRTHETEFEER EFS
EREEFETHRIAR NEF—KR-
REBE-T—A"F=-A=+—HIL+Af#
A EZeFHREEETEH Uik
EMREAERS BYOTLORBETS
ZEB - ARBE_T-R"F=ZA=1—
BIEtAEARTZERTESRE MERAK
 EFZHELEEIET

Board
Meeting AGM & SGM
RRBF
XER

EEEe3 RREIAE

Executive Directors

HITEE

Mr. Wu Yijian 3/7 0/4
R-BEL

Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (redesignated to Executive Director on 7 August 2015) 77 2/4
RAXEE(RZE-—RF N \ALtBRAEANTES)

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin 717 4/4
RN ELE

Mr. Sha Yingjie 6/7 0/4
DENEE

Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (resigned on 17 May 2015) 377 0/4
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Name of Director

EBAR

Board
Meeting AGM & SGM
BRBF
KER

Exeed RRBAKAE

Non-Executive Directors
FHITEE
Mr. Chen Shuai
PR A 2 A
Mr. Cao Yonggang
KMl A
Mr. Qu Jiaqi
HREEE

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHITEE

Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai

Cifeie

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng

B & 5t &

Ms. Sun Zhili

BB L

Dr. Cao Guoqi

ERHEB L

Ms. Li Ling (resigned on 17 May 2015)

Bt (R-_Z—hFAA+LHEE)

All Directors are provided with relevant materials relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. They have separate
and independent access to the senior management and the
company secretary of the Company at all times and may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense.
When queries are raised by Directors, steps would be taken
to respond as promptly and as fully as possible. All Directors
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda of
Board meetings. Notices of at least 14 days of Board meetings
are given to the Directors and Board procedures comply with
the Bye-Laws of the Company, as well as relevant rules and
regulations.

FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The overall management of the Company’s operation is vested
in the Board. The Board carries out its functions according to
the powers conferred upon it by the Bye-Laws of the Company
which is uploaded onto the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company, and since the date of uploading, no
significant changes have been made.

717 2/4
3/7 0/4
3/7 0/4
717 4/4
4/7 0/4
3/7 0/4
017 0/4
3/7 0/4
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The main functions and duties conferred on the Board include:

management of the overall business and strategic
development;

- deciding business plans and investment plans;

- convening general meetings and reporting to the
shareholders; and

—  exercising other powers, functions and duties conferred
by shareholders in general meetings.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive Officer
and the senior management of the Company. The delegated
functions and work tasks are periodically reviewed. Approvals
must be obtained from the Board prior to any significant
transactions entered into by the aforesaid officers.

The Directors may have access to the advice and services of
the company secretary of the Company to ensure that the
board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. In addition, the Directors may, upon reasonable
request, seek independent professional advice under
appropriate circumstance at the Company's expenses.
The Board shall resolve to provide separate, appropriate,
independent and professional advice to the Directors to assist
the relevant Directors in discharging their duties.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment to
the Board meeting and scrutinizing the Group’s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision; in
particular, they bring an impartial view to issues relating to the
Group’s strategy, performance and control. All independent
non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and industry expertise and management
experience and have provided their professional advice to
the Board. The independent non-executive Directors provide
independent advice on the Group’s business strategy, results
and management to ensure that all interests of shareholders
are taken into account, and the interests of the Company and
its shareholders are protected.
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The Board has four independent non-executive Directors,
in compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, which
requires that every board of directors of a listed issuer must
include at least three independent non-executive directors.
In addition, at least one independent non-executive Director,
namely, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai, possesses appropriate
professional accounting qualifications or financial management
expertise in accordance with Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
The Company has appointed four independent non-executive
Directors, representing one-third of the Board, in compliance
with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations, the
Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing in preparation
of accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring
such accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cashflow for that period.
The Company’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all
relevant statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors are responsible for ensuring that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently; and that judgments and estimates made are
prudent and reasonable.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given an induction
training so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding
of the Group’s business and of his duties and responsibilities
under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory and
regulatory requirements.

The Company also provides regular updates on the business
development of the Group. The Directors are regularly briefed
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable statutory requirements to ensure compliance
and upkeep of good corporate governance practices. In
addition, the Company has been encouraging the Directors
to enroll in professional development courses and seminars
relating to the Listing Rules, companies ordinance and
corporate governance practices organized by professional
bodies or chambers in Hong Kong. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training records
pursuant to the Code.

All Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development and refresh their knowledge and
skills during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 for
ensuring their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. Such professional development was completed by
way of attending briefings, conference, courses, forum and
seminars, teaching, self-reading and participating in business-
related researches which are relevant to the business or
directors’ duties.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual as this
ensures better checks and balances and hence better corporate
governance.

Mr. Wu Yijian is the Chairman of the Company. The Chairman’s
responsibility is to oversee the functioning of the Board and
the strategies and policies of the Group.

Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible
for monitoring the daily operation and management of the
Company.
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TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-executive Directors (including the
Independent Non-executive Directors) has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term
of three years commencing from the Listing Date, renewable
automatically by three years on the expiry of such term and
every successive period of three years thereafter, subject to
the relevant provisions under the Company’s amended and
restated Bye-Laws requiring no less than one-third of all the
Directors (i.e. both Executive and Non-executive Directors
are included) to retire from office by rotation at each Annual
General Meeting of the Company, provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.

APPOINTMENTS AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wu Yijian, Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter and Mr. Choon
Hoi Kit, Edwin have entered into a service contract with the
Company for a specific term, and all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at an annual general
meeting at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Bye-Laws of the Company provide that any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy in the Board
shall hold office until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting, and any Director appointed by the Board as an
addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established (i) Audit Committee, (ii)
Remuneration Committee, and (iii) Nomination Committee
with defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
board committees, which explain their respective roles and the
authorities delegated to them by the Board, are available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able
to seek independent professional advice and other assistance
under appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company, with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements
set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee shall consist of not less than 3 members.
Currently, the Audit Committee consists of three Independent
Non-executive Directors: Ms. Sun Zhili, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai
and Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, and two Non-executive Director,
Mr. Chen Shuai and Mr. Cao Yonggang. Ms. Sun Zhili is the
chairman of Audit Committee.

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to review the
financial reporting process of the Group and its internal control
system, oversee the audit process and perform other duties
assigned by the Board and make recommendations for the
Company to improve the quality of financial information to be
disclosed. It also reviews the annual and interim reports of the
Company prior to their approval by the Board.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, the Audit
Committee reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and recommended the appointment
of the external auditor. Also, the Audit Committee together
with management and independent auditors have reviewed
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group,
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial reporting
matters including the review of the audited results for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, the unaudited interim
results for the twelve months ended 31 December 2015, and
the unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2015 prior to their approval by the Board.

TRERMSE

EEZEE
ETeEAVABTRESEN()BERE
B -(WFMEEER(NNEXREEE &
EZEeNBESE (EPHRHEBEA
EREFSERTHENEENRAAG R
BB -EELEeERETREER
BAIRE SABER REZBRT A
SEXBUBEEEAREMKBE BRHAX
UNEIPES -

BERERESE
ARAFDIRE ETRAIMEIAFE 2 R
R EEREBHEBE BREER -

BERLZEEREL=AKEANK ABRE
KREBRE=Z2BIFATET  AREX
T DEESAE MBS S L ARRAIE
MITESE  BRAD B4 M E KB K4 - AR
LLREREZEGXR-

ENREG T RERAERRNASEZY
BEREREFLAEARNTERZRR EBEZ
BREMBTEFSRIKR I EMBBG AR
AANBIRHER UREETRENB
BRZER I BRZEETEEES
SELAER BABHARAZFER
RIS -

BE T RF-A=1+—HIt+HE
A ZERZE@FMAAKENEGH RN
B W R EIMNER AR E LB -
Bt #EEZE8g BREERERELZ
BEEEMAEEMRAZ G REINE
MU wmEL ABEENRYHERE
B BREESSFELLER FHEE=
E-RF=ZA=+—HLETREAZEE
RER BE_ZT-—HRF+-_HA=+—H
t+H-EAzREERTMRERBE
E-RAFERNA=THIEREAZAEER
RHEIRE-

ETHENHRRUATHR

BEhEN—/E—&



91/G10Z Hoday [enuuy  paywi] sbuip|oH |1e1dy emuln Ainjusd ‘

Corporate Governance Report
TERERBERE

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, three
meetings were held by the Audit Committee. The attendance
record of each member of the Audit Committee at the
meetings of the Audit Committee is set out below:
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Attendance/
Number of
Audit
Committee
Name of Director Meeting
HiE/ B
3R
EEHA 22¥A
Ms. Sun Zhili 2/3
BRBR L
Mr. Chen Shuai 3/3
BREDSE &
Mr. Cao Yonggang 1/3
ERNFAE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 3/3
BEE %L
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 2/3
=13
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (redesignated to Executive Director on 7 August 2015) 13
BRaAartE (R_Z-—AF/\AtARERNTES)
Ms. Li Ling (resigned on 17 May 2015) 173

Bzt (RZZE—RFHA T+ HEE)

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee during the fifteen months ended 31 March
2016.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

The Remuneration Committee shall consist of not less than
two members. Currently, the Remuneration Committee
consists of three Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr.
Ruan Xiaofeng, Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai and Ms. Sun Zhili,
and one Non-executive Director: Mr. Chen Shuai. Mr. Ruan
Xiaofeng is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The primary duty of the Remuneration Committee is to
formulate the remuneration structure and policy of the Group,
to review the remuneration packages of Executive Directors
and senior management, including bonuses and options
granted under the Share Option Scheme, to ensure that such
remuneration is reasonable and not excessive. Generally, their
remunerations are determined based on their experience and
qualifications, the Group’s performance as well as market
conditions.
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During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, the
Remuneration Committee had reviewed the Group’s
remuneration policy and reviewed the remuneration package
of the Executive Directors and senior management for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, two
meetings were held by the Remuneration Committee. The
attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee at the meeting of the Remuneration Committee is
set out below:
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Number of
Remuneration
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Name of Director Meeting
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ZE®
BEspns SEYE
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 0/2
B e 2 5% 4
Mr. Chen Shuai 2/2
BRED ST &
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 212
LERELE
Ms. Sun Zhili 12
BBt
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (redesignated to Executive Director on 7 August 2015) 212
Reatiad (RZE-—RAF N \ALBRAETRATES)
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (resigned on 17 May 2015) 0/2
BREEE(R-_Z—HAFERA+LAET)
Ms. Li Ling (resigned on 17 May 2015) 12
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code.

Currently, the Nomination Committee consists of two Non-
executive Directors: Mr. Chen Shuai and Mr. Cao Yonggang
and four Independent Non-executive Directors: Mr. Tsang
Kwok Wai, Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng, Ms. Sun Zhili and Dr. Cao
Guogi. Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
once a year and to identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships. In identifying suitable director candidates and
making such recommendations to the Board, the Nomination
Committee would also take into account various aspects
of a candidate, including but not limited to his education
background, professional experience, experience with the
relevant industry and past directorships.

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, the
Nomination Committee has reviewed the board’s structure,
size and composition to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills, independence and experience appropriate
to the requirements of the business of the Company and
reviewed the annual confirmation of independence submitted
by Independent Non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence. Also, the Nomination Committee will also give
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board,
and the board will review the Board Diversity Policy on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.

REEEE
ARAPERYIRAREZES HE@BER
B adEeERTAl
REZBHIXEBEREMAIFENTES:
BRED 55 A4 N B oKl Se A4 - A K 0 % 857 3F
MITES BEELE MBEELLE FERX
Bzt hEREBETEK - GREXER
REZEEEXR-

REZBEENIZRE/EITFRNT —
REZEHRE - ABUAER AEMe R
BEBEERAETEFSRENAL Lk
EYURZREETSRAEBALHEES
MERBEFAEBMANESSIELARME
EEzl REZBeNTALTEREAS
FTEHHGSE BRETRREHEESR &
X HBATEERIAEESRS -

BE_Z-—XRF=A=+—HBI+h@
A REZEECRNESTINRE  AH
KR AR BB EDERNEEER
Fee  BUMERER  MIEARBEBZ
FE UCOEHBYIIFNTEFRRINE
T FEERENA MR EENELIE-
BiE EZ2ZBEENHERYMEEEEE
BRNAERETEFeXEREREESS
KREZTIEBRR MEFESKTHEHNE
G EZ T BURIARER L RCAK -



Corporate Governance Report

During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016, two
meetings were held by the Nomination Committee. The
attendance record of each member of the Nomination
Committee at the meetings of the Nomination Committee is
set out below:
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Attendance/
Number of
Nomination
Committee
Name of Director Meeting
HE/BA
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BEEpg gRYE
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai 212
Bl %4
Mr. Chen Shuai 212
BRED &4
Mr. Cao Yonggang 172
ER bt
Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng 0/2
Bribzlé 5t 4
Ms. Sun Zhili 172
BB
Dr. Cao Guogqi 0/2
EEEE L
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (redesignated to Executive Director on 7 August 2015) 2/2
Reatitd (RZE-—RAFN\NALRAERATES)
Ms. Li Ling (resigned on 17 May 2015) 172
EXRzt (RZZT—RFRA+LHET)
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION ¥ By A B =
The Company has re-appointed KPMG as its external auditor RARFIERBZE_ZE—R"F=A=+—H
during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016. The external I+ RAEAEEESH M ESMAE

auditor is refrained from engaging in non-audit services except
for specific approved items, such as review of interim results of
the Group. The Audit Committee reviews the external auditor’s
statutory audit scope and non-audit services and approves its
fees. A remuneration of HK$5,236,000 was paid/payable to
KPMG for the provision of annual audit and review of interim
results services in the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the financial controller and the
finance department, is responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Company and the Group for each
financial year which shall give a true and fair view of the
financial position, performance and cash flow of the Company
and its subsidiaries for that period. The directors acknowledge
their responsibilities for preparing the accounts of the
Company. As at 31 March 2016, the Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The responsibilities of KPMG, the Company's external auditor,
in relation to the financial statements are set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wu Yip Kai has been informed of the requirement of the
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound internal
control system and reviewing its effectiveness at least annually
to safeguard the shareholders’ investments and the Group's
assets. During the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016,
the Board was assisted by the Audit Committee in reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The
Board and the Audit Committee have considered all material
aspects, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, risk management functions, as well as the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Group's accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget in the review. From the view
of the Board and the Audit Committee, the Group's internal
control system was effective and there was no significant area
of concern which might affect the interests of the shareholders
of the Company.

The Group will use its best endeavour to implement changes to
further improve the Group’s internal control system whenever
necessary.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING AND TO PUT
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws of the Company, any one or
more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 1107, 11/F Lippo Sun Plaza, 28
Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong, to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition,
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of
the Company by mail at Unit 1107, 11/F, Lippo Sun Plaza,
28 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the
Board's direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions and
inquiries, to the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBERE

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of effective
communication with the shareholders of the Company.
The Company has established a number of communication
channels to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
shareholders and to enhance the transparency of the
Group. These include (i) holding annual and extraordinary
general meetings to provide a forum for shareholders
to communicate directly with the Board and the Board
committees; (ii) distributing corporate documents and releasing
announcements to disseminate the Group's latest information
to the shareholders; and (iii) maintaining the Company’s
website to provide an electronic means of communication with
the shareholders and the public.

Shareholders and other interested parties are welcome to
access the Group's information from the Company’'s website
at www.cgrh.com.hk. The Group’'s corporate information
including terms of reference of the Board committees, the
Group’s financial reports, announcements and circulars are
available on the website. In order to enhance shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and
development, the Company will continue to improve its
corporate disclosure on the Company’s website and the
communication with its shareholders.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 65 to 184, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2016, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the fifteen months then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B & BA RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 March 2016 and of the Group’s financial performance and
cash flows for the fifteen months then ended, in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

30 June 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mER®EX

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #;

2F_F—

NFE=ZA=1+—HIt+E@EA

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")) (W& ([Exl) Z25)
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2016 2014
BZ BHE
—2-X¥ —T-lEF
=B=+-H +t=-A=+—H
IE+E@EA EFE
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
fit st FET FE T
Revenue g 4 1,975,806 1,722,418
Other revenue Hip s 5 46,405 9,905
Cost of goods sold EmIHEN AR 20 (801,985) (659,959)
Sales and other taxes and surcharges $H B N H 7 7E & BT AN AR (103,921) (112,769)
Staff costs IR 6(b) (241,956) (223,813)
Operating lease expenses REHERX (129,845) (106,890)
Depreciation expenses FERX 12 (199,503) (139,214)
Utilities expenses NEFERT (83,440) (72,209)
Advertisement expenses BERE (53,680) (36,935)
Impairment losses on property, plant and ~ ¥1% B E L& 2 R E
equipment B8 12 - (46,506)
Other operating expenses Hi & & m & (108,351) (107,980)
Profit from operations R A 299,530 226,048
Valuation gain on an investment property & & ¥ Z(HE K m 13 42,904 166,634
Net finance costs M ERFRE 6(a) (258,058) (146,198)
Net gain on settlement of loan receivable #EREIKEAEA TER 2 W%
from a related party HEE - 27,647
Changes in fair value of derivative financial fT£ 4@ T Az AR EE
instruments 23(if) 3,943 2,822
Profit before taxation BR % A% A 6 88,319 276,953
Income tax e 7 (51,729) (134,749)
Profit for the period/year R/ AEERF 36,590 142,204
Attributable to: BUTALHES:
Equity shareholders of the Company /NG 27,160 120,149
Non-controlling interests IR = 9,430 22,055
Profit for the period/year R/ SEERF 36,590 142,204
Earnings per share BREF
Basic (HK$) BER(ET) 11(a) 0.012 0.052
Diluted (HK$) #8(BT) 11(b) 0.011 0.050

The notes on pages 73 to 184 form

statements.

part of these financial
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HEBEBERHEMEZE KRS X

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z51)

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2016 2014
Bz BHE
—E—RE —ET-NF
=B=+-B +ZA=+—H
+EMEA EFE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
fif FEx FET
Profit for the period/year R,/ R EERA 36,590 142,204
Other comprehensive income for BR,/ XEEEM2ZEKS
the period/year (after tax and (RMKRBEREH?E
reclassification adjustments): ) .
Items that will not be reclassified to BIregfsBERRZE
profit or loss: B:
— Surplus on revaluation of leasehold —ERFIEFERZEE L
land and buildings held for own use MEFEH 10 131,157 382,751
ltems that may be reclassified HERNENPEZEESRZHE
subsequently to profit or loss: g :
— Available-for-sale equity securities: —AHHEREESANE
net movement in fair value reserve HEEEFHE 10 53,244 (58,562)
— Exchange differences on translation —HBAER B IENE
into presentation currency E:E] 10 (376,399) 32,065
(323,155) (26,497)
Other comprehensive income for B/ AFEEHM2ERS
the period/year (191,998) 356,254
Total comprehensive income for B/ AEEXERZEE
the period/year (155,408) 498,458
Attributable to: BUTALHES:
Equity shareholders of the Company /NG S (163,739) 485,003
Non-controlling interests FEERRRE 25 8,331 13,455
Total comprehensive income for the HR,/ AEE2EKEEHE
period/year (155,408) 498,458

The notes on pages 73 to 184 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRIk R &

At 31 March 2016 R-ZZE— N NF=HA=1+—H

(Expressed in HK$) (LA ETZ2%I)
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
RIBE—RE RZZ—HNF
=A=t—-B tZA=t1—*H
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
iy aE FET F&L
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BE RE&E 12 3,850,179 3,757,677
Investment property HEME 13 1,656,360 1,808,848
Intangible assets BVEE 14 478,297 507,009
Goodwill EES 15 1,309,229 1,387,710
Prepayments for acquisitions of properties W EE ¥ % 2 T84 78 17 872,428 558,372
Available-for-sale equity securities AfHERRES 18 402,480 358,981
Deferred tax assets EETHIBEE 26(b) 3,192 19,525
8,572,165 8,398,122
Current assets RBEE
Short-term investments R E 19 753,796 586,661
Inventories FE 20 108,784 126,283
Trade and other receivables JFEE LT BR R K L b JE IR 21 568,859 805,535
Cash at bank and on hand RTEFERFEES 22 473,583 357,673
1,905,022 1,876,152
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables JRE15F BR R e L i B < 50 23 1,428,993 1,553,022
Bank loans RITEXK 24(a) 1,681,860 1,445,081
Income tax payable S ETIS AR 26(a) 50,511 91,894
3,161,364 3,089,997
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (1,256,342) (1,213,845)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERABERE 7,315,823 7,184,277
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans RITERK 24(b) 1,180,696 945,302
Deferred tax liabilities EEMIEEE 26(b) 695,545 677,041
1,876,241 1,622,343
NET ASSETS EERE 5,439,582 5,561,934

The notes on pages 73 to 184 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R
At 31 March 2016 R-ZE— X NFE=H=+—8H
(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z51)

At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R-ZBE—ARE RIZT—0OF
=A=t—-H +ZA=+—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
it 2 FET &L

CAPITAL AND RESERVES R K 27
Share capital [N 231,576 229,823
Reserves G 5,041,396 5,173,832

Total equity attributable to equity FARRRELESAE

shareholders of the Company 5,272,972 5,403,655
Non-controlling interests FERER 166,610 158,279
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 5,439,582 5,561,934

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 June 2016.

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin
BMEIR
Director

EF

The notes on pages 73 to 184 form part of these financial
statements.
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Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERagB X

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z -—ZE— NF=HA=+—HI- 1+ A @A
(Expressed in HK$) (LA ETZ2%I)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARTRRER

Property Non-
Share Share  Capital Contributed revaluation Fairvalue ~ Statutory ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserves  reserve  profits Total interests  equity

NEER AR R
Bx ROEE ErEE SARR e e ichERE EiRE REEN @it Bi EROR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
it TAr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr TEr TEr TEr TEr TET TEn
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
() 270d) - 27@hii) 27 27) 27 27l 27(d)vii)
(W (waE (W (W (BE (BE (WE (WE

70)  700)  2706)  2706)  2706)  2706)  27060) 2700

Balance at 1 January 2014 R=F-RE
—A-R&R% 29823 1343548  (24,649) 1,224868 721,669 - 116061 150,678 1,166,215 4928213 144,824 5,073,037

Changes in equity for ~ —E-MERER

2014: 25
Prfit for the year KEREH . - - - - - - S0 10049 2205 142204
Other comprehensive A2 EkH
income - - - - 3’751 (49121) - 3124 - 364,854 (8,600) 356,254

Total comprehensive income 74 [ 2 E M &
for the year ag - - - - 382751 (49121) - 3124 120149 485003 13455 498458

Equity-settled share-based  SRARIESE AR
transactions (Note 25@)) 7% %
(H:£256)) - - 203716 - - - - - - 20316 - 20316
Dividends approvedin ~ BLEHIEER
respect of the previous B EZRRE

year (Note 27(b)(i) (Brzt27ib)i) - - - - - - - - (29877)  (29.877) - (29877)
Appropriation to reserves  EEZ (e - - - - - - 2338 - (2338 - - -
= - 203716 = = - 2338 - (53262 (9,561) = (9,561)

Balance at 31 December R=Z-B%E
2014 tZA=1-A
e 229,823 1,343,548 (4333) 1,224,868 1,104,420  (49,121) 139,446 181902 1,233,102 5403655 158,279 5,561,934

The notes on pages 73 to 184 form part of these financial FI3E8AB 2 M THAKZEM I Iw K
statements. 2815 -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

hmEER®

B &

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z51)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
KLERRELR
Shares
held under
share Property Non-
Share Share  award  Capital Confributed revaluation Fairvalue Statutory Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium  scheme  reserve  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserves  reseve profits Total interests equity
RERR
£Ritd H
Ba  EKOEE HEMRG B4R HABR EfER NAERE IRRR  EXRE  REEA 4 FEREE RRAE
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKSOO0  HKSOOD  HKSOO0  HKS000  HKS000
Tt TEr TEr TEr tEr TEr TEr TEn TEr TEn TEr TEn TEn
(Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note (Note
a6) 7)) 00 276 276 27 27 i)
6)  27) 271)
Balance at 1 January 2015 W=%-%
E-F-RER 2983 1363548 = (4333) 124868 1104420  (49121) 139446 181,902 1233102 5403655 158279 5561934
Changes in equity for the ~ HAEREH:
period:
Profit for the period AmiEH = = - - - - - - - 60 27,160 9430 36,59
Other comprehensive income £ 2 A4& - - - - - BT 44661 - (366,717) - (190899)  (1,099) (191,99%)
Totel comprehensive income ~ H 2 AXREE
for the period - - - - - 3157 d4661 - (366717) 21960 (163,739) 8331 (155,408)
Shares purchased under share 7
award scheme (Note 25(b))
- - (3600 - - - - - - - (3600 - (3600
Shares issued under Bl
share option scheme Bk
(Notes 25 and 27(clf) ~ 25@R27cl) 1758 3037 - (3059 - - - - - - N3 - 2736
Fqutysetfled share-based. ~ REEEMRN
ansacions (loie 253) %1235
) = - - 190 - - - - - - 1490 - 1
Transfer between reserves
(Note 27(cl) = = - 668 - - - - - 6,643 - - -
Appropriation to reserves - - - - - - - 5301 - 53 - - -
S BB (60 5 - - -5 - 136 B - B
Balance at 31 March 2016 R=3-A%=3
Zt-RéR 231576 1,366,585 (3,600) 890 1224868 1235577 (4460) 144773 (184815) 1261578 5272972 166610 5,439,582

The notes on pages 73 to 184 form part

statements.

of these financial
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z ==

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

mERERER

—NF=ZA=+—HIt+EEA

(Expressed in HK$)  (LABTLZ231)
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2016 2014
BZ BZE
—EB-RF —E—MF
=H=+-8B +=ZA=+—H
E+EMEA EFE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ff FET FHET
Operating activities REER
Profit before taxation B 7 A& A 88,319 276,953
Adjustments for: R EE
Depreciation expenses FERS 12 199,503 139,214
Net loss on disposal of property, plant BREME BMERXEZ
and equipment BiRFE 6(c) 2,778 5,067
Impairment losses on property, plant W% BEREERE
and equipment 18 - 46,506
Valuation gain on an investment property 1% & ¥ % fiy {8 W % 13 (42,904) (166,634)
Interest income FEWA 5 (37,753) (9,905)
Net finance costs kg -Gibex: 258,058 146,198
Net income on a financial guarantee ERTERERIBAFE
issued 5 (8,652) =
Net gain on settlement of loan EE W Fﬂ EATERZ
receivable from a related party W F5 - (27,647)
Changes in fair value of derivative MESRIAY AAES
financial instruments 23(if) (3,943) (2,822)
Equity-settled share-based payment EREEEURN 2
expenses ﬁklﬁiﬁ'ﬂﬁi 14,920 20,316
Changes in working capital: &g 5% """"" @J
Decrease/(increase) in inventories T_,a w (1) 10,441 (66)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other JE U B M&ﬁﬁmﬂlﬁz
receivables m (&) 198,733 (464,894)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and other e BR R KA R R 2
payables CR2) /12 m (9,535) 7,372
Net cash generated from/(used in) REXEEE/ (FR)
operations ZEERE 669,965 (30,342)
Income tax paid ERPTER 26(a) (82,551) (56,217)
Net cash generated from/(used in) geEEEE (E£H) 23R
operating activities & 587,414 (86,559)
Investing activities REEH
Payments for the purchase of property, BEWE BEERENR
plant and equipment (121,633) (106,706)
Proceeds from disposal of property, BREME BELZE G
plant and equipment FRIE 2,770 1,058
Payments for acquisitions of properties W 2 (T3 (469,186) (163,694)
Payments for purchase of short-term BERHIRENK
investments (3,084,213) (657,540)
Proceeds from redemption of short-term  H& [B1 %2 81% & Fi 15 5018
investments 3,357,852 131,259
Repayment of loan receivable from a EBERKEEALER
related party - 655,288
Interests received BUF 8 36,425 5,718
Net cash used in investing activities @ REZFEHFEA 2 FRE (277,985) (134,617)

The notes on pages 73 to 184 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RERERER

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$) (LB Z51)

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31 March 31 December
2016 2014
8E BHZE
ZEB-ARF —T-mE
=A=+-B +ZA=+—H
t+HM@A IHFEE
Note HKS$’000 HK$'000
HraE FET FE T
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from new bank loans IR ITE RS RIA 2,290,073 2,554,368
Payments of transaction costs in MBRITERZ R HHA
connection with new bank loans (NN = (15,215)
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (1,766,668) (1,986,978)
Proceeds from exercise of share options TR BB AR i 2 P15 50 IR 27(c)iv) 21,736 =
Payments for purchase of shares under RIB R 0 R B ET 18 B R (9
share award scheme (NN 25(b) (3,600) =
Increase in restricted cash at bank XRIBITIR & 120 22 (23,769) (85,045)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders EEVNSEESZNE)
of the Company - (27,507)
Other finance costs paid Hih BT R E KA (291,392) (160,534)
Net cash generated from financing METHELEZFES
activities 226,380 279,089
Net increase in cash and cash ReRESEEEAZF
equivalents #n 535,809 57,913
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—-BzREREE
1 January ZEEH 22 265,381 208,227
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEHBRBP o XE
changes (14,055) (759)
Cash and cash equivalents at WN=B/t+=—A=+—-82
31 March/December BeRBRLEMEER 22 787,135 265,381

The notes on pages 73 to 184 form part of these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Ginwa Retail Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in Bermuda on 8 August 2000 as
an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981. The shares of the
Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 23 October
2000. The consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). The principal activities of
the Group are the operation of department stores, a
shopping mall and supermarkets in the People's Republic
of China (the “PRC").

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. These financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 2(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial

statements

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the board of
directors of the Company dated 17 November
2015, the Company's financial year end date has
been changed from 31 December to 31 March.
Accordingly, the current financial period will cover
a period of fifteen months from 1 January 2015 to
31 March 2016. The comparative figures (which
cover the financial year from 1 January 2014 to 31
December 2014) for the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement and related
notes are not comparable with those of the current
period.

The consolidated financial statements for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016 comprise the Group.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except for equity securities classified as
available-for-sale (see Note 2(f)), derivative financial
instruments (see Note 2(g)), leasehold land and
buildings held for own use (see Note 2(h)) and
investment property (see Note 2(i)) which are stated
at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEE (&)
(continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial (b) BIBEBREMEE (F)

statements (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 3.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$1,256,342,000, including
a cross-border United States dollar (“USD")
denominated loan from a bank (“bank A”) outside
of Mainland China and redemption payable for
embedded outstanding warrants approximating
a total of HK$83,713,000, which the Group was
not able to repay upon their maturities on 4
March 2016 as the Group did not have adequate
USD at bank and on hand. This overdue bank
loan constituted a cross default of USD and HK$
denominated loans from another bank (“bank
B”) outside of Mainland China with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$964,795,000
at 31 March 2016 and the Group is contractually
under a repayment on demand obligation for
these other bank loans (see Note 24(a)(i)).
Notwithstanding these conditions at 31 March
2016, the directors of the Company do not consider
that material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions exist which, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. This is because:
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

the Group upon consent of relevant
government authorities has remitted
Renminbi (“RMB")78,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$91,244,000) out of
Mainland China on 29 June 2016, which has
been converted into USD, and immediately
used to fully settle the above overdue loan and
redemption of outstanding warrants on 30 June
2016;

the Group is in the process of applying to the
relevant government authorities for establishing
a cross-border RMB cash pool, through which
the Group can remit RMB to repay cross-border
loans from bank B outside of Mainland China;

a new five-year term bank loan of
RMB940,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,128,000,000) has been drawn down by
the Group from bank B in the Mainland China
on 24 June 2016, which will be used to settle
the above bank loans repayable on demand from
bank B outside of Mainland China through the
cross-border RMB cash pool to be established
and to improve the liquidity position of the
Group;

new short-term bank loans of RMB180,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$216,000,000)
have been drawn down by the Group in April
and May 2016;

the Group has unutilised banking facilities of
RMB290,920,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$349,104,000) as at 31 March 2016; and

based on a cash flow forecast of the Group
for twelve months ending 31 March 2017
prepared by the management, assuming that
the government approval for establishing the
cross-border RMB cash pool is obtained, the
Group would have adequate funds to meet its
liabilities as and when they fall due for at least
twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments
to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group:

° Amendments to HKAS 19, Employee benefits:
Defined benefits plans: Employee contributions

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle

o Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle

None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group's results and financial
position for the current or prior periods have been
prepared or presented. The Group has not applied
any new standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and other
parties) are considered.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash
flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-
group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
interests in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those equity interests which
would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those equity
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests' proportionate share of the subsidiary's net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the period between non-
controlling interests and the equity shareholders of
the Company.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(e)

(continued)

Changes in the Group’'s equity interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling
and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain
or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it
is accounted for as a disposal of the entire equity
interests in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss. Any equity interests retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint
venture.

In the Company's statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 2(I)(ii)), unless the
investment is classified as held-for-sale.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of:

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and
the fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the
acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss as a gain on a bargain
purchase.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e) Goodwill (continued)

()

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see Note 2(I)(ii)).

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's policies for investments in debt
and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, associate and joint venture, are as
follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs.

Investments in debt and equity securities which do
not fall into the categories of loans and receivables,
investments in securities held for trading or held-to-
maturity are classified as available-for-sale securities.
At the end of each reporting period the fair value
is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. Dividend income from equity securities
and interest income from debt securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in
Notes 2(v)(v) and 2(v)(vi), respectively.

When the investments in debt and equity securities
are derecognised or impaired (see Note 2(I)(i)),
the cumulative gain or loss recognised in equity is
reclassified to profit or loss. Investments in debt
and equity securities are recognised/derecognised
on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. Fair values of
exchange traded derivatives are obtained from
quoted market price. Fair values of over-the-counter
derivatives are obtained using valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow model and option
pricing model. The gain or loss on remeasurement
to fair value is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Derivative financial instruments may be embedded
in other financial instruments, for example,
interest-bearing borrowings (see Note 2(0)) with
an embedded warrant. Embedded derivatives are
treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely
related to those of the host contract; the terms of
the embedded derivatives would meet the definition
of a stand-alone derivative if they are contained in a
separate contract; and the combined contract is not
held for trading or designated at fair value. These
embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes therein recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments are classified
as assets when their fair value is positive, or
as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
Derivative assets and liabilities arising from different
transactions are only offset if the transactions
are with the same counterparty, a legal right of
offsetting exists, and the parties intend to settle the
cash flows on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Leasehold land and buildings held for own use
are stated at their revalued amount, being their
fair values at the date of the revaluation less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amounts of these assets
do not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the end of the
reporting period.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Changes arising on the revaluation of leasehold
land and buildings held for own use are generally
dealt with in other comprehensive income and are
accumulated separately in equity in the property
revaluation reserve. The only exceptions are as
follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that
it exceeds the amount held in the reserve in
respect of that same asset immediately prior to
the revaluation; and

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.

Residential properties held for own use and other
items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Note 2(1)(ii)).

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the
costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit
or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any
related revaluation surplus is transferred from the
property revaluation reserve to retained profits and
is not reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z ==

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual values, if any, using the
straight line method over their estimated useful lives
as follows:

Estimated useful lives

Leasehold land and buildings held for Over the term of lease

own use carried at fair value

Residential properties held for own 3-35 years
use carried at cost and leasehold
improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-35 years
Motor vehicles 4-10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the
item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

No depreciation is provided in respect of construction
in progress until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

Investment property

Investment property is land and/or building which
is owned or held under a leasehold interest (see
Note 2(k)) to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

Investment property is stated at fair value, unless it
is still in the course of construction or development
at the end of the reporting period and its fair value
cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain
or loss arising from a change in fair value or from
the retirement or disposal of an investment property
is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment property is accounted for as described in
Note 2(v)(iii).
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

(k)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses (see Note 2(1)(ii)).

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that
asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the assets'
estimated useful lives.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #;

2F_F—

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k) Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in
equal instalments over the accounting periods
covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as leasehold
land and buildings held for own use (see Note
2(h)) or an investment property (see Note 2(i)).

() Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt and
equity securities and receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or amortised
cost or are classified as available-for-sale
securities are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss
events:

— significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables
(continued)

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

significant changes in the market,
economic or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss. The amount of the
cumulative loss that is recognised in
profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the
fair value of such assets is recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables
(continued)

For receivables carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment
is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics,
such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective

group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset's carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
(BRIESHIERR TAILETLZZ)

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt
and equity securities and receivables

(continued)

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect
of receivable whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against the receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against
the allowance account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are

recognised in profit or loss.

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may

have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment (other
than leasehold land and buildings carried

at revalued amounts);

—  intangible assets;

- goodwill;

- non-current prepayments for acquisitions

of properties; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the
Company's statement of financial

position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

() Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount
is estimated annually whether or not there is
any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of
an asset, or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units)
and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or
value in use (if determinable).

2 FESTEE#B)

) EERE(E)
(i) RfEEHE (52)
M5 EARESR A
st B AE 2 AT E 2
o Wsh EE R AR
12 AR 2 AW
SERHAD HRRED
KMBBSE -

— FrEAWEEEE
BEZAKRESER
HAR R ERERE KA
LEREBEMERZ
=& - ReHAEAE
B85 - S MERTATR
BEREEFRKRE
MERRERE-Z
MBERRRTISER
Fraffh 2 B % B
BEMZEEZBAR
(% - i (&R B EFTEE
ZHRERAERLED
BB N EMEEM
EEZBRERA B
BUYELRERAZ
RNEEHEA (BIER
CEHEN ) REFER]
WEEEE -

—  HERREEE
BESHEMBZA®
EEXEMZEREES
NI ETE ARl
SRERAERRIE
B8 - s S EA BN
MR R IEERE K
2 ECF ABIRIR & &
HEBM (k—HEE)
PRED R EMEEL
ARE(E - BER AL B
HIR B AL (2 —# %
) READ B E 2 ARE
B EEEREETD
A NRAEEREEL
Z R R AERER B KA
(fngestE) A ERE

18 (WREEEE) °

ETHENHRRUASTHR

HEhEN—/E—&



91/510Z Hoday [enuuy  paywi] sbuip|oH [1e1ay emuln Ainjusd ‘

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
(BRIESHIERR TAILETLZZ)

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2

(continued)
() Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. An impairment loss
in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset's carrying amount that
would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare interim financial reports in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting. At the end of the interim period,
the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial peiod (see

Notes 2()(i) and 2(I)(ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of goodwill and available-
for-sale equity securities are not reversed in
a subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates. Consequently,
if the fair value of an available-for-sale
equity security increases in the remainder
of the annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised in
other comprehensive income and not profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sales proceeds of items sold in the ordinary
course of business subsequent to the financial year
end date or to management estimates based on
prevailing market conditions.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of any write-down of inventories to
net realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see Note 2(I)(i)),
except where the receivables are interest-free loans
made to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated
at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see Note 2(I)(i)).
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs and,
where applicable, the fair value of the embedded
derivative financial instruments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings
are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with
any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Convertible preference share capital

Convertible preference share capital is classified as
equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company's option, and any dividends are
discretionary. Dividends on convertible preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as
distributions within equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts
are stated at their present values.

(ii) Share-based payments

—  Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted
to employees and service providers
is recognised as an employee cost or
operating expense with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is measured at grant date
using the Black-Scholes Model, taking
into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that
the options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share option scheme (continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected to vest
is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment
to the cumulative fair value recognised
in prior years is charged/credited to
profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original employee expenses
qualify for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the
market price of the Company's shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Share award scheme

The shares awarded under the share
award scheme are acquired from open
market. The net consideration paid,
including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “Shares
held under share award scheme” and
deducted from equity.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Share-based payments (continued)

Share award scheme (continued)

For shares granted under the share
award scheme, the fair value of shares
granted to employees is recognised as
an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in capital reserve within equity.
The fair value is based on the closing
price of the Company's shares on
grant date plus any directly attributable
incremental costs. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
shares, the total fair value of the shares
is spread over the vesting period, taking
into account the probability that the
shares will vest.

During the vesting period, the number
of shares that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit
or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to
reflect the actual number of shares that
vest with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve.

When the awarded shares are transferred
to the awardees upon vesting, the related
weighted average acquisition cost of
the awarded shares vested are credited
to “Shares held under share award
scheme”, and the grant date fair value
of the awarded shares vested are debited
to the capital reserve. The difference
between the related weighted average
acquisition cost and the grant date fair
value of the awarded shares vested is
transferred to retained profits directly.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s) Employee benefits (continued)

(t)

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
it recognises restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the period comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate to
business combinations, or items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the period, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable
in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the Group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

Income tax (continued)

Where investment property is carried at its fair value
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
Note 2(i), the amount of deferred tax recognised
is measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of this asset at its carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of
deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using
tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously; or
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FESHEE (&)

(continued)
(t) Income tax (continued)

(t) FEH (&)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
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Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can
be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit
or loss as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Sale of goods and net income from
concession sales

Revenue arising from the sale of goods
and net income from concession sales are
recognised when the customer has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue or net income excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and
is after deduction of any sales discounts.
No revenue or net income is recognised if
there are significant uncertainties regarding
recovery of the consideration due, the possible
return of goods, or continuing management
involvement with the goods.

Service fee income

Service fee income from the operation
of department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets is recognised when the related
services are rendered.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased
asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(v) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Customer loyalty programme

The Group's customer loyalty programme
awards customers credits which entitle
the customers to the right to exchange
for products offered under the customer
loyalty programme. The fair value of the
consideration received or receivable in respect
of the initial sale is allocated between the
programme credits and the other components
of the sale. The amount allocated to the
programme credits is estimated by reference
to the fair value of the right to exchange for
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme, adjusted to take into account
the expected forfeiture rate. Such amount
is deferred and revenue is recognised when
the programme credits are redeemed and the
Group has fulfilled its obligations to supply the
products offered under the customer loyalty
programme. Deferred revenue is also released
to revenue when it is no longer considered
probable that the programme credits will be
redeemed.

Dividends

Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the
investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.
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2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(w) Translation of foreign currencies

(x)

Foreign currency transactions during the period are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated into the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.

The results of operations which have a functional
currency other than Hong Kong dollars, the Group's
presentation currency, are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Statement of financial position
items, including goodwill arising on consolidation
of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January
2005, are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange
reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(y) Related parties

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person's
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group.

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 HZE=-—F— X NF=F=+—HI-+AEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 & Z
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(y) Related parties (continued)

(2)

91/510Z Hoday [enuuy  paywi] sbuip|oH [1e1ay emuln Ainjusd ‘

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies: (continued)

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the type or class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

The Group's revenue is substantially derived from
retail customers situated in the PRC and the Group's
operating assets are substantially located in the
west region of the PRC. Accordingly, no segment
analysis based on geographical location of the
customers and assets is provided.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Notes 12, 13, 15, 25 and 28 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to
valuation of leasehold land and buildings held for own
use and investment property, goodwill impairment, fair
value of share options granted and financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(a)

(b)

Impairment of receivables

The management maintains an allowance for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of the debtors to make the
required payments. The management bases the
estimates on the ageing of the individual receivable
balance, debtor credit-worthiness and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would
be higher than estimated.

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale equity securities

The Group determines that available-for-sale equity
securities are impaired when there has been a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below cost. The determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires judgement from the
management. When making such judgement, the
Group considers a variety of factors, including but
not limited to the normal volatility of the security
price, the length of the period over which the fair
value is lower than cost, the magnitude of the
decline in fair value and the financial position of the
investee.

3
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of long-lived assets other than
goodwill

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of a long-lived asset may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered “impaired”, and an
impairment loss may be recognised in accordance
with accounting policy for impairment of long-
lived assets as described in Note 2(l)(ii). The
carrying amounts of long-lived assets are reviewed
periodically or when indications are identified in
order to assess whether the recoverable amounts
have declined below the carrying amounts. When
such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount
is reduced to recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the greater of the fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In determining the
value in use, expected future cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to the
level of revenue and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information
in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of the level of revenue
and amount of operating costs. Changes in these
estimates could have a significant impact on
the carrying value of the assets and could result
in additional impairment charge or reversal of
impairment in future periods.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets, after taking into account the estimated
residual values, if any. The management reviews
the estimated useful lives and the residual values,
if any, of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The determination
of the useful lives and the residual values, if any,
are based on historical experience with similar
assets. The depreciation expense for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 R R Y &

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

3 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 3 gItHERMES (&)
ESTIMATES (continued)
(e) Deferred tax (e) EZEFIE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilised. In determining the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognised, significant
judgement is required relating to the timing and
level of future taxable profits, after taking into
account future tax planning strategies. The amount
of deferred tax assets recognised at future dates are
adjusted if there are significant changes from these
estimates.

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
operation of department stores, a shopping mall
and supermarkets in the PRC.

Revenue represents the sales value of goods sold
to customers (net of value added tax or other sales
tax and discounts), net income from concession
sales, rental income from operating leases and
management and administrative service fee income.
The amount of each significant category of revenue
and net income is analysed as follows:

{EBRN A AJ BE 3R R R FERBUA
MAl AR RRERIAEE -
A1 3L R Bp A % 18 85 48 N R ARG
EREZABARERBEEE -
BEERHERACELHBREES
B - 2 B R B T 8 SR A%
% BELKRKERTEN 2 F
HWNBEEHERHE - HZF
EEtHBREREE) RAKRAH
EREEHREEZ S BEFL
o

ng

OH]

4 WHEKEsHHRE

(a)

iy 58
AEEZEEXHA/NTEE
LRE®S BYPLRBRT

i

WanEnEPERE s EmEEE
18 (FNBR I (A B 5 H 85 B T &2
Freg) HRTEEHEHEFERA
KREMEsHERA URERE
RATHREEBRA - & FE
R AFEREAR 2 52 D40
T~

Fifteen months Year ended

ended 31

31 March December

2016 2014

Bz BHZE

—E-RF —ZE-mF

=A=t+—HI +=—A=+—H

+EM@A IEFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Sales of goods FHmiEE 930,809 786,059

Net income from concession sales I EE S F U A 789,925 721,886

Rental income from operating leases KREHE2HEWA 165,863 140,770
Management and administrative service &2 & 17 RS & WA

fee income 89,209 73,703

1,975,806 1,722,418

-
=
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIESR BHEEH & BB T Z25)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(a) Revenue (continued) (@) Wz (&)

4 WamRkoEWHE (&)

91/510Z Hoday [enuuy  paywi] sbuip|oH [1e1ay emuln Ainjusd ‘

The Group engages in the retail business, and
accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group's customer base is diversified
and has no customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group's revenue for
the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 (year
ended 31 December 2014: HK$Nil). Details of

AEBRETEER Bt K
RAEERA AEEZRFPR
ZEb TERPEAEEZR
SHBBEBEAEEREE_T—~
F=A=+—BItt+tHREAK
#Ww210% (BE-—ZT—NFE+=
A=+— Eﬁiﬁ ZETL) o

concentrations of credit risk are set out in Note FRSETEER EIBERAHT
28(a). 5+28(a) °
Information on gross revenue HBKRRERZER

Gross revenue represents the gross amount
arising from the sales of goods and concession
sales charged to retail customers, and rental
income from operating leases and management
and administrative service fee income charged to
tenants, net of value added tax or other sales tax
and discounts.

RWSERREE FATER
JEZ%.%F?;*E@%% REMEZ
e WA KA FUWE 2 &2
KATHBRTS B WA 2 4858 (F0RR
BERIEMHEERREER

&) e

Fifteen months Year ended

ended 31

31 March December

2016 2014

BZE H=

—EB—REF —E—E

=A=+—HI +=—A=+—H

+EH@EA IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Sales of goods EmiE s 930,809 786,059

Gross revenue from concession sales R EEEE 2Bl s 4,337,598 4,034,940

Rental income from operating leases LEEE 2 He WA 165,863 140,770
Management and administrative service & 32 & 17 B IR 75 8 Ut A

fee income 89,209 73,703

5,523,479 5,035,472

Further details regarding the Group's principal ERAAEEXEXB2E—FTEHR

activities are disclosed below.

TXHE-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(continued)

(b) Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by lines of
business. In a manner consistent with the way in
which information is reported internally to the
Group's most senior executive management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has presented the following
two reportable segments. No operating segments
have been aggregated to form the following
reportable segments.

(i)

Department stores and shopping mall: this
segment operates 8 department stores and a
shopping mall.

Supermarkets: this segment operates 7
supermarkets.

Segment information

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results attributable
to each reportable segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and net income and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to revenue and net income
generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments.
However, assistance provided by one segment
to another is not measured.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
& EILE T 25 )

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIEZ=BIER

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment information (continued)

The measure used for reporting segment profit
“adjusted earnings
depreciation and
is regarded
as including interest income, changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments,
and other financial charges and income, and
“depreciation and amortisation”
as including impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets and valuation gain or loss
on investment property. To arrive at adjusted
EBITDA, the Group's earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office
or corporate administration costs. No inter-
segment sales have occurred for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016 and the year

is “adjusted EBITDA" i.e.
before interest, taxes,
amortisation”, where

ended 31 December 2014.

Assets and liabilities are not monitored by the
Group's senior executive management based
on segments. Accordingly, no information on

“interest”

segment assets and liabilities is presented.

Information regarding the Group's reportable
segments as provided to the Group's most
senior executive management for the purposes
of resource allocation and assessment of
segment performance for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016 and the year ended 31
December 2014 is set out below.

is regarded

4 WamRkoEWHE (&)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIFZ B 158 - ZRILETTZ21)

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WmkoEE®E (&)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2w (&)

(i) Segment information (continued) (i) ZEBEHR (E)

Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
BE-ZE—~"FE=Z=HA=+—HL+HEA

Department
stores and
shopping
mall Supermarkets Total
BERSER
BB 4 s R TS st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°’000
FET FET FET
Revenue and net income SN RE P 2 W38 K%
from external customers W A R Al $RE D 2
and reportable segment Y&z MIFE U A
revenue and net income 1,510,471 465,335 1,975,806
Reportable segment profit & # & 53 50 %
(adjusted EBITDA) ( 424 EEBITDA ) 493,770 15,750 509,520

Year ended 31 December 2014
BE-_Z-NME+-_A=1+—BItEE

Department
stores and
shopping mall Supermarkets Total
BEES &
B B AR T % et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Revenue and net income 4MNRE B 2 Yz & F
from external customers W A R A[ER&E 5D H
and reportable segment Uz & IFE U A
revenue and net income 1,360,393 362,025 1,722,418
Reportable segment profit & # & 53 50 Y
(adjusted EBITDA) (4L FHZLEBITDA ) 433,420 16,837 450,257
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% ) & M &
For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

BE_ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIt+HEA
(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHREKDEHHRE (&)
(continued)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) 2w (&)

(ii) Reconciliation of reportable segment

(i) "I E 7 EEFE AR

profit
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE HE
—EB-XE —T—OF
=A=+—HIk +=—A=+—H
+HEA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Reportable segment profit A] 3 55 55 &6 4 A 509,520 450,257
Other revenue H W 2= 46,405 9,905
Depreciation expenses TERX (199,503) (139,214)
Impairment losses on property, plant  #1% - &= &
and equipment HEREEE - (46,506)
Valuation gain on an investment KREMEHENKS
property 42,904 166,634
Net finance costs MBERFE (258,058) (146,198)
Net gain on settlement of loan mERWEEALTER
receivable from a related party Z W FEE - 27,647
Changes in fair value of derivative MTEEMIAZ
financial instruments NREEH 3,943 2,822
Unallocated head office and Ko ABE K&
corporate administration expenses A A{THFI X (56,892) (48,394)
Profit before taxation B B A& 7 88,319 276,953
5 OTHER REVENUE 5 Hfttrzs
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE HE
—E-RE —T—JNFE
=ZA=+-8it +=A=+—H
+HEA IEFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income M EHA 37,753 9,905
Net income on a financial guarantee BEETEMBER KA
issued 8,652 =
46,405 9,905




Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 R R Y &

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

6 BRBLAIEF

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BR AT R E B (FTA) -

(crediting):

(a) Net finance costs

(a) MBERFRE

Fifteen months Year ended

ended 31

31 March December

2016 2014

BZ BHZE

ZE-RF —E-lmF

=A=+—-H1K +=—A=+—H

+HEA IEFE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Interest expenses on bank loans RITERZFEZH 274,727 207,615

Bank charges and other finance costs  $R1TE R R HibB K E R 15,279 12,773

Total borrowing costs BEEKA 290,006 220,388
Finance income on loan receivable from JEWREEA LTER 2

a related party BB A - (80,417)

Finance income on entrusted loan froma E=FZFERZ

third party RN (32,072) -

Net foreign exchange loss ME BT H R 124 6,227

258,058 146,198

No borrowing costs have been capitalised for the BEEEXNARBE_ZS—XF=A

fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 (year ended =t+—BLETHREAEREL(BE=

31 December 2014: HK$Nil).

T-mE+-AS+—AILFE: T
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
(BRIESHIERR TAILETLZZ)

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

The employees of the subsidiaries of the Group
established in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes managed
by the local government authorities, whereby
these subsidiaries are required to contribute to
the schemes at 20% of the employees' basic
salaries. Employees of these subsidiaries are entitled
to retirement benefits, calculated based on a
percentage of the average salaries level in the PRC,
from the above mentioned retirement schemes at
their normal retirement age.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance
for employees under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement plan administered
by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees' relevant salaries, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant salaries of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000
prior to June 2014). Contributions to the MPF
Scheme vest immediately.

The Group has no further obligation for payment of
other retirement benefits beyond the above annual
contributions.

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 KBRFHANER (&)
(b) Staff costs (b) EIRA
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE HE
—E—-XRE —F—NF
=HA=+—Hit +—A=+—H
+H@EA HEE
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET FEIT
Salaries, wages and other benefits He s TERHEMEF 217,801 189,054
Contributions to defined contribution A E BB M R RET 2B FX
retirement plans 18,438 14,443
Equity-settled share-based payment LB AR IR AR
expenses in respect of share option ARG A X2
scheme (see Note 25(a)) (2 HfaE25(@a)) 5,717 20,316
241,956 223,813

AREBRPBEXIZMBERRZ
BEZEMTRTRBERZE
BHFCRIKEME S B % F
MBARAZREELRAFHELZ
20% A% F T I - IRIF Lat
RKEE ZEHRBAREER
FEHIEFRNFIRIF AR Lt
BRI EZERTEFHFHFREK
FEA L E ZRKER -

REBTRIEBEESEHEATES
FENEN BB B REGD 2 7%
EETZEEEE—(EHER
Berral ([aELs8]) -#&
BergEA—ERBIITAE
B ERHREE - RIBERES
E - BERHEESHERES
HEEHE 25% (BFAHEBEHFE
IR A30,0008 7T (R=_Z—K
75 A Bl 425,000 7T ) ) M &T
BN - MR FE D FTE 2 fEFRAD
RrERIE o

R 1B bt SR RSN RRE
MELEMRAREBNNSRZE
Fo
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (continued) 6 MRBIADEF (&)
(c) Other items (¢ HfEH
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BE H=E
—E—RE —ZF—NF
=A=+—-HIk +=—A=+—H
+EHER IEFE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FEXT FHET
Auditors' remuneration % SR B &
— statutory audit service —AEBZRE 5,236 3,408
— other services — HE{th AR 75 628 1,018
Net loss on disposal of property, plant BREEWE - MEKRZEZ
and equipment EBEFE 2,778 5,067

ETHENHRRUASTHR

BhEv— /T-&
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

7

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 HMEEBRRAFEM
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of (a) HREBZRAZBIER:
profit or loss represents:
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE HE
—E-RF —E-F
=A=+—-Hit +=-—A=+—H
+EHM@EA HEE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Current taxation (see Note 26(a)): REAFEIE ( A M EE26(a)) -
— Provision for PRC Corporate —HRBEPRMSTHEE
I[ncome Tax 52,069 64,217
— (Over)/under-provision in respect —BEFE (HBREEE
of prior years %),/ BETR (6,975) 2,378
45,094 66,595
Deferred taxation (see Note 26(b)): IEERE ( ZHTE26(0b))
— Origination and reversal of —“EREREZEAR
temporary differences el (67) 40,678
— Write-down of deferred tax assets —WOREEREE E
(see Note 7(b)(v)) (RHE7(b)V)) 6,702 27,987
— Recognition of prior years' unused —ERERARERZ B
tax losses previously not TERZARBAN
recognised HEE - (511)
6,635 68,154
51,729 134,749
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

REBRBERAMEHR (4)

(continued)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b) BEZHEEFRFRERAB
accounting profit at applicable tax rates: RzAHWME:
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE HE
ZE-REF —TUF
=ZA=+—Hit +—A=+—H
+H@EA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Profit before taxation & % BT i A 88,319 276,953
Expected tax on profit before tax, B B A& A1 2 T8 BAAR I8
calculated at the rates applicable RIS Rl AR
to profits in the tax jurisdictions FaEr 2 ERRERTE
concerned (see Notes (i), (i) and (iii)) (& KzE() ~ (i) (iii) ) 41,148 90,681
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A] 15 3 ) 2 B 75 o7 22 20,638 19,837
Tax concessions (see Note (iv)) HIBER (2 aEdv)) (32,713) (39,442)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERARBEHRISERZ
recognised M2 22,929 33,819
Tax effect of write-down of deferred ~ MUBEERIBEE E 2 B
tax assets (see Note (v)) T2 (BMiEWV)) 6,702 27,987
Tax effect of recognition of prior years' ERICAIARMER ZBEF
unused tax losses previously not B2 RBARIBEEEZ
recognised M2 - (511)
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BAEFE (BEREE)
prior years BETR (6,975) 2,378
Income tax P 51,729 134,749

—
—
~N

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

7

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates:
(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in Hong Kong are subject to Hong
Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (year ended 31
December 2014:16.5%). No provision for Hong
Kong Profits Tax has been made, as the Company
and the subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
Hong Kong did not have assessable profits subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the fifteen months
ended 31 March 2016 (year ended 31 December
2014: HKSNil).

The Company and the subsidiaries of the Group
incorporated in countries other than the PRC
(including Hong Kong) are not subject to any
income tax pursuant to the rules and regulations of
their respective countries of incorporation.

The subsidiaries of the Group established in the PRC
are subject to PRC Corporate Income Tax rate of
25% for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
(year ended 31 December 2014: 25%).

Certain subsidiaries of the Group established in
the PRC obtained approvals from the respective
tax bureaux in 2012 that they are entitled to tax
benefits applicable to entities under the Second
Phase of the Western Region Development Plan of
the PRC, and enjoy a preferential PRC Corporate
Income Tax rate of 15% for the calendar years from
2011 to 2020.

The Group wrote down previously recognised tax
losses and temporary differences of HK$6,702,000
(year ended 31 December 2014: HK$27,987,000)
for the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016,
as the utilisation of these unused tax losses and
temporary differences have changed due to changes
were made to the estimates of the future operating
results of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

7

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

REBRBERAMEHR (4)

(b)

ff 2 -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BLIE H R & ahis A REAH
RZABWMT: (&)

RRRRAEBREBEMAILZ
IREE NGRS E e B EC R T S
5165% (BEZE—_FT—WNF+=A
=+—HIEFE 16.5%) cHRA
RERAEEREF B MK Z W
BRAEE=ZZE—"F=ZA=1—
HIE+HREAWEBEHREENE
B2ERV N (BEZT—MF
+—A=t—HULFE :THET)

UG R 5 2 78 45 B F H 4 4 o

ARBRAEERFE (BEEL)
AN SR SR M B SZ 2 Y B A~ RIAR %
HEBMAEZMBERZERER
BABMERAFR -

HEz—_Z—X"XF=ZA=+—HLt
+HME A ANEERF R 2
NGRS €l MR AR YR
REI5% (BE-_T—NE+=A
=t+—HIFE:25%) °

REZF——F AEEETEREH
S 2 BB A R EVS AR FR S Bt
X BREEXERRF AR
EHEE-_HT 2 ERB 2 HBEHB
BE WER T ——FE2=_F =
TFEBFEXI5%2EERRHTE
FriSHifi = o

REBEZE_FE—X"F=A=+—8L
+ R A - ANEEE MR LR E #E
R BIEEE LY RE26,702,000
B (HEZE_ZFT—NF+=A8
=+—HIEFE:27,987,000%
L) REARZEARSATIEEE X
TREEZEHBREANEE S TH B
RNAZ ARG E B G B M 2
EE b
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Directors' emoluments disclosed pursuant to section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part
2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation are as follows:

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

8 EEI
RIEFE QA HEN 5383(1) K KM A &
(WEBEESEFZER)BOIFE 2 HE
ZEEHMOT

Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
BE_E-AEZA=t-HLETEMA

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors' and benefits Discretionary ~ scheme Share-based
fees inkind ~ bonuses contributions  Sub-total payments Total
gt
BHRHM £
EzHe  RUER  BERRA  aAR Mt REBHAR st
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000
téx FEr TExr  TExr  TEx  TEr  FEn
(Note (i))
(W)
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Wu Yijian (Chairman) R-BRE(FR) 6,250 1314 - 3 7,587 151 7738
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter (re- Batrs (R-2-14NA

designated on 7 August 2015) tAHE) 1,171 - - 12 1183 - 1183
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin BHEALE 2,415 810 1,824 23 5,072 451 5,523
Mr. Sha Yingje PENEE 120 = - = 10 282 402
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei (resigned on 17 BSRELAE (W= -REHA

May 2015) THARE) - - - - - - -

Non-executive directors FHUTEE
Mr. Chen Shuai Gant 4 - - - - - - -
Mr. Cao Yonggang (appointedon B BI%4 (R-F-R%RA

17 May 2015) TtREZf) - - - - - - -

Mr. Qu Jiag BARHLE 135 - - - 135 451 586
Independent non-executive BU#HfES

directors

Mr. Ruan Xiaofeng (appointed on ~ FrBEB% 4 (W=E—%FHA

17 May 2015) THREZH) 261 - - - 261 - 261
Ms. Sun Zhili (appointed on 17 FRERt (R-Z-151A

May 2015) +HBEZf) 261 - - - 261 - 261
Dr. Cao Guogj (appointed on 5 EEuET (M23-15+-

November 2015) ALREZ) 1 - = - 122 - 122
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai LEERE 375 - - - 375 - 375
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter Ratis (R-2-14NA

(resigned on TR

7 August 2015) 180 - - - 180 - 180
Ms. Li Ling (resigned on 17 May Erat(R-T-1%1A

2015) TLERE) 114 - - - 14 - 14

11,404 2,124 1,824 58 15,410 1,335 16,745

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

8

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Year ended

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

8 EEFM &)

31 December 2014

HE-T-MET-R=T-HI%E

Salaries,
allowances

Directors' and b
fees

enefits
inkind

REREM
EE T L

Retirement
Discretionary ~ scheme Share-based
bonuses contributions  Sub-total  payments Total
i
REEL  HEER I VA @t

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET S FET TAr FEn TAr FEn
(Note (1))
(W)
Executive directors HEE
M. Wu Yijan (Chaiman) 8B4k (1F) 373 347 - 7 409 635 473
Mr. Qiu Zhongwei BhELE 5 - - - 5 - 5
Mr. Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin IRAEE 1,884 1,784 1,894 17 5,579 1,391 6,970
Mr. Sha Yingjie WERAEE 9% - - - 9% 890 986
Non-executive directors FHf7EE
Mr. Chen Shuai BREE 5 - = - 5 = 5
Mr. Qu Jiagi MFEEE 108 245 - 10 363 1,391 1,754
Independent non-executive Bu#ings
directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kwong, Peter RAXLE 180 - - - 180 = 180
Mr. Tsang Kwok Wai BEERE % - - - 9% - 9%
Ms. Li Ling ERut 180 - - - 180 384 564
6,287 2,376 1,894 44 10,601 4,691 15,292
Note: Hit &t -
()  These represent the estimated value of share options () ZE2FEERBEARNCERESTE

granted to the directors under the Company's share
option schemes. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group's accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in Note
2(s)(ii). The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of share options granted, are
disclosed in the directors' report and Note 25.

BRYTEEZBEREZ G EE %
EEREZBERREAEETR
FEEE2(s) (IR TR 5 2 ETBUR
AE-HRLEEMEAZFEE 2
BEXIEZRRRETFZBREHRE
ERESSHRE RWE258HE -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 BEHFAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, ERERSFALTH ME(BHEZ
two (year ended 31 December 2014: three) are directors E—NE+—-_A=+—HBItFE: =
whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 8. BV RES MEMSFBRERHE
8K & °
The emoluments in respect of the other three (year ended ERAEM=2(BRZ_T—WF+=
31 December 2014: two) individuals are as follows: A=1+—BIEFE :M&) AL ZiE
R
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE HE
—EB-RF —T—F
=A=+—Hi +=A=+—H~
+HMEA IEFE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ Z4 « 28E % E 4B W& T 3,261 2,228
Discretionary bonuses B IEAT 1,909 2,207
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRET I 35 30
Share-based payments AR 19 15 3K 423 746
5,628 5,211
The emoluments of the three (year ended 31 December = (BEZZ—WOF+A=1T—
2014: two) individuals who are not directors and who are HIEFE :Ma)LIEEFEBRAE
amongst the five highest paid individuals of the Group BhB&RSH AL ZERIALZHM
are within the following bands: NFUATEHE :
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
B=E HE
—E-RF —E-F
=A=+—Hit +=—A=+—H
+HM@EA LHFE
Number of Number of
HK$ individuals individual
BT 18 51 A & & 5l A 2K
1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000

3,500,001 - 4,000,000 3,500,001 - 4,000,000

3 1
- 1

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 HE—ZFT—NF=HA=+—HIi-+AEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZS EHEH - & BILAE T E3)

10 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 10 HtZ2E W&
Tax effects relating to each component of other BEHME2EKREMOER2BIE
comprehensive income 4
Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 Year ended 31 December 2014
HE-B-REZA=1-ALTIEA HE-S-BE+-A=1-HLEE
Before Net-of- Before Tax Net-of-
tax Tax tax tax  (expense)/ tax
amount expense amount amount benefit amount
it
KHEA nK BE  (Fx)/ Mk

&8  HEEx  HREE  EAeE ki HASE
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
FEn FEn FEn FATL TET FET

(Note 26(b)) (Note 26(b))
(Wi26(b)) (H#26(b))
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold EffFfFERAELHREFL
land and buildings held for own B8 (BH#12(2))
use (see Note 12(a)) 174,468 (43,311) 131,157 509,365 (126,614) 382,751
Available-for-sale equity securities: W HEERE R A HERES
net movement in fair value reserve &) 62,640 (9,396) 53,244 (68,896) 10,334 (58,562)
Exchange differences on translation #EAZHER 7 EH =8
into presentation currency (376,399) - (376,399) 32,065 - 32,065
Other comprehensive income EhEENE (139,291) (52,707)  (191,998) 472,534 (116,280) 356,254
There was no reclassification adjustment relating to AT ESEEME2ERERD 2E
components of other comprehensive income during the Mo EAR (22— WNFE+=A
period (year ended 31 December 2014: none). =T HIEE &) -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z =Z—

NFE=ZA=1+—HIt+E@EA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE 11 ERER

(a) Basic earnings per share (a)

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based
on the profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company of HK$27,160,000 (year ended
31 December 2014: HK$120,149,000) and the
weighted average of 2,303,561,000 ordinary
and convertible preference shares (year ended
31 December 2014: 2,298,233,000 ordinary and
convertible preference shares) in issue during the
period calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of shares

BREXER

EREABIEZEXKEARARQFR
B E1H % 27,160,000/ 7T (&
E_FE—NF+-_A=+—H
1EZ 120,149,000/ 7T ) &
HAE BTG ZMEFEH
£02,303,561,000% & @ A% &
MR EER(BEZE=_F—HO
F+_A=Z=+—BLEFE:
2,298,233,0000% & i i% & 7] #2
fREEAR)GTERT :

(i) R In#EF9E

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE HE
—E-RF —E—gF
=A=+—-HIkt +=—A=+—H
TEER IEFE
‘000 ‘000
FKR FA&
Issued ordinary and convertible R—A—BZEBTE
preference shares at 1 January 3 AR NPT # R 1B S AR
(see Note (i) (RHFEG)) 2,298,233 2,298,233
Effect of shares purchased under RIERD BT EEE
a share award scheme Binz 2 (RHF
(see Notes 25(b) and 27(c)(iii)) 25(b) Kz 27(c)iii)) (2,591) =
Effect of shares issued under share  RIEERET 2D 31T
option scheme (see Notes 25(a) tn 22 (AR F
and 27(c)(iv)) 25(a) X2 27(c)(iv)) 7,919 -
Weighted average number of W=RA/+=ZA=+—
ordinary and convertible Az @R kAR
preference shares at 31 March/ BRI I &
December (see Note (i) ( 2Bt aE() 2,303,561 2,298,233
Note: it 5t -

(i) The holder of the convertible preference
shares is entitled to receive the same rate
of dividends/distributions as the holders of
ordinary shares. Accordingly, for the purpose
of the calculation of basic earnings per share,
the convertible preference shares issued
have been included in the calculation of the
weighted average number of shares in issue.

iy FIMBELREEAR
iR EERSA AR
Rzl RXERRE D
& e Bt Bt B &K
EXBMNME FHEE
BT A
EFF AR AR E e -

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

11 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$27,160,000
(year ended 31 December 2014: HK$120,149,000)
and the weighted average number of
2,421,309,000 ordinary and convertible preference
shares diluted (year ended 31 December 2014:
2,417,495,000 ordinary and convertible preference
shares diluted), calculated as follows:

(b)

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

11 BEREF (&)

BREEER
EREFRINZEEXKEARRR
B 1535 27,160,000/ 7T (&
EZF-WF+ZA=1T—
B IEFE 120,149,000/ 7T)
RBBETRMDZ INEFHE
2,421,309,0008% & 3/ i% K 7] #
RELER (#8) (2%
—E+=—A=+—HBItFE:
2,417,495,0000% 38 I & 7] 32
AREAERR (B58) st EWT

Fifteen months Year ended

ended 31

31 March December

2016 2014

BZE HE

—E-RE —T—F

=A=+—HI +=—A=+—H

+EHEA LEFE

‘000 ‘000

Fi Fhig
Weighted average number of ordinary W=H +=-A=+—H
and convertible preference shares at 2 BRI B ST

31 March/December AR #3585 2,303,561 2,298,233
Effect of conversion of convertible SR TR B i 2 &

preference shares 117,707 117,707
Effect of deemed issue of shares under 1% A&iEIEZAN A 7] EE IR T

the Company's share option schemes — Z|Z1TR D 2 F & a4 15155
Weighted average number of ordinary ®W=H +=-A=+—H
and convertible preference shares 2 E R R TR AR B

(diluted) at 31 March/December F&% An#E T 15 & (5% ) 2,421,309 2,417,495
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12 N BERERE

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

Leasehold
and and
buildings
held for on
own Use Furniture,
carried Leasehold ~fixtures and Motor  Construction
at fair value  improvements equipment vehicles in progress Total
AR ESIR
BEERHE R EER
ThREF RENEEE % BHTA ERIE @&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FAr Fir FAr FAr Fir FAr
Cost or valuation: RAHME:
At 1 January 2014 R-E-MF-A—H 2,998 604 474,655 121,684 11,063 5471 3,611,477
Fichange adjustments B AT (10,263) (1,35) (543) (41) () (12,210)
Reclassification X b - 26,193 (26,376) 183 = =
Additions NE - - 25,819 590 73,364 99,773
Transfer inflout) g\/(1) - 57,630 12,816 - (70,446) -
Disposals RE - (8,357) (3,713) - - (12,070)
Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) Ef& &% (£ f#10) 509,365 = = = = 509,365
Less: elimination of accumulated 5 RB B E
depreciation (83,835) - - - - (83,835)
At 31 December 2014 RZE-ME+-A=1-H 3,413,871 548,765 129,687 11,795 8,382 4,112,500
Representing: R
Cost g - 548,765 129,687 11,795 8,382 698,629
Valuation - 31 December 2014 fHE-—5-M%
+-A=1t-H 3,413,871 - - - - 3,413,871
3,413,871 548,765 129,687 11,795 8,382 4,112,500
Accumulated depreciation and R ERFEFE:
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2014 RZZ-IE-A-H - 200,554 50,159 8,580 - 259,293
Exchange adjustments 5 A% 344 (342) (346) (66) = (#10)
Reclassification BB - 11,340 (11,424) 84 = =
Charge for the year ERE 83,491 36,635 18,037 1,051 = 139,214
Impairment losses HEEE - 46,506 - - = 46,506
Witten back on disposals REREE - (3,120) (2,825) - = (5,945)
Elimination on revaluation EffERE (83,835) - - - - (83,835)
At 31 December 2014 R-B-ME+-A=1-H - 291,573 53,601 9,649 - 354,823
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2014 R-E-RE+-A=1-H 3,413,871 257,192 76,086 2,146 8,382 3,757,677

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ES BT & AIA BT Z25)

12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12 YE -BERRKRE (&)

(continued)
Leasehold  Residential
land and properties
buildings ~ held for own
held foron use carried
ownuse atcostand Furniture,
carried leasehold  fixtures and Motor  Construction
at fair value improvements  equipment vehicles in progress Total
NERASIEZ
A BHER
g DAREYIER:  fBUER
2 BEEARE HE  Hh2ER
2 1iRET NEEE Hife EHTHE HEIR &t
> HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
= TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TEn
T
e Cost or valuation: HAHGE:
g At 1 January 2015 R-E-1%-f-H 3,413,871 548,765 129,687 11,795 8,382 4,112,500
2 Exchange adjustments ERAZ (191,446) (31,891) (8,559) (698) (478) (233,072)
3 Redlassification from investment ~ #REMEEFHE
& property (see Notes 12(b) and 13) (2 R12(6)%13) 101,319 - - - - 101,319
Additions NE 117,733 37,284 12,295 1,047 59,070 227429
> Transfer in/(out) ZA/(H) - 48,663 9,204 = (57,867) =
= Disposals RE - (22,145) (4,261) (519) - (26,925)
o8 Surplus on revaluation (see Note 10) EfEB% (2Hi#10) 174,468 = = = = 174,468
g Less: elimination of accumulated i : BHB5E
% depreciation (121,650) - - - - (121,650)
S
@ At 31 March 2016 RZE-7EZA=1-H 3,494,295 580,676 138,366 11,625 9,107 4,234,069
(o)}
Representing; i
Cost A - 580,676 138,366 11,625 9,107 739,774
Valuation - 31 March 2016 fE-—F-R"EZR=T-H  34%42% - - - - 349495
3,494,295 580,676 138,366 11,625 9,107 4,234,069
Accumulated depreciation and R HTERFEFE:
impairment losses:
At 1 January 2015 WZE-1F-f-H - 291,573 53,601 9,649 - 354,823
Bichange adjustments B RE (3,244) (17,603) (5,963) (599) - (27,409)
Charge for the period ERTE 124,894 54,110 19,544 955 = 199,503
Written back on disposals REREE - (17,256) (3.618) (503) = (21,377)
Elimination on revaluation B (121,650) - = = = (121,650)
At 31 March 2016 RZE-7EZA=t-H - 310,824 63,564 9,502 - 383,890
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 March 2016 RZE-~E=RA=1-H 3,494,295 269,852 74,802 2123 9,107 3,850,179
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of leasehold land
and buildings carried at fair value and
investment property

(i)

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

12 % -BERRE (&)

(a) BAAREIRZEET HRE
FREENEZAAEFE

Fair value hierarchy (i) AREER

The following table presents the fair value THREVNNHEPRLK

of the Group's leasehold land and buildings EHEEFEZAEEZ

and investment property measured at the end HELTHREFURKE
of the reporting period on a recurring basis, MEZARE BEZA
categorised into the three-level fair value AERAN=ZHD&HE
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value (REBVHREHEDE13
measurement. The level into which a fair value S [ AR EFE] 2ER)
measurement is classified is determined with SB-BRAREFENHE
reference to the observability and significance ZERDIBENTEER

of the inputs used in the valuation technique AP A A BUR 2 AT B R

as follows: MEREEMEEE:

e Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured e ZE—RHEE:EREA
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted E— R A8 (A
quoted prices in active markets for Ret2EARBEEES
identical assets or liabilities at the BERERMEZR
measurement date. KAEREB)FEZ

NfEe

e Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured e ZFE_RHEE:-FAESE
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable AR AEE (BIR
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and BEERE R 2AE
not using significant unobservable inputs. g A SR Bk
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which ERAERTAHRE
market data are not available. ABEBFEZARN

BHe MBI R A B
BAEMSEERRME
T2 A\ EUE -
e Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured e FZHHE:FHE
using significant unobservable inputs. AT A 2
HAEZARE
Fair value measurements
categorised into Level 2
TERE_RZDAENE
At At
Recurring fair value 31 March 31 December
measurements 2016 2014
R-B-—R"E RZT—WF
KEMDIAEFE =A=t+t—-H tZA=t1—H
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Leasehold land and buildings held for ~ #{EEAZHE +i RIEF
own use 3,494,295 3,413,871
Investment property (see Note 13) REME (RHE13) 1,656,360 1,808,848

—
N
~N

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
(a) Fair value measurement of leasehold land
and buildings carried at fair value and
investment property (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the fifteen months ended 31 March
2016, there were no transfers between Level 1
and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(year ended 31 December 2014: no transfer).
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at
the end of the reporting period in which they
occur.

All of the Group's leasehold land and
buildings carried at fair value and investment
property were revalued as at 31 March 2016.
The valuations were carried out by a an
independent firm of surveyor, Roma Appraisals
Limited, who have among their staff Fellows
of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with
recent experience in the location and category
of properties being valued. The Group's
Financial Controller has discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation
is performed at each interim and annual
reporting date.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in
Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of leasehold land and buildings
carried at fair value and investment property
located in the PRC is determined using market
comparison approach by reference to recent
sales price of comparable properties on a price
per square meter basis using market data
which is publicly available.

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

12 % -BERRE (&

(a) BAAEIRZEET HBRE
FREENEZAAEFE

(%)

(i)

(i)

ARBEER (&)
HEzE_ZT—X~F=A
=+—RHLE+HRE@EA I
BmE-QREF-_LAHBEZ
ERE ARE L E =
H(BHE_ZT—HWF+=
A=+ BLG&E - £8
B) AEB2BEXABR
TR mEBRER
NAEEBRS D HKEH
o

AEBRARRAETR
ZHE T REFIARK
BYWER_Z—RF=A
=+ BETEMHB-RRA
MER—BBILAETT
REBEERFEARRA
(REREMEG 288
I EERFHEYEME
Hh fe W) S AREY 2 A BE B
RB)ET REFHLF
EHE AHETHER
RER B B R AR B B BLA
BRI wmARMGERR

fHEAR-

B-RAAREFEBHER
Z A58 T 0% R A B 1%
IR EzZR R ESR
ZHE T REFIARK
BEMR AR BEERTS
LEEEE HEL2EA
HEBRYEIRE T KE
REEGBRRARZH
BB E OIMER-
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

(a) Fair value measurement of leasehold land

and buildings carried at fair value and
investment property (continued)

(iii) Depreciated cost of properties held for

Bt %5 R R Y &

== AF=A=+—AIt+EBA

+= —=

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

12 % -BERRE (&)

(a)

BARESR2EEL B RE
FREENEZAAEFE
(#%&)

(iii) AR RAESIRZIFIEE A

own use carried at fair value METERLE
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
RZE—RFE RKR-T—OF
=A=+—-8B +ZHA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FE T
Had the revalued properties carried  JUAR R EFIER 2 EEIEL
at fair value been carried at cost AR R 5T E KR EE1E
less accumulated depreciation and 58 BREES A
impairment losses, the carrying
amount would have been 2,063,985 2,030,074

(b) Reclassification from investment property to

()

property, plant and equipment

In a view to expand the operations of one of the
Group's department stores, the Group used certain
areas of its shopping mall for sale of goods to
customers instead of leasing to third parties from
1 July 2015. The above change in use resulted in
the reclassification of these areas from investment
property to property, plant and equipment. On
the date of reclassification, the fair value of these
areas recognised under investment property was
HK$101,319,000, which was determined based on
a valuation carried out by the same valuer using the
same valuation technique as mentioned in Notes
12(a)(i) and 12(a)(ii) above, and is deemed to be the
property's initial cost for subsequent accounting
under property, plant and equipment.

Title ownership

As at the date of this report, the Group was
in the progress of applying for registration of
the ownership certificates for certain of its
properties. The aggregate carrying value of such
properties as at 31 March 2016 was approximately
HK$36,000,000. The directors are of the opinion
the Group is entitled to lawfully occupy or use these
properties.

(b) AREVEEHIBEWE

()

B E R
ARABASBEESR—HBEEES
ZigE  AEERB T —RFt
A—BERFEREBEYPLZET
B MESEEER MIERET
FZH LMlBAREHEHRZE
RN EMEETHEEY
¥ WELRE - REFLEB
B ZZRGREBEREYWEER
Z NS {E 101,319,000 7T
ToiR & £ X BIsE12(a)(i) & 12(a)
(it B Rl — (HERDE R AER 2
AT RMET 2 GEmMEE - I
BWR AR BE K& E#®
TRESHRIER 2 MEVEK
z]go

XHEFERE

RAFREBH AEEEEAR
HETYWERBELMAEE
E-ZEMER_T—RE=
AZt+—BzReEEEAN
36,000,000 L - EEFR A KA
EEARSAMEANERZEY
% °

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

13 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

13 BEWE

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
Bz HE
—E-RE —T—pUE
=B=+—-Hit +=—A=+—H
+EHEA IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Valuation: {8 :
At 1 January R—H—H 1,808,848 1,647,163
Exchange adjustments RS (94,073) (4,949)
Reclassification to property, plant and EFDBEEWE  BEM&E
equipment (see Note 12(b)) (B HtzE12(b)) (101,319) -
Fair value adjustments (see Note 12(a)) AR EFE (RH7E12(a)) 42,904 166,634
At 31 March/December R=R/+=—B=+—8H 1,656,360 1,808,848
14 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 14 BEFEE
Trademark-
use-right
EAE AR
HK$000
FABT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2014 RZFE—ME—H—H 492,509
Exchange adjustments BE 5 5 28 14,500
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE—MNMF+=—A=+—"HBxK
—E—HRF—H—H 507,009
Exchange adjustments PE 3 o B (28,712)
At 31 March 2016 RZE—ARF=A=1+—H 478,297
Accumulated impairment losses: Rt REESSE:
At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 31 R-ZE—NME—H—HB —Z—NF
March 2016 TZA=+—RBRZZE—RF
=A=+—H =
Carrying amount: AREE :
At 31 March 2016 R-E—RE=ZA=+—H 478,297

At 31 December 2014

The Group's trademark-use-right represents the Group's

R-ZE—NMFEF+-_A=+—H 507,009

AEBZAEEREREASERE

use of the trademark “Ginwa” which the Group has (it | 2ERAE ERBEEEFB

acquired through its acquisitions of department store and

supermarket operations in prior years.

WEB SRS NERTSEEERS-
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S

BIAETZ5)

15 GOODWILL 15 B8
HK$'000
FET
Cost: RS
At 1 January 2014 RZE—MFE—HF—H 1,677,648
Exchange adjustments 0E i 72 49,556
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZZE—NME+-_A=+—HEK
—T-hF—-H—H 1,727,204
Exchange adjustments ERE =S (98,125)
At 31 March 2016 NZE—R"F=A=+—H 1,629,079
Accumulated impairment losses: R WERHE:
At 1 January 2014 R-ZZFE—M&E—HF—H 329,573
Exchange adjustments fE 5 3R EE 9,921
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 RZE—MFEF+=-_A=1+—HK
—E2—Hh&F—HF—H 339,494
Exchange adjustments b 55, 5 B (19,644)
At 31 March 2016 NZZE—R"F=A=+—H 319,850
Carrying amount: AREE:
At 31 March 2016 RZE—R"F=HA=+—H 1,309,229

At 31 December 2014

Impairment tests for cash-generating units

containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating
units identified according to the department store and

R_Z—NF+-_A=+—H

#

1,387,710

BEHECREEL BN ZRER

BEREBEINTHKE A EES MEB
BMGEEHEIREAEE 2 2R

supermarket operations acquired as follows: SEEB:
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
RZIE—RFE RKR-T—OF
=RA=+—-B tZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T

Century Ginwa Company Ltd. L EIERHDER AR

("Ginwa Bell Tower”) ([efEER]) 735,191 779,764
Golden Chance (Xi‘an) Limited Golden Chance (Xi'an) Limited 315,026 333,874
|deal Mix Limited Ideal Mix Limited 259,012 274,072
1,309,229 1,387,710

ETHENHRRUASTHR

G-/ EI—&
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15

-
(=)]

GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units
were determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets prepared by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. These cash flow
projections adopted annual growth rates ranging from
3% to 10% (31 December 2014: from 3% to 10%),
which are based on the Group's historical experience with
these operations and adjusted for other factors that are
specific to each cash generating unit. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimate
weighted average growth rate of 3% (31 December
2014: 3%) which is consistent with market consensus
on long-term growth rate of consumer markets in the
PRC. The cash flows are discounted using discount rates
ranged from 15% to 16% (31 December 2014: from
15% to 16%). The discount rates used are pre-taxed
and reflect specific risks relating to the respective cash
generating units.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets
or liabilities of the Group.

(BRIF=BEH -

Z R E T 25)

15 BE (&)

IR EAE B R AT IR [ 858 Th iR E A
EBEFEMET - B@AEDEAR
BEAAREEMAFHBEREMNITG
BFEAEENBESRETRM - ZF
emERAIBEASERZEHE
BB REBRERAFIERE A3%E
10% (ZE—WmF+_-_A=+—H:
3%E10% ) ETHE - WE— @R
CEABMBECEMARFARE B
BRFHB RS REFE AT nkE
T ER3I% (ZE—WNE+_A
=+—H:3%)ETHE ZEREX
HMERBEEEMGZRAKEER M
BHE B -BERBRAERE
FR15%=16% (ZZE—WMF+—1
=+—H:15%%16% ) #7785 3R -
Fr{E FABRIR R ABR A ATAGIR XK - RBR
HMEBRSELBNEBZEETRAR -

16 REKMBAT

TREFIEIZREAKERE &

EXRBEZHBRBIFS-

Proportion of ownership interest

HEERRDLH
Place of The
establishment  Particulars of Group's Held
and registered and effective by the Held by Principal
Name of company operations paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries activities
BRI R EEfmR4R  AREz  HAREY HWELF
NAER EXuE Rx&s  BRER K8 BE IEER
Century Ginwa Company Limited* The PRC RMB235,500,000 83.88% = 83.88%  Operation of
2 SERHBBAA t ARE department
235,500,0007C store
REnEmS
Century Ginwa Urumgi Shopping Mall The PRC RMB50,000,000 100% - 100%  Operation of
Company Limited* i ARE department
EREEESEABRYTLERAH 50,000,0007C store
Kergms
Shaanxi Century Ginwa Tangrenjie The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% - 100%  Operation of
Shopping Mall Company Limited* i AR department
RELLEEEAGHSEREEAT 20,000,0007 store

R
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16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 WEMEBRAR (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

BEERRLH
Place of The
establishment  Particulars of Group's Held
and registered and effective by the Held by Principal
Name of company operations paid up capital interest Company subsidiaries activities
RIK BERRER  AKEZ mARE HNEATF
NAEB EXni kxg® - BREZR oL BE IEXK
Xi'an Century Ginwa Nandajie Shopping  The PRC RMB5,000,000 100% - 100%  Operation of
Mall Company Limited* i ARH department
BRELSEEAGENPLERA 5,000,007 store
BREREHS
Xi‘an Century Ginwa Saigo Shopping Mall  The PRC RMB30,000,000 100% - 100%  Operation of
Company Limited* t AEH department
BRELEEERRNERAR 30,000,0007 store
KEnERS
Xi'an Century Ginwa Shopping Mall The PRC HK$65,000,000 100% = 100%  Operation of
Company Limited* iF 65,000,000 7 department
ARt e EENERAA store
KEnERS
Xianyang Century Ginwa Trade and The PRC RMB3,000,000 100% - 100%  Operation of
Commerce Company Limited* i ARH department
REtEeEEEFRAR 3,000,0007T stores and
supermarkets
RERERER
ik Gk
Xi'an Yixin Property Management The PRC RMB536,885,750 100% - 100%  Properties
Company Limited* r ARH management
BZEENFERERAA 536,885, 7507 ESE
Shaanxi Qianhui Properties Company The PRC RMB252,800,000 100% - 100%  Operation of
Limited* iF ARH shopping mall
RAETEEXERAT 252,800,007 gesndo
Xi'an Honghui Property Management The PRC RMB124,000,000 100% = 100%  Properties
Company Limited* i ARH management
BREENLERERAT 124,000,0007C NEEE
@ The English translation of the names of these companies * RENTZRENEZEHREZ
are for reference only. The official names of these ERAIZIERBTEAR X A%

companies are in Chinese.

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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16 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The following table lists out the information relating
to Ginwa Bell Tower, the only subsidiary of the Group
which has material non-controlling interests (“NCI").
The summarised financial information presented below
represents the amounts before any inter-company

F—NF=ZA=+—HIE+TAMEA
(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

16 REMBLR (4)
TREIIAEE M —FBERIFER
iz MBARSEEEAMZE
B X2 2B ANBERL K
GUNGIOPNIE oAt

elimination.
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
Bz BHE
—E-REF —Z—[F
=A=+—-ALt +=-A=+—H
+HEA HFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Revenue & 516,838 488,367
Profit for the period/year AR,/ RE R T 58,498 136,820
Profit for the period/year attributable to BN,/ REEIFEREREN
NCI Nl 9,430 22,055
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,548,062 1,126,670
Current assets B EE 1,636,758 1,573,494
Current liabilities mEEE (2,151,259) (1,718,284)
Net assets BEFH 1,033,561 981,880
Net assets attributable to NCI RSN EE SR 166,610 158,279
17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF 17 WYX 2 FEFFRE
PROPERTIES
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R-B-—XRE RIT—0OF
=A=+-8B +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FE T
Prepayments for acquisition of commercial 4 8% 2 3£ ¥ £ 2 T8 4 208
properties (see Note (i) (2 HEEG)) 872,428 444,923
Prepayments for acquisition of an WiE—EEEH T EEISZ
underground parking compound (see Note T8t 38 ( £ ff 7% (i)
(i) - 75,421
Prepayments for acquisition of residential W EEW % 2 B {58
properties (see Note (iii) ( & B 7% iii)) = 38,028
872,428 558,372
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17 PREPAYMENTS FOR ACQUISITIONS OF
PROPERTIES (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The amounts represent partial payments made by
the Group for its intended acquisition of commercial
properties under development that are situated in the
PRC. On 4 December 2014, the Group, through Ginwa
Bell Tower, entered into an acquisition agreement with
Shanghai Huade Investment Company Limited (“Huade
Investment”), pursuant to which Huade Investment agreed
to procure a project company, to develop the above
properties in accordance with the requirements of Ginwa
Bell Tower, and Ginwa Bell Tower agreed to purchase part
of the above properties for an aggregate consideration
of RMB1,651,112,750 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,981,335,300). During the fifteen months ended 31
March 2016, the directors of the Company considered
that certain conditions stipulated in the acquisition
agreement have been fulfilled, and accordingly the
Group made a scheduled payment of RMB370,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$444,000,000) to Huade
Investment. These properties are intended to be used by
the Group to expand its retail operations. In accordance
with the above agreement, the development of these
properties is expected to be completed in 2018.

The amounts at 31 December 2014 represent payments
made by the Group for its intended acquisition of an
underground parking compound situated at one of the
properties owned by the Group. The acquisition has been
completed on 3 July 2015. The acquired underground
parking compound is held by the Group for own use,
accordingly is recognised as leasehold land and buildings
held for own use carried at fair value.

The amounts at 31 December 2014 represent payments
made by the Group for its intended acquisitions of three
residential properties. The acquisition was completed
in the second half of 2015 and these properties were
recognised as residential properties held for own use
carried at cost.

Bt %5 R R Y &

== AF=A=+—ALTEEA

+= —=

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

(i)

(iii)

17 WEYMEZANRE (&)

REREAEERKWBURTEZ

EEEEMEMEL 2 EMm 5K
R-ZE-—NE+-ANB - A&EE
BRSEEEZER FSTEERER
AR ([TEEIEE])FT W
FOREMN O EERERERFEEE
ARRBIECIEEZ B R Lt
ME MELEEREUNAREA
R #1,651,112,7507C (HER L
1,981,335,3005% 7T ) g B 5 Ll
ME-BE_T—ANEF=ZA=1+—
BiE+HR@EA ARARESERAK
BHSEETN2ETHRGC&ER
NEEW AW EEEREEREAR
#370,000,0007T 2 #2518+ 5% (48
Z A 49444,000,0008 7T ) o %) ¥
HRAAEBARBERASTEELE
B IR IE bl 2EWE AR
FEHBN T — \Fmke

R-ZE—MFE+-_A=+—HzZ
SFIREAEBBRERBALR SR
HEP—HEBEMEZH T EES
BEMELHZER - WEER=ZE
—RAFtA=HEK -BUKIE
TEBESRERAEEFIEER
Et R AR AR EINRZFER
BzHELHNIEF-

R-ZE—MFE+-_A=+—H<ZZ
ESHEAEERKE=HEED
2B - WBER=_Z—AF T
FETH ZEVEBRBIEKAR
PRz FIEE A2 -

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIESR BHEEH & BB T Z25)
18 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE EQUITY SECURITIES 18 At HEEREFZ S
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R=EB-—RE RZZE—NOF
=A=t—-B tZA=t1—H
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT FEL
Listed in the PRC (see Note 28(f)i) R i (B HTaE28(F)3)) 402,480 358,981

The available-for-sale equity securities represent the
30,000,000 Ginwa Enterprise (Group) Inc., a company
listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange (“Ginwa Enterprise
A-Shares”). The fair value of these equity securities at
31 March 2016 are re-measured based on the closing
price of the Ginwa Enterprise A-Shares on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange, resulting in a increase in fair value of
HK$62,640,000, which was included in the fair value
reserve in equity (see Note 10).

As at 31 March 2016, these available-for-sale equity
securities (31 December 2014: HK$Nil) were pledged to
secure one of the Group's short-term bank loans (see
Notes 24(a) and 24(c)).

Al 4t & #E 25 75 % $530,000,0000%
SRECE(EB)RODBERAA (—
MR EEBAFR G EM AT’
D ([SELEARRKRMD]) - FiiiEzs
BER_ZE—ARNF=ZA=+—8Z
/Afc@fﬁiﬁéﬁﬁ%m&ﬁ%ﬁ%b
BERGAZWTMEEHRE B
N B HN162,640,000% It IE@
ERERR 2 AR BEFER (LK
10) °

RZE—ARF=ZA=+—H" Luir
Tﬁﬁﬂyﬂ&‘;&#(_i WE+=A
=t+—H: B T)EBERUNELRE
IZ%M,HME?T%?M’E}E%(iﬁﬁﬁm
(a)K224(c)) °

19 SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 19 EHRE
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R-ZBE—R"FE RIZT—0OF
=A=+—8 +-A=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$000
FET FEL
Investments in debt securities: & ﬂ‘%h%??xé{

— with original maturity more than three REHRZHR=1EHA
months 273,480 535,958

— with original maturity within three REHER=EAAN
months (see Note 22) (R H17F22) 480,316 50,703
753,796 586,661

The debt securities represent wealth management
products issued by financial institutions in the PRC with
guaranteed principals amounts and fixed or variable
returns, and are recognised in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in Notes 2(f) and 2(n).

EREAFERTESBEEERT 2R
aﬁﬁi&IE‘RTﬁ**@i&ZﬁEﬁE

an + WARIR MY EE2(F) R 2(n) FTE & 51 K
ﬁ%%tﬂﬁﬁ@o
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (continued) 19 BHARE (&)
As at 31 March 2016, short-term investments of RZE—RNF=ZA=+—H" 25
HK$273,480,000 (31 December 2014: HK$Nil) were % &273,480,0008 7 (=& — O 4F
pledged to secure the Group's short-term bank loans (see +TZA=1+—8 :THx) HERUE
Notes 24(a) and 24(c)). AEBZRBETEREER (LK

5¥24(a) }24(c)) °

INVENTORIES 20 78

At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
RZE—RE R —EOF
=A=+—-8B +ZH=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&EL
Merchandises 7 102,514 120,158
Low value consumables KESEm 6,270 6,125
108,784 126,283

An analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense and included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss is as follows:

BRASAXLIAGEBERZFE
RIEDMT :

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFEREE

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31

31 March December

2016 2014

S HE
—E-RE —ZT—F
=Z=A=+—-Hit +=-A=+—H
TEHEA IHFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
801,985 659,959

—
W
~N

ETHENHRRUASTHR

G-/ EI—&
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

21

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

21 FEUW AR K H fth FE WK

At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R-B-—XRE RIT—OF
=Z=A=t—-H +tZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FET
Trade receivables from third parties JEWEE =FH R (R Hat21(a))
(see Note 21(a)) 48,452 69,318 }
Amounts due from related parties FEURBRE AN T FRIB (R HTE21(b))
(see Note 21(b)) 22,304 13,159 ;
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables: 781 3038 « 12 & I H b fE U 5K -
— Value added tax refundable —AREEER 114,098 131,948
— Receivables from third parties —ERE=FHE
(see Note 21(c)) (R HE21(c)) 352,994 547,811
— Prepayments and deposits for operating —&&HRE 2 EMNRBELRE S
leases 6,150 5,552
- Others —HAfh 24,861 37,747
498,103 723,058
568,859 805,535
Except for deposits of HK$3,662,000 (31 December B 12 $3,662,0008 T (Z T — W F
2014: HK$3,945,000), all of the trade and other +=A=+—H:3,945,000/% L)
receivables are expected to be recovered or recognised as G - BT A JFE IS BR 7k Ko EL th JiE U 2k 78 ER
expenses within one year. B —F AR B KER AT -
Details of the Group's credit policy are set out in Note AREBZEEBRRFBIHNLMW =

28(a). 28(a) °
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

21 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade

receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts)
with the following ageing analysis (based on the

(BRIEBHHSH  FRILET23)
21 PEWARFR IR B Ath FE UK (4%)

(a) FRERDHT
At A R B R R L A R MR
FEY R (E MR RERFHE) R
BEHRREON (RERH

invoice date) as of the end of the reporting period: B R -
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
RZE-—RFE RKR-T—OF
=H=+-HBH +t=ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$°000
FE7T FHET
Less than 1 month LSR—1EHA 20,862 36,708

More than 1 month but less than 3 —EAARNEELR=MA

months 8,177 13,517
More than 3 months =@AKE 19,413 19,093
48,452 69,318

Trade receivables from third parties relate to credit
card centres owned by financial institutions and
tenants operating in the Group's department
stores, shopping mall and supermarkets for whom
there were no recent history of default and have
a good track record with the Group. Based on
past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Amounts due from related parties

The amounts due from related parties are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Receivables from third parties

Included in the balance are receivables of
HK$327,631,000 at 31 March 2016 (31 December
2014: HK$500,971,000) due from a third party
which provides services in managing the Group's
customer loyalty programme, and the sale and
usage of customers' prepaid cards within the
Group's department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets (hereinafter referred to as the
“Prepaid Card Management Company”).

ERE=TTRRERMBEREREEZ
ERRFLERAKRERERS B
WHRLRBRTEEECHFER:
M &% % #6 18 J 15 P 3 5 B 32 A0 RC 8%
BREAEEA Rz EERLE RIE
BEER BEERENGEHETRAXEE
SIERERE REAREEERLE
ERNE LR SHED A 28D -
N SE IRy e o S S SR LI

0
am °

(b) EUWEEALRE

JEUBAE A T RIEAEER %
BN 4 B TE & SR o

() BEWE=FFE

RZE—RFE=A=1+—8"
& W % =75 5/I8327,631,000/8
T(ZE—NmNF+=ZA=+—
H : 500,971,000 7T ) B 5t A&
B ZE=H (LATHEBAE
NREBQAR)ALAEENE
FERBEFNE REERS B
YR B AR T 5 A SH & X fFE A
XEBEMNRIRHEEERS -

ETHENHRRUASTHR

HEhEN—/E—&
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
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22 CASH AT BANK AND ON HAND

BE_ZT-—NF=A=1+—HIt+HEA
(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

22 RITHEERFERE

At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R-ZE—R"FE RZIZT—OF
=A=+—-B +ZH=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cash at bank and on hand in the AV BRARBTRIEELRT
consolidated statement of financial BEIRE
position 473,583 357,673
Add: short-term investments with original ~ fn: RE/E A A=1{E8 A AR 2 25
maturity within three months RE (ZHEF19)
(see Note 19) 480,316 50,703
Less: restricted cash at bank WSRITXBREE (RHF30)
(see Note (i) (166,764) (142,995)
Cash and cash equivalents in the MEReRERZAER
consolidated cash flow statement ReFEEE 787,135 265,381
Note: B 5
() Restricted cash at bank at 31 March 2016 represented ) HRZE—X"FEF=ZA=+—8%2

bank deposits of HK$166,764,000 (31 December 2014:

HK$123,981,000) pledged to secure
loans (see Note 24(c)).

The Group's operations of department

mall and supermarkets in the PRC are conducted in
RMB. RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of RMB out of Mainland China is subject to
the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

the Group's bank

TRBTREREEBRETEX
166,764,000/ 70 (= Z— &+ —

A =-+—H :123,981,000/% 7T ) #
AR A A AN 2 8] 7 SR 1T B BB IR R

( B HMiE24(0)) »

stores, shopping

AR

AEERTBEZBEERS BYH O
RBEMERERBTIAAREE
T ARBRIFEALKEE &E
B A A RS SRR X AP B
JiF 18 5 60 A B SN & 1 A5 B X2 A8 B Py
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZE_-ZFE—NF=HA=+—HI-+EfA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZ B85 BRI BT ES)
23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23 ENERRREMENR
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R-B-—XRE R-ZT—NTF
=ZB=+—-B tZH=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Trade payables arising from: FENBRFEATRBESE

— Concession sales — B EEHE 876,193 840,035
— Purchase of inventories -BEFE 96,844 84,651
973,037 924,686

Amounts due to related parties FEASTRAE A T FRIB (R M)

(see Note (i) 13,392 18,595
Other payables and accrued expenses: HENRRENER:

— Payables for staff related costs —-ENZETHBEEHR 40,006 60,995

— Payables for miscellaneous taxes —FES R 10,262 27,682

— Payables for interest expenses and —ENNEBRAREEZRIK

transaction costs on borrowings PN 27,984 27,590

— Payables for handling charges to the —ENENREERARIZERE

Prepaid Card Management Company H 10,109 46,011
— Payables for operating leases —ENKERE 126,363 116,957

- Deposits from concessionaries and - FAKEEREP RS
customers 48,616 50,301
- Dividends payables — MR 6,749 7.011

— Payables for redemption of warrants — B B R AR 5

(see Note (ii)) (2 Hiat(i) 18,221 =
- Others —Hfh 49,029 85,969
337,339 422,516

Financial liabilities measured at amortised ~ A E#EK AT EZ SR A E

cost 1,323,768 1,365,797
Derivative financial instruments TESBI A (FHE>))

(see Note (i) - 22,164
Deferred income EIEIA 17,418 34,612
Receipts in advance L0 87,807 130,449

1,428,993 1,553,022

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognised as revenue or net income or
in profit or loss within one year or are repayable on

demand.

FT 7B FE 1~ AR 3K B2 HL th & < SR TR BR G IR
—FAEERIIREREEIERRK
o A FRE S i85 o

ETHENHRRUASTHR

G-/ EI—&
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes:

()

(i)

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and
have no fixed terms of repayment.

On 5 September 2013, a subsidiary of the Group entered
into a loan agreement with bank A outside of Mainland
China for the draw-down of USD30,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$232,692,000). Pursuant to the loan
agreement, the Company issued 66,114,000 warrants
to this bank A on the same day. Each warrant entitles
the holder to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company, where a maximum of 66,114,000 ordinary
shares in the Company can be subscribed during the
period from 5 September 2013 to 4 March 2016. The
initial exercise price of each warrant to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company is HK$2.2874. On
the first anniversary of the warrants issuance date, i.e. 5
September 2014, the exercise price of the warrant was
adjusted to HK$1.6012 per warrant. On the maturity
date, 4 March 2016, the warrants holder can require the
Group to redeem any unexercised warrants at a price of
USD0.03554467 (equivalent to approximately HK$0.276)
each (i.e. the redemption option). No warrants have ever
been exercised up to the maturity date. The warrants
were derecognised as derivative financial instruments and
reclassified to payable for redemption of warrants after
maturity.

Upon the maturity date, bank A exercised its redemption
option to request the Group to redeem the outstanding
warrants at an aggregate redemption price of USD2,350,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$18,221,000). The
redemption of these warrants was fully settled by the Group
on 30 June 2016, further details of which are disclosed in
Note 24(a)(i) to the consolidated financial statements.

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

23 ENRAKREMENRK (&2)

it -

(i)

(i)

ZEFRAR/EER 2B RLEE

R-E—=FhLAAA AEE—
FE B B A R E2rR B Nt 5 A0 2 SRAT A
5] 3 B X {5 5% LA $2 B30,000,0003
7T (A& R #9232,692,0008 7T) &
Ko BEBEERGRZ  AAaRERR
BT A%E1T66,114,00017 iR ARAERE
EORBREER TREARELRR
A—REBER MR=ZFE—=FAN
BRARZE=ZZ— "= AHBHHE
A LARRRE AN A Rl & %66,114,000/%
TERBED - ARBAAR—BREAE
&2 B RREE 2 NTITEER
2.2874% Lo IR AR #EFE T I B A7
—BAE(P-ZE—mMEAARR)
REEFBZITEEEAREENR
AR HEFE1.60128 L -REIER (=
E—AF=-ZANA) RBEES
BATERAEFIZ TN RIRER
0.03554467% 7T (FBZER#10.2767%
TL) 2 BB R M R TE 2 AR
FEFE (BEEE AA4E) - BB R B A R
MAREBFETE - RREFE W
HEREBTESRMTIARETHIE
A5 H H 1% 08 B 52 I i 55 2 JE A 3K
I8 o

REIERE - $R1TAFT {5 EL & 0] H 4 A
TRAEE L EE D {E2,350,000%
7T (FEE5124918,221,000/8 7T ) BE @
BARITEZRRIEE - AEBR =
T—AREFEANA=ZTHEZEENER
ZERREE E—FHBERER
iR A BT TS Rk M sE24(a)() °
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(BRIESHIEH  TRILETZES)

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued) 23 BEERR R HthESRR (&)

Ageing analysis BR#R 2 AT

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables BT A AT BR SR R L B 5 R 2 FE ST BR

with the following ageing analysis (based on the maturity TR ERRZ RIS (REIER)

date) as of the end of the reporting period: N

At At

31 March 31 December

2016 2014

R-ZB—-RE RZZT—WF

=ZB=+-B tZH=+—H

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FET

Due within one month or on demand R —1E8 B A B H sk i B R A+ 973,037 924,686

24 BANK LOANS

(@) The Group's short-term bank loans are

24 SRITER
(a) AEEZEHRITERS W

analysed as follows: T:
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
RZB—-RE RZZT-NOEF
=A=+—-H +tZA=t+—H
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Secured by the Group's leasehold land  AZREE TR E £ i K12 F(EHE
and buildings and guaranteed by the WHEARE  RAF—BEF
Company, a director of the Company NMAREB B A RER
and a subsidiary of the Group 60,000 =
Secured by the Group's available-for-sale JAZR 5 B AT 4t i & 4 a5 B 1E 3K
equity securities # 192,000 -
Secured by bank deposits and/or short-  JASRITE R K /5 f2 BRI & (B
term investments and guaranteed WA AEE  HEARSK
by a subsidiary of the Group or the ARAVER (EHEEI))
Company (see Note (i) 349,046 62,675
Guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Group HZA%EE ZHBAR RARE—
and a director of the Company HREERER 60,000 253,518
Guaranteed by the Company B AR A ER 250,896 86,951
911,942 403,144
Add: m:
Current portion of long-term bank loans & H#$R17E 7 2 BIEA L5
(see Note 24(b)) (B HFaE24(b)) 89,003 355,388
Overdue bank loan repayable on demand BiZ BK B8 2 B HETER
(see Note (i) (R HEE) 65,166 -
Long-term bank loan repayable on BREREZRARITER
demand (see Notes (i) and 24(b)) (B HaE1)24(b)) 615,749 686,549
1,681,860 1,445,081

ETHENHRRUASTHR

G-/ EI—&
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(@) The Group’s short-term bank loans are
analysed as follows: (continued)

Notes:

(i)

On September 2013, a subsidiary of the Group
entered into a loan agreement with bank A
outside of Mainland China for the draw-down
of USD30,000,000 with an embedded warrant
instrument which has the same due date as the
bank loan (see Note 23(ii)). On the due date, 4
March 2016, while the Group had sufficient cash at
bank (primarily in the form of RMB) at that time, it
was not able to repay the outstanding bank loan of
USDS8,402,769 and related interest of USD43,648
(equivalent to approximately HK$65,492,000) and
was not able to redeem the outstanding warrants
at an aggregate redemption price of USD2,350,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$18,221,000) as the
Group did not have adequate USD at bank and on
hand. The Group through continuous discussions
with bank A has undertaken to resolve the default
and bank A has not taken any enforcement action
against the Group. On 29 June 2016, the Group
upon consent of relevant government authorities
has remitted RMB78,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$91,244,000) out of Mainland
China, which has been converted into USD, and
immediately used to fully settle the overdue bank
loan and redemption of outstanding warrants.

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

24 RITER (4)
(a) AEBEZEHRITERD UM
T: (&)

Ff it

(i)

RZFE—=FhLA A5H
— MM B A &) AR B i 5
SN2 SR ITART 3 B K15 & A
$2 EX30,000,000% ;T E 7
H [t %2 HA B B2 4R 17 & AR
AzAERREZXE(R
B 5E23(i)) cREIHR (= F
—NEZAWAB) AEE
REZBEERRRTET (£
ERAREER) HAE
B REEEERAREECBRIT
B 78,402,769 jt & 1A
F 843,648 T (FHER L
65,492,000/ 7T ) * 37 B K 8&
1% 42 8% [0] (82,350,000 JT
(#8511 #918,221,0005% JT )
fE O] 1 RT3 2 SRARFE R - R
A AEERBITRFELT
75 BT o A K B A B
TARBEN R BARERE
49 R ERTT AL £ S5 AN & B R
BAEABETE - RZF— X
FRXAZ+T A RIEEERT
BHRERAEEE B E
A o BE A K #78,000,000
T (FBE R #991,244,0007%
L) ZREERBAETLT
BB 2 S 1) _E s B 51U
K R B 8 R 1718 2 SRR

= o
)
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(@) The Group’s short-term bank loans are
analysed as follows: (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(continued)

The above overdue bank loan constituted a cross
default of the USD and HK$ denominated loans
borrowed from bank B outside of Mainland
China with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$964,795,000 at 31 March
2016, including (a) USD and HK$ denominated
short-term bank loans with respective carrying
amount of USD12,000,000 and HK$256,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$349,046,000 in
aggregate), which became repayable on demand
prior to their original contractual repayment date;
and (b) a HK$ denominated long-term bank loan of
HK$615,749,000 with repayable on demand clauses
which give bank B unconditional rights to demand
immediate repayment of the long-term loan at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has complied
with any covenant or met the scheduled repayment
obligations. Up to the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements, bank B outside of
Mainland China has not yet demanded immediate
repayment of these bank loans.

The Group has undertaken measures to address
the repayments of USD and HK$ denominated
bank loans from bank B outside of Mainland
China including: (a) the Group is in the process of
applying to the relevant government authorities for
establishing a cross-border RMB cash pool, which is
a RMB deposit account designated for inbound and
outbound flows of RMB. Once the Group obtains
the PRC government’s approval for establishing
the cross-border RMB cash pool, the Group will be
able to remit RMB through such cash pool to repay
the above USD and HK$ denominated borrowings;
and (b) subsequent to the reporting period, the
Group has obtained a five-year term bank loan
of RMB940,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,128,000,000) from bank B in the Mainland
China, which will be used to settle the above USD
and HK$ denominated bank loans repayable on
demand from bank B outside of Mainland China
through the cross-border RMB cash pool to be
established and to improve the liquidity position of
the Group.

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

24 RITEK (&)
() &2 EMBTERD A

T: (&)
Hiex: (&)
(i) (%)

FaiEHRRITE B R R A
B AR AN 2 SRITBZ AN &
EAETL KRBT EZBEX
RXEHN BEFRZ=ZF—X
F=A=+—HZEHEES
964,795,000 It B #E(a) A
ETRBITFHEZRBRRITE
X BRE{E 2 51 412,000,000
3% JT %256,000,0007 7T (42
5118 & R 49349,046,00078
L) EERREHERHA
BRI R K EE: R(b)A
BLFEZEHRHETER
615,749,000/ L' &R &G
AR BREBIER 4G TIRIT
BAE i (R FI AT AT B R 5K
VEAMEEER  TwmALBER
BESFEM AN BT EIE
REF -BEZEHAVIER
FHLERHR - R E AN Z
IRITBM AR BRI BAMEEZSE
RITER -

AN B B EREUE M A R (E 2
B 3B SN 2 SRITBZ BASE
TLRBTTEZEBTER 8
& (a)7~ 55 B IE 7E [ A8 B3 BR fF
HFRBRY —EABREAR
KIS HA—EETERAR
AREHEHIBERS 2 AR
GHRERP - —BASEESR
VEBEAREIESH ZHE
AT 8L - AN SR B 15 B 40355 1R
ZEEHELAREUEE
FHUETLRBLTEZE
B RORBEHZE K&
BB H B A 2 8517 BER
B—S2RFHERTERAR
#£940,000,0007T (HBE R 4)
1,128,000,000% 7T) * & AR
ERFRUIZEEARBES
BB R B A EI 2 RTTB
Z PR ESREREAET R
BILEHEZ RITE KA RikE
REBZREBESAKR

ETHENHRRUASTHR

HEhEN—/E—&
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(BRIEZ=BIER

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b) The Group's long-term bank loans are

&R BT 22 )

24 BITER (4)

(b) *EEZRUARITERS

A 40

analysed as follows: T:
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R-ZB—-—XRE RIT—OF
=A=+—-RH +ZA=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FE& T
Secured by the Group's investment IAAREE 2 % E Y EER R
property 457,500 500,698
Secured by the Group's bank deposits ~ AAEBZBITERL/SEE
and/or leasehold land and buildings THIRBFEERER WHAR
and guaranteed by the Company and/ &1 & /S ADFEE R AR
or a director of the Company and/or SEZHMBARER
subsidiaries of the Group 1,427,948 1,486,541
1,885,448 1,987,239
Less: i
Current portion of long-term bank loans & #3877 & 5% 2 BN EA E6 5
(see Note 24(a)) (R Hit24(a)) (89,003) (355,388)
Long-term bank loan repayable on BREKEE 2 RIARITER
demand (see Note 24(a)) (R Hizt24(a)) (615,749) (686,549)
1,180,696 945,302

The Group's long-term bank loans are repayable as

AEB 2 RERITEFAR THIHHE

follows: Epe
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
RZ2-X"F R-_FT-@HmF
=B=+-HB +tZA=+—8H
HK$'000 HK$000
FER FET
Within 1 year or on demand —ERNHIRE K 704,752 355,388
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFNR 109,731 290,258
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBRFR 453,747 814,417
After 5 years HFE 617,218 527,176
1,885,448 1,987,239
All of the non-current interest-bearing bank loans Fﬁﬁ#ﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂrgﬁ AR BREK
and the long-term bank loan repayable on demand FrEE 2 REISRTT i’jhﬂé&iﬁ}i$

are carried at amortised cost. None of the non-
current interest-bearing bank loans is expected to
be settled within one year.

As a result of the cross default as disclosed in Note
24(a)(i), the repayable analysis of the long-term
bank loan subject to repayment on demand clauses
was categorised into within 1 year or on demand at
31 March 2016. The analysis at 31 December 2014
was based on the contractual repayment schedule.

A o 1 4 3F B 1A qu,%\%Eﬁiéffﬂﬁ,Hﬁ

BR—FRNEE-

B PR AR S TE24(a) (i) I BB 2 52 SXUE 4D

RIE—

RNE=ZA=+—8"

X B

EREEGAARR 2 RHRITER
ZEFOMERBE-—FAARE

I o AT

Tt

A=+t—Hz

DMTHERENERGTE



24 BANK LOANS (continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 R R Y &

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A
(BRIESHIEH  TRILETZES)

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

The following assets and their respective carrying
values as at the end of the reporting period are
pledged to secure the Group's long-term bank
loans:

(c)

24 BITER (&)

THEERES B ZREERA
HERRD WERAMERAEE
ZRESRITERZER:

At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014

R-B-X"F R-FT-NWOF
=A=t-B tZA=t+—H

HKS$'000 HK$'000

FET FE T

Leasehold land and buildings HELHRIET 2,178,353 1,251,109

Investment property BREME 1,656,360 1,471,718
Available-for-sale equity securities AN ERRES (AA1E18)

(see Note 18) 402,480 -
Short-term investments (see Note 19) REEE (AKF19) 273,480 =
Cash at bank (see Note 22(i)) RITERT (RMEE223)) 166,764 123,981

4,677,437 2,846,808

Certain of the Group’s bank loans are subject to
the fulfilment of covenants commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If
the Group were to breach the covenants, the loan
would become repayable on demand. Except for the
cross default disclosed in Note 24(a)(i), the Group
complied with all other lending covenants.

At 31 March 2016, the Group's banking facilities
amounting to HK$600,000,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$633,794,000) were utilised to the extent of
HK$250,896,000 (31 December 2014: HK$86,951,000).

(d)

(e)

AEEETRITERAmEES
MEBECERRHERZE AR
o AR EE R R BERE
BRRIR BSRIEE - BRI FE24(a)
(VB ZRXIERNIN NEED
BT A E SR -

R-_E—XRF=A=+—8"
& B 2 #1715 600,000,000
BLT(ZE—UE+_A=+—
H 633,794,000/ 7C) R EEFH
250,896,000/ 7 (=& — IO 4
+=—A=+—H :86,951,000/%
JL) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ES BT & AIA BT Z25)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 EREEEUROGIT2ZRS

TRANSACTIONS
(a) Share option scheme (a) BRHEE

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 6 November 2001, whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees and service providers
of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up share options at HK$1 to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company. The
share options granted in 2010 do not have a vesting
condition and are exercisable within a period of five
years. Each share option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company
at HK$1.26 each, and is settled gross in shares.

The Company has a share option scheme which
was adopted on 15 February 2011, whereby the
directors of the Company are authorised, at their
discretion, to invite employees and service providers
of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, to take up share options at HK$1
to subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company.
For the share options granted in 2011, 6,975,000
share options will vest immediately from the date
of grant, and for the remaining 37,050,000 share
options, 50% will vest after one year from the date
of grant, another 30% will vest after two years from
the date of grant, and the remaining 20% will vest
after three years from the date of grant. The share
options granted in 2011 will lapse on 20 October
2017. Each share option gives the holder the right
to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company
at HK$1.96 each, and is settled gross in shares.

ARRIRE —BBREELR
—EE-F+-ANEEAN B
AR RIE R R R RIS EE
AEBERE MREHEE (BT
AEBETNEARRAZES)E
1B TEMA REBARR R EEK
B 2B - R T —FFE
2 B b I S B BB AR A BL AT R0
REFHATAITE - B BEARE
ETHRHA AR AER1.2668TR
B—BARR BB - LA
iy 2BEE 2R -

ARRER-_Z—F_A+H
HERMBRESTE Bt AR
REFERERNBEEEREN
AEEZRBHES (BERE
EERKERARES)KRIBTT
B REBAQR T BRI G

ERE-R-_ZE——FFHEZ
BAHEM S © 6,975,00017 & Ik
E¥ea R L BERANTERE
Mgk 88 T37,050,00017 B AL #E M
T EYHESea R EHABE—
FHREB B 30%EeARE
HERREMFELEB £ T20%#
CERHBBE=-"FELEBE -1
T —FREEREREEN
E—+E+A-THER-EH
B FHA AR LAER%1.96
BILRBARNA—REBRE
B WARDEBLEE ZEF -



Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

25 BRRBEEEUBRSGEMNZR
7 (&)
BREE (F)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continued) (a)

On 28 May 2013, 67,105,000 share options were
granted to directors of the Company and employees
of the Group under the above share option scheme.
Of the share options granted, 33,552,500 share
options will vest one year from the date of grant,
20,131,500 share options will vest two years from
the date of grant, and 13,421,000 share options
will vest three years from the date of grant. The
share options granted will lapse on 28 May 2019.
Each share option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company at
HK$1.73 each, and is settled gross in shares.

On 30 May 2013, in order to comply with the
Listing Rules, 4,750,000 of the share options
granted to certain directors of the Company on 28
May 2013 were cancelled, and the Company has
replaced them with the granting of 2,300,000 share
options to these directors. Of the share options
granted, 1,150,000 share options will vest one year
from the date of grant, 690,000 share options will
vest two years from the date of grant, and 460,000
share options will vest three years from the date
of grant. The share options granted will lapse on
30 May 2019. Each share option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company at HK$1.76 each, and is settled gross in
shares.

On 29 January 2015, 77,000,000 share options
were granted to service providers of the Group
under the above share option scheme. Of the share
options granted, 38,500,000 share options will vest
six months from the date of grant, and 38,500,000
share options will vest one year from the date of
grant. The share options granted will lapse on 28
January 2017. Each share option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company at HK$1.24 each, and is settled gross in
shares.

RZE—=FRA=-1+NB"
BIE bl B IR T 8 AR A Rl %
& T67,105,00017 B& I 4 F A&
RABEERAEERE - B H
2 BERGHER - 33,552,500 B A%
EENEREH B SRE—F&E
& 20,131,500/ EERLHEHE A B
FEEHERTREB UK
13,421,00010 g ARt AS PA X B
HE=FERRE -2 BERE
BR—_E—-NAFRA-+/\HX
Mo BHBRERTHEATMU
BR1.73BLRE—RAQRE
B WA 2 EEE 2
REF o

R-_TE—=FRA=+H"5
HeELEmBRAY R=2T—=
AAZ+NBERFETFEARAA
¥ £ 74,750,0001 B D
HARRINMERMZEFEER
i12,300,00017 i A% #E LA B (X 7%
EHRE-RKH2BERES -
1,150,00017 B& A% 8 #8 70 B 1%
HEIE —F1& 58 + 690,000
BRELRERD BHRRFER
57 B - LA 52460,00017 B8 A% #E 15
RIBELHAHR=FEEE -KH
ZEBRESHR-_ZT—-NFHA
ZTHAB - BHBRERTF
BATAFIR.76/8 TRE— &
RAE)E BB - WARGD 2
HEE IR

R-ZE—RF—A=_+nH8"
77,000,00017 &% A% #E 4R 45 £t
BEREFEERETAER 2R
BHEE - RH2BEREF -
38,500,0001n 5 A% # 4% 1 %
TR AAEAREEE UK
38,500,00017 B AR & AR H B
H—FREB X 2 BRES
RZZE—+tF—AZ+N\BX
W G BIRER TRE AR N
BRI 248 TRE—RARE T
BRE G WAL E2BEEZ
RERF o
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 7% 8RR MY A

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

(i) The terms and conditions of the options

25 BRBAHLRA LN 2R

2 (%)
(a) WSS (&)

(i) ERHBREZIEHR;E

granted are as follows: T
Contractual
life of
Number of share
instruments Vesting conditions options
=t {: BRGNE BREQOH
Share options granted to directors:
RYEZ2BRE:
- on 20 October 2010 2,325,000 No vesting condition 5 years
-RZE-FE+AZTH TEFB G nE
- on 20 October 2011 5,312,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——%+A=1H R ASE—F N
- on 20 October 2011 3,187,500 Two years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-—%+A-tH B A BREmE ~E
- on 20 October 2011 2,125,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-—£+A-tH BERLBSE=F ~E
- on 28 May 2013 5,250,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZZ-=FRA-1/\R BRI ASE—F N
-on 28 May 2013 3,150,000 Two years from the date of grant b years
-RZE-ZFRA-T/\R B A BEmE N
- on 28 May 2013 2,100,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZZ-=FRA-T/\H BREABR=F ~E
- on 30 May 2013 1,150,000 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=FRA=TH R ASE—F N
-on 30 May 2013 690,000 Two years from the date of grant b years
-RZE-ZFRA=T1H B A BEmE N
- on 30 May 2013 460,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=$1A=TH BREASE=F ~E



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 R R Y &

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continued)

(i)

The terms and conditions of the options

granted are as follows: (continued)

25 BRELEUROIAFZR
2 (&)
(a) MBmEESHE (&)

(i) ERHBREZIZKRMKE
MR (&)

Contractual
life of
Number of share
instruments Vesting conditions options
IA¥A BREN BREQOH
Share options granted to employees
and service providers:
RTRERRBMEE 2BRE:
—on 20 October 2010 8,675,000 No vesting condition 5 years
-RZE-TE+AZTH TEFB G nE
- on 20 October 2011 6,975,000 No vesting condition 6 years
-RZE——%+A=TH TR G NE
- on 20 October 2011 13,212,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-——%TA-TH BRI ASE—F NE
—on 20 October 2011 7,927,500 Twao years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-——%+A=TH BRI ABEmE ~E
- on 20 October 2011 5,285,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE——%+A=1H ERLAME=F N
-on 28 May 2013 25,927,500 One year from the date of grant 6 years
-RZE-=§RA-1/\H BRI ASE—F NE
- on 28 May 2013 15,556,500 Twao years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZZ-=FRA-1/\H BRI ABEmE ~E
- on 28 May 2013 10,371,000 Three years from the date of grant 6 years
-RZZ-ZFRA=1/\R ERLAME=F N
- on 29 January 2015 38,500,000 Six months from the date of grant 2 years
-RZZ-R15-A=t+AH BB HE @A k=
- on 29 January 2015 38,500,000 One year from the date of grant 2 years
-RZE-RE-AZthH BRHAHE—F -
Total share options granted 196,680,000

EREZEREEH

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 HE—ZFT—NF=HA=+—HIi-+AEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZS EHEH - & BILAE T E3)
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Granted during the period/year  H1/F AR
Exercised during the periodiyear 5/ ER17{f
Forfeited during the periodiyear 5/ ERR 1K
Expired during the period/year B/ ENBH

Outstanding at the end of the period/ /& & 4 A {7 {£
year

Exercisable at the end of the period/ &/ F K] F17{#
year

The weighted average share price at the date
of exercise for share options exercised during
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 was
HK$1.36 (year ended 31 December 2014: not
applicable).

The share options outstanding at 31 March
2016 had a weighted average exercise price of
HK$1.594 (31 December 2014: HK$1.775) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life
of 1.9 years (31 December 2014: 3.5 years).

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 RREGEURDINZR
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 7 (&)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BRESE (£)
(ii) The number and weighted average (i) BEREZEZE RINEFS
exercise price of share options are as TEEMT :
follows:
Fifteen months ended Year ended 31 December
31 March 2016 2014
HECE-1E HE_T-N&
SA=t-HLETEEA TZAZT-RALEE
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of share price of share
HKS options HK$ options
MEF ¥
e IfEfE
AT  BREZE BT BREHE
Outstanding at the beginning of the H /M4 K17
period/year 1.775 111,555,000 1.776 115,855,000

1.240 77,000,000 = =
1.240  (17,530,000) = =
1.780  (10,300,000) 1.806 (4,300,000)
1.260 (8,575,000) = =

1.594 152,150,000 1.775 111,555,000
1.583 140,969,000 1790 80,477,500

BE—T—AG=A=+—Hi+H
16 2 17 GE R AR R AT 45 B B 2 P
FHRERI 68T (RE_F—
F+=A=+—BILFE: TER) -

R-E—RNE=ZA=+—HHEAKTT
PRI 2 INFEFH1TEE R1.594
Br(ZE—mE+=-A=+—80:
1.7757%70) RN FHEHT & 495 5
BIIF (ZE—NWF+_A=+—
H:3.5%)
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@) Share option scheme (continued)
(iii) Fair value of share options and

assumptions for share options granted
on 29 January 2015

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based on
the Black-Scholes Model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

25 BRRBEEEUBRSGEMNZR

2 (#&)
(a) BRESTE (&)
(i) R=EBE—FE—HF=+1

ARHZEREZALE
R B8
VAT B S AE 1 5 BN 3t P
WE RS 2 AR E " ThiR
BRREBRENAAE
MetE iR BEREN
NABEBRBEMRKT —H
R e EEX e
T BB EMN S LOFHT

this model. Expectations of early exercise are RERRR A& A& -
incorporated into the model. FEHEEITETAAZE
Eﬁ o
Share options
granted on
Fair value of share options and assumptions 29 January
2015
R-—Z—HF—A
ZtHthBARHZE
BREZAAERRER g
Fair value at measurement date HK$0.1762
RETEEHNARE 0.1762% 7T
Share price HK$1.23
P (8 1.238 7T
Exercise price HK$1.24
1T1E18 1.2478 7T
Expected volatility (expressed as weighted average volatility used in the
modeﬂing under the Black-Scholes Model) 3 33.141%
%Egéi)jzfgﬁ (FEREM A e — BT Rl B AT 8 U 32 2 A 8 rh (38 P N 1 19 0% 18 33.141%
~
Option life (expressed as weighted average life used in the modelling
under the Black-Scholes Model) 1.38 years
Eﬁﬂg%;é%/)ﬁﬁ (EREM A — R BT R R 2 B8 b A N F 15 5 1.38%F
,~ 2N
Expected dividends 1.057%
AR B X 1.057%

Risk-free interest rate (based on the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Notes)

BERRANE (ERFEIEEZEERE)

The expected volatility is based on the
historical volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
historical dividends. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the
fair value estimate.

0.16% — 0.22%
0.16% - 0.22%

T8 HA K 08 T AR 18 I SR 1R
(RN 2 mEF
RRFHEE)AE LR
R A7 AR E B R RO
8 2 (E fa] T8 B &2 B 1 1 59
E-FAHREXRTIRES
EREFE - TBWEHA
BREREFRGHIAEM

SAREEBARE-

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BR3ES BT & AIA BT Z25)

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 BBREEZEURDIF2ZR
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On 17 October 2014 (the “Adoption Date”), the
directors of the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) as a mean of
rewarding and retaining employees of the Group
and certain eligible participants and to attract
suitable personnel for further development with the
Group. A trust has been set up for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme.

Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the trust may
purchase shares in the Company from the Stock
Exchange with cash contributed by the Group, and
to hold such shares until they are vested.

The directors of the Company may, from time to
time, at its sole and absolute discretion, select any
employee of the Group and eligible participants
including suppliers, customers, shareholders,
advisers and other service providers (other than
those specifically excluded as stated in the Share
Award Scheme) for participation in the Share Award
Scheme and grant such number of awarded shares
to any selected employee of the Group and eligible
participants at nil consideration. The directors of
the Company are entitled to impose any conditions
(including a period of continued service within the
Group after the award) with respect to the vesting
of the awarded shares. The Share Award Scheme
came into effect on the Adoption Date, and shall
terminate on the earlier of (i) the tenth anniversary
date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the directors of
the Company.

TRANSACTIONS (continued) 2 (&)
(a) Share option scheme (continued) (a) BERMESE (&)

(iii) Fair value of share options and (i) R=FE—"F—H=1+1
assumptions for share options granted BRHZEBREZE
on 29 January 2015 (continued) kg (&)

Share options were granted either with or RERRPE O IR B S TR IR AR
without a service condition. This condition, AR - BLIE R4 (1A
if any, has not been taken into account in B) ETEMEX RGN
the grant date fair value measurement of HEBO AR BRI EE
the services received. There were no market AN -BRENED I
conditions associated with the share options EARBTIS R
granted.

(b) Share award scheme (b) RRi7EREEHE

R-ZZF-—HWE+A+EE (&K
MBEH]) NRAREFRABRND
REYET 8 (A1) 2ER T &8 ) 1F
REBEGBEAEEE T RET
REB2EE Y RAKEE—
FERBSIBEATL - ARFE
PXIZASFELAE IR AR 1 22 B At &

RIER D BB B SFT R B
RAAEB MR EBER
NEIRD  URAZSEREERE
HORE-

RRAFEFANRITEDENE
HEERE EEASEEMESR
keaER2EE BIEMHER-
B BROR - B N E At AR A 4
FErn (B i 22Ehat 31551 BA e HF
Rz ALERSN) 2 BAR (D B2 BT
2 WATKEL THFERK
BB TARBEEFIEEEE R
REB2EE - ARREEARE
B A% 10 #5588 e DA (R AR 1
(BRERBRSERBASE—
BB ) o Bt BB A 810 R
B TR A 0 AR ()R B
FEEHm RS B R (i) B A
NEIEFETERAALLLNZ A S
ZBEEKIL-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

25 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 RREGEURDINZR
TRANSACTIONS (continued) 7 (&)
(b) Share award scheme (continued) (b) RPEBE (&)
Details of the shares held under the Share Award RIERR ) BT 8IS A AR &F
Scheme are set out below: BEINAT

Fifteen months ended 31 March 2016
BE-Z—RE=A=+—-HL+EHEA

Average
purchase No. of
price shares held Value
13
BEE BERMHE EE
HKS '000 HK$’000
BT FhAg FABT
At 1 January R—H—H - - -
Shares purchased during the HAR 2 B& B %15
period 1.17 3,070 3,600
At 31 March MR=A=+—H 1.17 3,070 3,600
26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF 26 BIBEMRRAKRAZAESD
FINANCIAL POSITION
(@) Movements in current taxation in the (a) HEAEMBRRERAZAHAFIE
consolidated statement of financial position 2EE:
are as follows:
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE HE
—E—XE —T—pUF
=A=+—HIk +=—A=+—H
+H@EA HEE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance of income tax payable at R—A—BEMAEH&H
1 January 91,894 81,753
Exchange adjustments PE b o 2 (3,926) (237)
Provision for income tax on the MEIA, AFE G ER
estimated taxable profits for the AN 2 PTIS BB (R M et
period/year (see Note 7(a)) 7(a)) 52,069 64,217
(Over)/under-provision in respect of BEFE (HBEEEE) BE
prior years (see Note 7(a)) TR (ZHKEE7a)) (6,975) 2,378
Income tax paid during the period/ IR,/ FREMFEH
year (82,551) (56,217)

Balance of income tax payable at R=R/+=ZA=+—HFE
31 March/December R 1S T 48 R 50,511 91,894

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

26

INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

26 MBRRRAZAER (&)

(b) ERRBELEHREBEEREE:

Assets Liabilities
&E &f
Fair value
adjustments
on
property,
plant and
equipment,
Depreciation Fair value investment
expenses Accrued  adjustments property and
in excess of expenses  on available- intangible
the related and forsale assets and
Unused  depreciation deferred equity related
Deferred tax arising from: taxloss allowances income securities Total ~ depreciation Net
EERRE:
RENZR
fERX it E BREEL
*BR BARE  EHEXR  BEERL ArERR
RTSIREEE  BERE: HEER fEd%E  EEWL  DAEWE At HEERE it
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEn FEn Fir Fir Fir FEn FEn
At 1 January 2014 R=5-ME-R-R 4,035 11,784 23458 = 392171 (513,286 (474,009)
Bichange adjustments X EE 1) (69) (166) - (256) 1,183 927
Charged to the consolidated 1B 74 BER
statement of profitor loss (£ 7))
(see Note 7(3)) (2,029 (6,974) (20,827) - (29,830) (38,324 (68,154)
Credited/(charged) to reserves 1A & &3 A/ (115
(sce Note 10) (2Hit10) - - - 10,334 10334 (126614 (116280)
At31 December 2014~ HZF-WETZA
=1+-H 1,985 474 2,465 10,334 19,525 (677,041) (657,516
Bichange adjustments ~ ER R (8) (16) (145) (550) (719) 2524 24,505
(Charged)icredited to the  (HB) /3T ARE BE
consolidated statement of & (ZH##7a)
profit or loss (see Note 7(3)) (1.977) (4,725) 434 - (6,218) 417) (6,635)
Charged to reserves nEefE(Zhi)
(see Note 10) = = = (9,39) (9,39) (43,311) (52,707)
At 31 March 2016 R-E-RE=R

2,804 388 3,192 (695,545)

(692,353)




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

26 INCOME TAX IN THE STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 2(t), the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of unused tax
losses of HK$176,762,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$239,177,000) as it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can
be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The remaining unused tax
losses at 31 March 2016 will expire on or before 31
March 2021.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 March 2016, temporary differences
relating to the undistributed profits of certain
subsidiaries of the Group established in the
PRC amounted to HK$1,876,376,000 (31
December 2014: HK$1,698,243,000). Deferred
tax liabilities of HK$93,819,000 (31 December
2014: HK$84,912,000) have not been recognised
in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it has been determined that it is
probable that profits from these subsidiaries will not
be distributed in the foreseeable future.

Bt %5 R R Y &

E_E—NF=A=+—HIt+EEA

+= —=

(BrIE=B 155

BRI ETZ5)

MBRARANZFAER (&

(c)

(d)

AERZELERIBEEE
BB FF2(0FTE 2 5T BUR -
REBWAEREBAARS AR
% E518176,762,000/8 T (=
E-MmME+-_A=1+—8:
239,177,000 7t ) < & & 18
BE REREBB@UKAER
& REBE AR EEEARR
JERT R AB AEE -R=Z
—ANF=ZA=+—HZHBTKRE
ARBEEER "2 -—F=H

_JF E:JZZH' /%
AERZELEHBEE

R—_E—RNF=ZA=+—8"
HAEEETRABRAMKILZH
BRAIZAROSEENE@B2E
B = % 51,876,376,000/8 7T
—E-mFE+-_A=+—H8:
1,698,243,000/% 7T ) ° EIEFLIA
£1&93,819,000/8 7T (=& —
F+=-H=+—H :84,912,000
BT WA IR Z SR w T
2 9 I T FE Y 2 IR T T LA R
R REAAARRGIEHZERH
B AR ZIREBRRNKEEER
BZEWB AR ZaFTARA8E
RAI TR RFADIK

—
Ul
~N

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=H=1+— Eut + A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIES BT - & BB T 25)
27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 EX RERKRE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) EZIPHEE

The reconciliation between the opening and REEFE RSB 2 81
closing balances of each component of the Group's MEARESHZ HRTIEH N RE
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated HEFE - AREHINEHRA
statement of changes in equity. Details of the NAElZ HERRE N 2 B EFTE
changes in the Company's individual components of o

equity between the beginning and the end of the
reporting period are set out below:

Shares held Retained
under share profits/
Share Share award Capital  Contributed  (accumulated
capital premium scheme reserve surplus losses) Total
RERHZE
itliE REEA/
R# RitEE il EAGE fgAzs  (RFFR) it

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000

FE7 77 FEn FE7 FEn FEn ¥
(Note 27(q) (/\/ore 200 (Note 27(a)i)  (Note 27(d)i)  (Note 27(d)(iv)
) (W) (REne)  (REadm) (R

Balance at 1 January 2014 N-2-BE-A-BER 2983 1,343,548 - 72,668 1,224,868 63,131 2,934,038
Changes in equity for 2014; ZE-REEREY:
Total comprehensive income for the £ A2 EREEE

ear - - - - - (254914) (254914)
Fquity-settled share-based transactions ZREEENHATH 225

(5ce Note 25(a) fiit25a) - - - 20316 - - 20316
Dividends approved in respect of the J: HZEH KLRE

previous year (see Note 27(b)(i) (ZHE270)) - - - - - (29877) (29877)

Balance at 31 December 2014and  R=E-ME+=A=1-RAR
1 January 2015 ZE-nE-F-AzéR 229,823 1,343,548 - 92,984 1,224,868 (221,660) 2,669,563

Changes in equity for the period:  BAEREH:
Total comprehensive income for the B2 ENEES
period - - - - - (23,558) (23,558)
Shares purchased under share award
scheme (see Note 25(b))
Shares issued under share options
scheme (see Note 27(c)iv))
Equity-settled share-based transactions
(see Note 25(a))
Transfer between reserves (see Notes F i‘ﬂ 1] ’;‘5' i :25( )R2710)
25(a) and 27(c))) ) = = = (6,643) = 6,643 =

= = (3,600 = - = (3,600)

1753 23,037 = (3,054) = = 21,736

- - - 14,920 - - 14,920

Balance at 31 March 2016 RZB-REZR=t-BL&H 231,576 1,366,585 (3,600 98,207 1,224,868 (238,579) 2,679,061
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(b) Dividends

(i)

(i)

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company and
holder of the convertible preference
shares attributable to the period/year
The directors of the Company do not
recommend the payment of a dividend for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 (year
ended 31 December 2014: HK$Nil).

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company and
holder of the convertible preference
shares attributable to the previous
financial year, approved during the
period/year

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

27 EXR -HEERRE (#£)

(b) BRE

(i)

(ii)

ERRAIRRR LR ES
RIGEAEILEHAFR
iR 2

ARDAEEDTRBIR
HBE-F—<%=A
=t+—BLE+EBEAZR
B (BE-F-—m&E+=
A=+—BLEE: TH
) °

ARARRR T REL
RIGBEAEILHEARFR
E#ER 2 £—1ELM
BFEEMRE

Fifteen months Year ended

ended 31

31 March December

2016 2014

BZE HE

ZE-RF —E—mF

=Z=A=t+—HLt +=A=+—H

+HRM@A IFFE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

Final dividend in respect of the  RERR F R &L F—Bf

previous financial year, approved &4 E 2 #t £ 2 REIRR
during the period/year, of HK$Nil 8. » &A% I @A & Al #a %
per ordinary and convertible BERDIRREZTETT
preference share (year ended 31 (HZ=—Z—PWF+_—H
December 2014: HK$0.013) =+—HBIFE: 0013

BIT) - 29,877
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital

(i)

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

27 EX -HERRE (&£

(0 KA
Issued share capital (i) ERITRE
Fifteen months ended Year ended
31 March 2016 31 December 2014
BE-Z2-R% HE_T-—&
ZA=t+-HLTEBEA +ZA=T-HILFE
Number Number
of shares of shares
ROEE B & B
‘000 HK$°000 '000 HK$°000
Fi FET F®R FET
Ordinary shares, issued and EBRTRHZTZER:
fully paid:
At 1 January n—H—H 1,121,165 112,116 1,121,165 112,116
Shares issued under share option RIZEE BT 1% TRHD
scheme 17,530 1,753 - -
At 31 March/December R=B/+-A=+t—H 1,138,695 113,869 1,121,165 112,116__
Convertible preference shares, BETRAZTRKRE L
issued and fully paid: R
At 1 January and 31 March/ W—A—BR=R/+=
December A=+—H 1,177,068 117,707 1,177,068 117,707
Total share capital RABH 2,315,763 231,576 2,298,233 229,823

Ordinary shares

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from time to
time and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares
rank equally with regard to the Company's
residual assets.

S

B

EAERTE AR RKET
BERZKRERAERAE
RARELBBRE—F-
A EBRNARRZH
HEETEHREERFH

fiz



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &= =F —
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(i)

(i)

Bt %5 R R Y &

NF=A=1+—HIt+HEA
(BRIEZFIEH

BRI ETZ5)

27 EFR -HEERRE (&

(c) Share capital (continued) () BE(E)
Issued share capital (continued) (i) EBTRE(E)
Convertible preference shares AJ 12 iR 18 5E IR
Convertible preference shares do not carry the AR EERTIHHIRRE
right to vote. The holder of the convertible -RHRREERFEA A
preference shares has the right, at any time BRI B MR Z R
and at the sole option of such holder, to BAZBEEZREKAR
convert the convertible preference shares in IR 1B 5t Ix 2= BF Sk (R 3R 1n
whole, or in any part, into fully paid ordinary ERBARBZEHEE
shares in the Company. The conversion ratio AR - EBRERSIRATRR
is 1 convertible preference share to 1.1 BRAREXI AT B
ordinary shares. Holder of the convertible AR ELERIEE AEE
preference shares ranks pari passu with other T ERITFEALERREE
holders of the ordinary shares in respect of its NN ) S N R TS
entitlement to dividend or other distribution of HEAE R FHAL - i AR
the Company. In the event of any liquidation, NAElER BEERARE A
winding-up or dissolution of the Company, BRRELERFEAKRE
holder of the convertible preference shares ARBRRELEKNDREES
shall receive an amount equal to HK$1.60 per A 7 12 5 AR AT R IR B SR AR
convertible preference share, plus all accrued 1.60/87T ' I EFT B FEETE
but unpaid dividends in preference to the AR B2 FRIA
ordinary shareholders.
Terms of unexpired and unexercised (ii) R#RE B 5 K BB K fef
share options at the end of the RITEEREZ K
reporting period
At At
Exercise 31 March 31 December
Exercise period price 2016 2014
RZB-RE RZF-ME
lit:d: LA ZR=t-A t-A=1-H
Number Number
46 #f
'000 000
Ff Ff
Share options: BRE:
20 October 2010 to 19 October 2015 -%- EHH THE HK$1.26
E-RETATAR 1.2687 - 9,225
20 October 2011 to 19 October 2017 A*f@fﬂ tHE HK$1.96
“EtETATAR 1.96%7T 36,775 40,175
28 May 2013 to 27 May 2019 :?—EHH:M\E% HKS1.73
E-NFRAZtHA 17387 54,755 59,855
30 May 2013 0 29 May 2019 _éfﬁﬂﬂ kS HK$1.76
E-NERAZTAA 17677 1,150 2300
29 January 2015 to 28 January 2017 "”—J’i@ AZTNAZE HK$1.24
E—t5-A-tNR 12487 59,470 -
152,150 111,555

ETHENHRRUASTHR
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised
share options at the end of the
reporting period (continued)

Each share option entitles the holder to
subscribe for one ordinary share in the
Company. Further details of these share
options are set out in Note 25(a) to the
financial statements.

Shares held under share award scheme

At 31 March 2016, 3,070,000 ordinary shares
are held by the Company under the share
award scheme (31 December 2014: Nil) (see
Note 25(b)).

Shares issued under share option
scheme

During 2015, options were exercised to
subscribe for 17,530,000 ordinary shares
in the Company at a consideration of
HK$21,736,000, of which HK$1,753,000 was
credited to share capital.

Transfer between reserves

The share options granted in 2010 (see Note
25(a)) lapsed in 2015 and the equity amount
previously recognised in capital reserve was
accordingly released to retained profits.

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

27 EXR-BEERRE (&)

(c)

B (%)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

FR#R & H 7K e K E H K
[ 2R AT 1 58 IR 1 2 1R 5K
(%)
BHBRERTIHEAR
BARBZ —BREBR-
SERBREE—PHB
B H5 R MY FE25(a) ©

RIER D EREIFEZ
R 7
RZEBE—ARE=ZA=+—
H - 3,070,0000% & 7 i% &
KR ERE R D ZEET 2
BE(ZE—HNMFE+=ZA
=+—H8:&) (R
25(b)) °

RIBERETEBIRITZR
17

R —RF BRE
AR {E21,736,000/8 7T
EEITEUARERA A
17,530,0000% L@ A% - &
#1,753,000/8 7L E 5t AR
$o

HEEZER

RoB—BEER 2 MR
1 (RH 25() ) B R =
T— TR U A
B A 8 PO TR 2 M
SHEEREERBEA -
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Section 40 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981.

Shares held under share award scheme

The amount represents the consideration paid
for shares held under the share award scheme.

Capital reserve

At 31 March 2016 and 31 December 2014,
capital reserve comprises the following:

—  the portion of the grant date fair value
of unexercised share options granted to
directors of the Company, and employees
and service providers of the Group that
has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-
based payments in Note 2(s)(ii);

—  the difference between the nominal
value of the ordinary shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the share
capital and share premium of a subsidiary
acquired through an exchange of shares
pursuant to a group reorganisation took
place on 28 September 2000;

—  the difference between the carrying
amounts and the principal amounts of
the unsecured notes redeemed in 2011
and 2012; and

- the difference between the consideration
paid on the acquisition of non-controlling
interests and the carrying amount of the
non-controlling interests.

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

27 EXR -HERRE (&)

(d) REZHEERAR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

B4 aE
B EERNEARAR
#E— NN\ —FRQAEFEL0

IREEE o
RIEBERGEBTEFEZ
) 'gia

B EE B IRER A ZE)
A ZRMNE 2R

BERFEE
R_E—ARF=ZA=+—
B -_Z—HWMFE+ A
=t+—H BAFELRE
AR &8 :

- RTYARBESZEAK
AEE 2 &E KR
HEE 2 HARITER
BRERKRERA#ZA
REHRD HERE
B EE2(s)(iF A B R
B 3R 2 B ET IR
RMER

— ARBEREBER-ZFZT
ZENAZTN\B#
TZEREEHBMET
BBl mERS B
B An S 2 P B 2 —
CERI=PNCIAL &5
i ERE R
EE

- RZZE——FK=F
——FEEBEEEER
SEEREAEREAS
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA
& EILE T 25 )

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Contributed surplus

The application of the contributed surplus
account is governed by Section 54 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for leasehold land
and buildings held for own use in Note 2(h).

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale equity securities held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set
out in Notes 2(f) and 2(I)(i).

(vii) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the articles of association
of the subsidiaries of the Group established
in the PRC, these subsidiaries were required
to set up certain statutory reserves, which
were non-distributable. The transfers of these
reserves are at discretion of the directors of the
respective subsidiaries. The statutory reserves
can only be utilised for predetermined means
upon approval by the relevant authority.

(viii)Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations which have a functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars into Hong Kong
dollars. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note
2(w).

(BRIEZ=BIER

27 EXR-BEERRE (&)

(d) REZMHERRRE (&)

(iv) #AEE
MABBECZERSAR
EZE—NWN—FRaAFE54
IREEE o

(v) Y¥EEEFEE
YEBGHREEBD R ITAR
BEHFE2hsFEE A2
EXMEEFEN S
BRER R IE

(vi) AAERE
PRAERERERRESN
XhﬁTﬁﬁ%%‘%%
NARBERAEHFERL
RIEE M 5E2(H) & mom
SR ERE -

(vii) JEE#HE

RAIE AN KB R P B XL
ZHBRRzHEBER

MR ZEHBRRIAR
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(continued)

(e) Distributable reserves

()

At 31 March 2016 the aggregate amount of
reserves (including the Company's retained profits,
if any, contributed surplus and share premium,
subject to equity shareholders' approval) available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$2,591,453,000 (31 December
2014: HK$2,568,416,000). The directors of the
Company do not propose a final dividend for the
fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 (year ended
31 December 2014: HK$Nil per ordinary and
convertible preference share) (see Note 27(b)(i)).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the
basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For
this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
debt (which includes bank loans), plus unaccrued
proposed dividends, less cash at bank on hand and
short-term investments. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

Bt %5 R R Y &

== AF=A=+—AIt+EBA

+= —=

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

27 EXR -HERRE (&

(e)

(f)

o it 5 K %
R-EBE—-—RNF=A=+—8"
AESIRFARRBKREZMH
HREBE (BREARAZRE R
F(wmE) BARBERED
mE(ARMESREZHE) )
42,591,453,000% T ( =
E—NWE+_A=+—8:
2,568,416,000/87T) e AR FE
EfEEnBE_—_T—AF=
A=+—HBIE+RMEAKRER
e (HE2—Z—mME+—A
=t+—HEFE :EREERE
B@BREERETE L) (AT
27(b)(i)) °

EXEH
AEEEREATESEHERER
SENFELERT  AEAE
18 B R 7 ST 5 25 3 2 om B AR
BEBMZAERARGRE M
HB R RS R @ R N R E A A
AR E KR A

A EEE R R R R
AR ERHBBEEKT
T 0 5 2 AR R 1 9 R RS
T & WOR AT A SR 0228 BAR
B2 B T - YR AR
BB Y B AR (TR -

REBURLRHEFEBREHERL
RREEMEREENERE -5
s EHBFERRE S
#EE (HBRBRITER) MK
AHRUR A EORUIRTT F R & AN
RERE - RPBREANBRME
R BB BUAR AT B AR S,
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZS EHEH - & BILAE T E3)

27 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 27 BX - -RERKE (&)
(continued)
(f) Capital management (continued) (f) EXEE(A)

During the period, the Group's strategy was to
maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio to
an acceptable level. In order to improve the Group's
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount
of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 March
2016 and 31 December 2014 is as follows:

REAA » REE 2 REE RERE
HEFERHYEAL R 2O
XK BREAEEZERR
B AEERHBENTREN
REEER BRITHRD BEH
MEBBERLEEENRDE
75 o

RZE—RF=A=+—8BK=
Z—NFE+-—FA=+—H &#H
BEEERHEANL RN :

At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014

R=B-AxF R-F-m%F
=A=+-A +=A=t-A

HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities: mEEE:
Bank loans RITERK 1,681,860 1,445,081
Non-current liabilities: FRBEE:
Bank loans RITERK 1,180,696 945,302
Total debt BEE 2,862,556 2,390,383
Less: cash at bank and on hand B IRITEERFRERE (473,583) (357,673)
Less: short-term investments R E (753,796) (586,661)
Adjusted net debt RARTEE 1,635,177 1,446,049
Adjusted capital RABER 5,439,582 5,561,934
Adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio RABRFEEHER L= 30% 26%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

ZAN/NSI DB SRR Bl =N RN
SNFRBE N 2 B AN KR TE ARBR o
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from
its equity investment in another entity.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to short-term investments and trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in
place, and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group's short-term investments are wealth
management products issued by various financial
institutions in the PRC. The principal amounts
of these products are guaranteed by the issuers.
In view of the sound credit standing of these
counterparties, the management do not expect any
of them to fail to meet their obligations.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor's past history of
making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the debtor as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the debtor operates. Trade
receivables are generally due within 3 months from
the date of billing. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from debtors.

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiIEMREER AAE (&)

VALUES (continued)
(a) Credit risk (continued) (a) EERR (&)

91/510Z Hoday [enuuy  paywi] sbuip|oH [1e1ay emuln Ainjusd ‘

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
debtor rather than the industry in which the debtors
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual debtors. At the
end of the reporting period, 21% (31 December
2014: 18%) and 33% (31 December 2014: 32%)
of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group's largest debtor and the five largest debtors,
respectively. Trade receivables are mainly due from
credit card centres owned by state-owned financial
institutions in the PRC and tenants operating in
the Group's department stores, shopping mall and
supermarkets, and accordingly, the management of
the Group considers the concentration and credit
risks to be low.

Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Group as set out in Note 30, the Group does not
provide any other guarantees which would expose
the Group or the Company to credit risk. The
maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of these
financial guarantees at the end of the reporting
period is disclosed in Note 30.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from short-
term investments and trade and other receivables
are set out in Notes 19 and 21, respectively.

AEEAZ 2 EERREIESS
BBEABEMRAZFE  MIEE
MALEETE ARERE
FEERBREERENEEEX
X ¥ B B BB A 2 B AR B E
MEE - RIEHR  BUEER
WHEEZ21% (ZZE—ME+—A
=+—H:18% ) K%33% (==&
—mE+=-A=+—H8:32%)
TIRRIREAREE 2 ZAEEA
RARKEBA - BREREESR
EWTEEESREBEREREE
RHRLERAEBEERNS B
RO KBTS EZHBEZ
FE ARAEERERERASE
P REERRBIER-

BRM IO A R BRI 2 B
BRI » RS B IR (L AN
SEXARREEEERRZE
MEMIER - RNRERREZE
MBEFRBE cRRERERRK
BERHIEE30 ©

ERAAREEAEREBIEERE
WERF R AR mEE 2=
BERRcE—FTEERED R
AHTFE19K21 °
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BiEBREERAALE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELSRER

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for the short-term investments of their
cash surpluses, where the raising of financings are
centrally managed by the head office of the Group
to cover expected cash demands. The Group's policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term. Except
for the cross default disclosed in Note 24(a)(i), the
Group complied with all other lending covenants.

At 31 March 2016, the Group had net current
liabilities of HK$1,256,342,000. The Group has
undertaken and will continue to undertake various
measures in order to further improve its liquidity
position in the short and longer term. Further details
are set out in Note 2(b).

The following tables show the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group's non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the
reporting period) and the earliest dates the Group
can be required to pay.

As a result of the cross default as disclosed in Note
24(a)(i), the cash outflow of a long-term bank
loan subject to repayment on demand clauses was
categorised into within 1 year or on demand at 31
March 2016. The analysis at 31 December 2014
showed the cash outflow of bank loans based on
the contractual repayment schedule and, separately,
the impact to the timing of the cash outflows if the
lender was to invoke its unconditional right to call
the loan with immediate effect.

AEENENCLEEREBERS
REBHBZEHRE MELE
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SR o BR MY EE24(a) () B R 2 22 XiE
N REBEESTEIEME
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R-_E—RE=ZA=+—8"
AEBZRHAEABFREA
1,256,342,0008 L ANEE E
RS MG B PR ER 2 B ¥ e A
—SREERBHERRBZREE
SRR o — B IBFERTI A 5
2(b) °

TREEAEEZTESHE
BERRERRHTEHBNEE
o BRBRTIRES HRITER
RAene (BRER| KR
8onEFEBA R AIRER
BERRZMERFAEZHFEN
) A Be 7 5= [ A] BE 1 22 SR B K
ZREHBREE-

B PR A Fff 5E24(a) (i) 58 2 X X
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B ZEREREBIERFTRE
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

28

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

(b)
At 31 March 2016

(BRIF=EEH  BRILET

£5)

28 HIBEBEERAAME (&)

RBESRAR (F)

Contractual undiscounted cash outflow

RZE-AE=R=1-H

ARAFRRERH
More than More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years Carrying
year or on lessthan  but less than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 March
R=A
—ERE —EHE MENL =t-8
HREXR BRmE BAREE BENE it R
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TEn FEx FEx TEn FEn TEn
Trade and other payables ZABKAHE
measured at amortised N ET R LM
cost FEfi 3 1,323,768 - - - 1,323,768 1,323,768
Bank loans RAER 1,793,516 191,513 642,333 695,143 3,322,505 2,862,556
3,117,284 191,513 642,333 695,143 4,646,273 4,186,324
At 31 December 2014
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
RZ2-WE+-A=1-H
SNATRR SR
More than More than
Within 1 1 year but 2 years Carrying
year or on less than but less than More than amount at
demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total 31 December
’r=A
—ERg —El b MEN £ =t-A
RERHK BORME BAREE BENE it pA: il
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TiET FAT T TAT T TiET
Trade and other payables ZABKAHE
measured at amortised N ET R Lt
cost FEfi 3 1,365,797 - - - 1,365,797 1,365,797
Bank loans B8 676,753 214,066 433,688 621,421 1,945,928 1,518,636
long-term bank loans ~ EEREEEF 2
subject to repaymenton  REHTER
demand clauses
- scheduled repayments  — &5 EIE 3 205,745 186,727 559,105 - 971,577 871,747
2,268,295 400,793 992,793 621,421 4,283 302 3,756,180
Adjustments to disclose ~ BEEERNEHAS
cash flows on long-term EEXEE 72K
bank loans basedon ~ BRITEF B
lenders' rights to demand £ 2 HE
repayments 646,002 (186,727) (559,105) - (99,830)
2,914,297 214,066 433,688 621,421 4,183,472
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z-ZZE— NF=A=+—HI-+ A @A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

VALUES (continued)
Interest rate risk (c) FIEE K

(c)

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from
interest bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest
rate risk respectively.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group's borrowings at the end
of the reporting period.

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

MBREREERRDAE (&

AEEZNXRARTIZHREE
fE & o 4% ] 88 1) 2 J 32 [B] 72 ) K
BT ZEEEAEEDFIARSE
EREMEER MR AENXE

oo o
S

(i) FIEER
TERFINAKBFEEE
R¥REHIR 2 R R -

At 31 March 2016 At 31 December 2014
RZE-REZA=+-H R-E-NE+-A=1-H
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
ERA= B H%
% HK$'000 % HK$ 000
FEx FEL
Fixed rate borrowings: EEMEEE:
Bank loans RITER 8.4% 257,166 13.7% 468,658
Variable rate borrowings: EFEEE:
Bank loans ﬂ%%?x 5.7% 2,605,390 6.9% 1,921,725
Total borrowings EEmsm 2,862,556 2,390,383
Fixed rate borrowings as EEMEEEREREREL
a percentage of total borrowings B/t 9% 20%

—
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—
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased the
Group's profit after tax and retained profits by
approximately HK$20,600,000 (31 December
2014: HK$15,400,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising
from floating rate non-derivative financial
instruments held by the Group at the end
of the reporting period, the impact of which
on the Group's profit after tax and retained
profits is estimated as an annualised impact on
interest expense of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for the year ended 31 December 2014.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through borrowings which gives rise to loans and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. At 31 March 2016, certain of the Group's
borrowings are denominated in USD and the entities
that the borrowings relate has a functional currency
in HK$. Nonetheless, the management considers
the Group is not exposed to significant currency
risk in this respect, as it is assumed the pegged
rate between HK$ and USD will remain in the
foreseeable future.

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

28 HIBEBEERAAE (4)

(c)

F=E@ER (&)
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 BfiEKBREERAALE (£
VALUES (continued)

(e) Equity price risk (e) RERMR

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from available-for-sale equity securities (see
Note 18).

The Group's investments in available-for-sale
equity securities are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. The performance of the available-for-sale
equity securities are regularly monitored.

At 31 March 2016, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 10% in the relevant stock price with all
other variables held constant, would have increased/
decreased the Group's other comprehensive
income by HK$34,211,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$30,513,000).

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group's other comprehensive income
that would arise assuming that the changes in the
stock price had occurred at the end of the reporting
period and had been applied to re-measure this
financial instrument held by the Group which
exposes the Group to equity price risk at the end
of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair value of the Group's equity securities would
change in accordance with the historical correlation
with the relevant stock price, that none of the
Group's available-for-sale equity securitiess would
be considered impaired as a result of the decrease in
the relevant stock price, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for the year ended 31 December 2014.

AEBEHBIHEEESES
EXzREZFREKR (RHKFE
18) °

AEBRAHH ERSE R
BN LBREFR S EM A
HERSE S RACEEHE

o

R-ZEBE—XRF=A=+—8"
HETEAREBHR LR TH
10%  fEMABHMAZEH AR
RETBZBERAT AEEZ
Hi2mkzdgEm, wd
34,211,000 T (Z & — M F
+=—A=+—8 :30,513,000/%
JL) °
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured

at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique

as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs, i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the

measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs, i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and
not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured
using significant unobservable inputs.

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

28 HIBEBEERAAE (4)
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28 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 28 B EMEER AAE (&)
VALUES (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued) ) DREFE(E)
(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured (i) BARBIEZZHREE
at fair value (continued) REREFE (&)
Fair value Fair value measurements as at Fairvalue  Fair value measurements as at
at 31 31 March 2016 categorised into at 31 31 December 2014 categorised into
March R=Z-~E=ZA=+-B2EB  December N =Z-IMET-A=+-HEE
016 NTER2ALEHE 014 _ BUTERZ A EFHE

RZB-~E R-E-NF
=A=t-R Level 1 level2 TZA=1-H Level 1 Level 2
ZANE £-4 E-R LRRE E F24
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn Fir T Fir

Recurring fair value ERURRETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-forsale equity  AIHERRE
securities: ik
- listed (see Note 18) ~ — LT (B Hi18) 402,480 402,480 - 358,981 358,981 -
Liabilties: B
Derivative financial fTESBIA:
instruments:
~ Warrants (see Note 23(i) —ARIES
(ZHE230)) - - - (22,164) - (22,164)
(i) Fair value of financial assets and (i) WHEBEAALBIRZEH
liabilities carried at other than fair value EEREBENALHE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial RZE—REF=A=4+—
instruments carried at cost or amortised cost Bk—_Z—NWF+ A
are not materially different from their fair =+ —H AEBUAKK
values at 31 March 2016 and 31 December SR ASIR 2 @/ T
2014, BE7EREEBEEAQAAEBELT

BEARER-
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #Z_-ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+HEA

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

29 COMMITMENTS

(a) Capital commitments
At 31

March 2016, the outstanding capital
commitments of the Group not provided for in the

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

29 7RI
(a) BEFREE

RZE-—RE=ZA=+—H &
SERERAMBHRRPEBHEL

consolidated financial statements were as follows: RIFERFALELT
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
R-B—XRE RIT—MOF
=A=t—-H +ZA=+—H
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Commitments in respect of purchase of BEE W% HE RREURIERE
property, plant and equipment and v E S
investment properties
— Contracted for —BiI4 1,112,004 1,657,192
At 31 March 2016, capital commitments in respect RZE—R"F=A=+—H'A

of purchase of property, plant and equipment
and investment properties are for leasehold
improvements to be installed in the Group's
department store and supermarket operations and
the remaining payments for the acquisitions of

properties.

(b)

Operating lease commitments

At 31 March 2016, the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases

are payable as follows:

BT

(b) BeHEERRE

BABEMR BFE R EN LK
BYEE 7 BARRE TR BN ARE
Bz BERSRBEATSRBL
K2HERERBBYERZHT

RZEBE-—RE=ZA=+—H 1R
BB REHEERRE

Mz &ERENRERET

At At

31 March 31 December

2016 2014

R=ZB-—RFE RNIT-NOF

=A=+—-B +tZH=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 year —FR 98,532 105,656
After 1 year but within 5 years —FREAFR 381,054 412,021
After 5 years hFER 413,635 565,065
893,221 1,082,742
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29 COMMITMENTS (continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (continued)

(c)

The Group leases properties for the use by its
department store and supermarket operations, and
office premises under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 1 to 20 years,
where all terms are renegotiated upon renewal.
One of the leases includes contingent rentals which
are calculated based on a fixed percentage on the
department store's turnover.

Properties leased out under operating leases

At 31 March 2016, the Group's total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases are receivable as follows:

Bt %5 R R Y &

== AF=A=+—AIt+EBA

+= —=

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

29 RIE (&
(a) BEFRXE (&)

(c)

AEBRBEEHEHEETY
EHEAERSRBRAMSER
EMRER - ZERE—RIE
REP—ZE=+%F MABRRA
RESREHNEE -Hh—1AH
ERRREOERSERBCE
EBADLFAEZRAEE -

RELEHEHHEZME
R-ZE—XE=A=+—-8 &
SERBEARE 2 CEHER
H& R 2 &K EFRIBEFELN
T

At At

31 March 31 December

2016 2014

R-B-—XRE RIT—0OF

=H=+-8B +t=ZA=+—H

HKS$’000 HK$°000

FET FETT

Within 1 year —FR 43,499 99,992
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFR 104,849 111,057
After 5 years hFR 54,327 67,231
202,675 278,280

The Group leases out its shopping mall and parts
of its department stores under operating leases.
The leases typically run for an initial period of 1 to
15 years, where all terms are renegotiated upon
renewal. Certain of the leases include contingent
rentals which are calculated based on a fixed
percentage on the tenants' turnover.

AEEREEEHENHERY
RORBEESZEDEYE -
ZEHE— RO BH—Z=+H
F - MATA R AT R E B
BE - STHEREBBERHEFE
KB BEEA DL EZHAE
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group has
issued the following guarantees:

(a)

(b)

(c)

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of an interest bearing bank loan drawn
by an independent third party in 2005. The
loan will mature in July 2016. In September
2010, Ginwa Investments provided a counter-
guarantee to indemnify Ginwa Bell Tower on
any losses incurred arising from the above
guarantee. As of 31 March 2016, the outstanding
loan balance is RMB75,719,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$90,863,000) (31 December
2014: RMB87,000,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$110,280,000).

A guarantee provided by Ginwa Bell Tower in
respect of a payable for acquisition of a property
by Ginwa Investments in August 2005. Ginwa
Investments has defaulted repayment of the above
payable. As of 31 March 2016, the outstanding
balance of the payable is RMB9,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$11,400,000) (31 December
2014: RMB9,500,000, equivalent to approximately
HK$12,042,000).

A guarantee provided by the Company in respect
of a bank loan of RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$720,000,000) drawn by Huade
Investment in February 2015, where the guarantee
is in addition to the payments made by the Group
for its intended acquisition of commercial properties
as mentioned in Note 17(i). The loan will mature in
2018. In February 2015, the Group has obtained
counter-guarantees from (i) the project company
developing the above commercial properties; and
(i) the intermediate holding company of Huade
Investment on the pledge of its 70% equity interests
in the immediate holding company of Huade
Investment.

(BRIF=EHER BRILETZS)

30 HAEE
REHR AEED R EUTE

& :

(a)

(b)

(c)

SIEEER—BBYE = AR
TERAFRIZFBRITER
Mgt 2 BR - ZEEFTBR =
TE—A"FLtAIB - R=ZZT—F
FNLA eEREBRE—EK
BRASEEEHER ik
REEAZEANBLX - HEZT
—RNEZA=1+—H" HXEE
ZERBE A ARYTS,719,000
7T (¥ %5 K 4990,863,000/%5 7T )
—EF—ME+A=+—8:
AR #87,000,0007T * BE R4
110,280,000/ 7T.) ©

CEEERESERER_ZZ
TFENAKE—EMEZRE
NRIEmMRBHEZER 2R
BEmAREE M EMNKIE
BE -_ZE—XRF=ZA=1+—
H MAEEZEMNRER
% &5 AR #¥9,500,0007T (48
£ 411,400,000 7T) (=
E-—mWE+=-_A=+—8:
A E #9,500,0007T ' #8249
12,042,000/ 7T) ©
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720,000,000/ 70 ) IR HELR 7%
ER TR EE17() Pt N EE
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H-R—_T—HE_F A&EEH
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NAE RNVEERE 2 EEER
RERIERIEE 2 HEEIERAR]
2 70%0% HE 1F K EAS = 4
R o



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 &
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

30 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

31

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors
of the Company do not consider it is probable that a
claim will be made against the Group under any of the
above guarantees. The maximum liability of the Group
at the end of the reporting period under the guarantees
issued is the outstanding amount of the bank loans and
liability of RMB685,219,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$822,263,000) plus accrued interest.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the balances disclosed elsewhere in these

financial statements, the Group entered into the following
material related party transactions.

(a) Transactions with equity shareholders
and their affiliates, and a director of the

Bt %5 R R Y &

E-T-AF=A=+—AL+EBA

(BRIFH=BEIEH  TRIAETZES)

30 AREE (&)

31

RBER KRR EEREBTK
ARE S RIE A Ll ERMEANEE
RERE -AEERFEHRR 2B
HERETNZESAEANRKEEY
IRITER KB EARKE85,219,000
7t (#8 & R #9822,263,0005# JT. ) hifE
FTFIE -

EXBAEALIRS

BRax 5 W IS SR H A 2R 1) P BE 2 48
RN NREBIVETATERBEA
TR5e

(a) BAQAFTRRREEHEAL
UKk —RESETZRS:

Company
Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZ BHZE
—g—xE —2-mE
=A=+—-H1t +—A=+—~H
+HEA IEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Interest income A B U A - 80,417
Rental and management and HEWARERRITHRSE
administrative service fee income = ON 11,288 9,291
Operating lease expenses KEHERY 329 1,136
Net decrease in advances granted to & T B8& A L+ 2 BFUH D F
related parties (see Note (i) B8 (B M) 7,339 788
Guarantees provided by a director of RREARA NG —ZES
the Company for the Group's bank AAEE Z RTEFIRME
loans at the end of the reporting Z R
period 720,000 253,518

Further details on the guarantees the Group
provided for related parties are set out in Note 30.

Note:

(i) The advances are unsecured, non-interest bearing
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

BERASEAREALTRHER
ZHE— SR BEN KIS0

it

() ZBRASEER RERYE
Ehcp i

-
~
L)

ETHENHRRUASTHR

G-/ EI—&
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31 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

91/510z Woday [enuuy  pauwi] sBUIP|OH [1e1aYy emulD Ainjusd ‘

(BRIEZHHER TRILETZS)

31 EXBAEALRS (£)

(b) Key management personnel remuneration (b) FEEBEAESHFM
Remuneration for key management personnel, FEETRBABZEHM (BEME
including amounts paid to the Company's directors SFTEBE N TARRIEE 2K
as disclosed in Note 8 and the highest paid HEMEFMERE N TE T&
employees as disclosed in Note 9, is as follows: SEMES 2 RBE)AT

Fifteen months Year ended
ended 31
31 March December
2016 2014
BZE H=E
—B-RE —ZE—mF
=A=+—-Hit +=A=+—H
+HEA IFFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind &4 - 285 &
H it B Y12 A 33,775 24,087
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETEI K 499 386
Share-based payments B 17 1~ 3K 4,080 12,710
38,354 37,183
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see HFMaETATE TRA] R
Note 6(b)). (RHizE6(b)) °
Applicability of the Listing Rules relating to (0 ETRABRBREERZZE

(c)

connected transactions

Certain of the related party transactions disclosed in
Note 31(a) above constitute connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures
required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
are provided in the section headed “Connected
Transactions” of the Director's report.

AH

B EE31(a)FT I R 2 B T
EATRZER ETAHRRE14A
EMREZBAER HNIFERME
R LMBANFE4ATREZ
BESHINNESSREZ [HE
5| —fie
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For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 B Z—=—F—NF=H=+—HI-+HEA
(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)  (BrIEZBIEHH - DAL ET 25 )

32 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE 32 REHRBRIFAEZEE

REPORTING PERIOD

After the reporting period, a subsidiary of the Group
established in the PRC, principally engaged in the
operation of department store, is named defendant on
lawsuits filed by its lessor and several of its suppliers in
respect of outstanding rental and merchandise payables
of RMB18.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$21.7
million) plus additional interests. The lessor also claimed a
penalty of RMB20.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$24.0 million) arising from the outstanding rental
payables. The Group’'s bank deposits of RMB4.1 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$4.9 million) were sealed
up as enforced by courts. As at the date of issuance
of these financial statements, the Group is still under
negotiation or arbitration and in the progress of reaching
compromised settlement solutions with the lessor and all
such suppliers.

Save as otherwise disclosed, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries is engaged in any other litigation
or arbitration of material importance and there is no
litigation or claim of material importance known to the
directors to be pending or threatened by or against the
Group.

RS ER% - AN Q R R B A — RE R
BRA TENETEEB/HLE R
ERAARETHESRRASIGES
LA K e A+ 78 dm sk IB A IR #618,100,000
7T (¥ & R 4921,700,0005% 7T ) hn bt
INF BRI FAR WY B S - H
MANTHAZNENEEREARK
20,000,0007T (48 & 7 #924,000,000
BIL) AKEBZRITEFERARE
4,100,0007T (48 & 7 #J4,900,000/%8
70 ) B AR R HIlE = o At S B IS TR
*TEEH AEBNEEEHTE
WIEEHEHBARTEZSHER
EXNEHEATER

BRBRBEEIN NRA A TEHK
BRRBEY R EMEBERFARRL
RENREEF A ERER T AR
BEAHUAKRE ZERFRHRE-

ETHENHRRUASTHR

G-/ EI—&
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directors on 30 June 2016.

B #t & &Tx FE B o

Choon Hoi Kit, Edwin Sha Yingjie
BB AR DEAR
Director Director

EE EF

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZS EHEH - & BILAE T E3)
33 COMPANY LEVEL STATEMENT OF 33 ARIEEMBEMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
At At
31 March 31 December
2016 2014
RIB—RE RZZ—NF
=A=t-H t=ZA=t—AH
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
iy aE FET FET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  HEREZE 9,410 14,451
Interests in subsidiaries RETB AR Z s 2,887,695 2,942,305
2,897,105 2,956,756 )
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b & WX 38,621 20,332
Cash at bank and on hand BITEERFTERSE 222 2,576
38,843 22,908 )
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H fth & 15 5K 256,887 247,426
Bank loan RITER - 62,675
256,887 310,101
Net current liabilities REBEEEE (218,044) (287,193)
NET ASSETS EEFHE 2,679,061 2,669,563
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B K ki 27
Share capital N 231,576 229,823
Reserves [ 2,447,485 2,439,740
TOTAL EQUITY FEs HA 5 2,679,061 2,669,563
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of REFGN_T—RFRA=T



34

35

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt %5 R R Y &

For the fifteen months ended 31 March 2016 #HZ _-—ZE— NF=A=+—HI-1+ A A

(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING 34
COMPANY

The directors of the Company consider the immediate
and ultimate holding company of the Company at 31
March 2016 to be Maritime Century Limited and Ginwa
Investments, respectively. Neither of these companies
produces financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS, 35
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE FIFTEEN MONTHS

ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few new standards and amendments
to standards which are not yet effective for the fifteen
months ended 31 March 2016 and which have not been
adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group.

(BRIEBHHSH  FRILET23)
EERERERDF

RARAEZRA ARAIRZTE—R
FZA=+T—RAZEEREKERA
7% Bl &Maritime Century Limited }2
SERE ZEARWEEHAIHA

RERZ A BEMmEK -

CHEMEEHARREE-FT—X
F=ZRA=+—HLE+HM@EA
£ Rz FET A - A2 B ET
RRECERERE

BENNERTWHEHRKRAH FEF
SRS EMZHRARARNBE=F
—RFEZA=T-BLEtTRAEALER
B R RN H M mR RN F AT A
AR AR 2 ER] - BB IR T 517 g 2
AEEERRE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 RH

B L
PA-GEckR

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
BENBRSEN _F-—FE_F-MERH 2 FRLE

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation

BRETH RN 16K REE G ERE3SS (BAK) [BEFERBHL TRAD %]

Amendments to HKAS 27, Equity method in separate financial statements

BRETHEER (BHIX) [EBVFRRLIPEZAGE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative

BRETEE R (BAX) [TRE]

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes - Recognition of deferred tax assets for unrealised losses

BRETHENE 12 (BAIX) [0 -RAAEEBRRERELHRAE]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments: Hedge accounting and amendment to HKFRS 9, HKFRS 7 and HKAS 39 (2013)

1 January 2016
—E-"E-A-H

1 January 2016
—E-"E-A-H

1 January 2016
—E-"E-A-H

1 January 2016
—E-"E-A-H

1 January 2017
“E2—+F-H-H

1 January 2018

BRMBREEMNESR (2B TA et BEREENERAEAE0N BEUFRELAETEREE st

ERIE39% (Al XK) (ZF—=%))

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

BAMBAESRENE SR [FPAAKE]

HKFRS16, Leases
BERBEREENE 165 [HE]

“T-\5-H—H

1 January 2018
—Z2-\f-A-H

1 January 2019
—E-NF-A-H

ETHENHRRUASTHR

G-/ EI—&
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(Expressed in HK$ unless otherwise indicated) (BrIEZS EHEH - & BILAE T E3)

35 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF NEW STANDARDS,
AMENDMENTS TO STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE FIFTEEN MONTHS
ENDED 31 MARCH 2016 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new standards and
amendments to standards is expected to be in the
period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that except for HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers, for which the Group is still under the process
in assessing the impact of its application, the adoption
of the remaining new standards and amendments to
standards is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

35

EEAEHARRBEE=—F—N
F=ZA=+t—-HBLE+EEA
ER AT ERA - ERZEFT
RERB2EBEERE (4)

REBDIERTE AT 2RI MR Z &
RIRTIRERHB T E - BRI LE
2w REBMEHREERES
S [ FP AR (RNEEINER G
HERZZE) I RAER T HR]ER
Ko BE RN Z A RT AN K AT B ¥t 4R & B 75 e
RERBATE -
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